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The Plaza Centers Group is a leading emerging markets developer
of shopping and entertainment centers, focusing on developing
new centers and, where there is significant redevelopment potential,
redeveloping existing centers, in both capital cities and important
——regional.centers. The Group has been present.in the Central and
—Eastern Europe region (“CEE”) since 1996 and was the first to develop
——western-style shopping and enterta nment centers in Hungary.
The Group fias pioneered this concept throughout the CEE whilst
building a strong track record of successfully developing, letting and
selling shopping and entertainment centers. Since 20086, the Group
has extended its area of operations beyond the CEE into India. In
2012, Plaza identified, with its joint venture partners, a window of
e opportunity for investment in the US as a result of the dislocation
7 ofthe property market, specifically within the retail sector. in 2010,
faking 'hévantage of its qualities and experience in identifying
S opportunities, managing and exiting assets, gained over the years,
the Grbu-p completed another significant sale of 49 US-based assets,
i mainly to a joint venture between Blackstone Real Estate and DDR
".‘[‘1_;_]_4_ lg;'i: it ' Corpﬁnit@‘n‘sat:tion valued at US$1.47 billion, which reflects a
ROE for the Group of nearly 50% in a period of little over 18 months.

KOSK r;B{Jring 2014, Plaza successfully completed the restructuring process
midway through the year, with resounding support from its creditors.
{ This wasfollowed by the completion of a successful rights offering,
ersric! which provided Plaza with a €20 million capital injection and marked
an important final step in the restructuring process. A third listing
on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange and the recent upgrade in Plaza's
credit rating from the Israeli division of Standard & Poor’s (from
D" to “BBB-", on a local Israeli scale, with a stable outlook), have
[further underlined the achievements of the year and strengthened
he Company's position.

Throughout 2014, Plaza continued operational improvement

) o and portfolio repositioning. These are clearly illustrated by
é_};; . significantheadway made with the disposal of Kragujevac Plaza

i - Eh BT or £38.6/million and successful disposal of non-core sites in

E’F' v P&m‘n&nfa (Targu Mures and Hunedoara) for €4.7 million in line with
o -;;'“'F"ﬂp ‘ﬁg’Companys strategy to pay down debt and shed the portfolio of
: ‘ : § p ‘gmn core assets. At the same time Plaza improved occupancy and
s =T turnover across the Company’s existing shopping and entertainment
/ ;f; i« centersiin CEE, with the overall portfoho occupancy level increasing
"“'x«..ﬁ-’,""‘ '3 _BJ% as of the year end, reflecting subcessful asset management

mItlatlves at Torun Plaza, Riga Plaza, Suwalki Plaza

and Zgorzelec Plaza. During 2014 NO! increased by 3.5%.

) ] Thi 'jCompany is an indirect subsidiary of Elbit Imaging Ltd. (“EI"), an
¥ li public company whose shares are registered for trade on the
Tel Aviv Stock Exchange in Israel and on the NASDAQ Global Select

OVERVIEW

Market in the United States. (For more information visit
www.elbitimaging.com.)

The Group has been present in real estate development in emerging
markets for more than 20 years, initially pursuing shopping

and entertainment center development projects in Hungary and
subseguently expanding into Poland, the Czech Republic, Romania,
Latvia, Greece, Serbia, Bulgaria and India. To date, the Group has
developed and let 33 shopping and entertainment centers in the
CEE region and India, of which 29 were sold with an aggregate
gross value of circa €1.25 billion. 21 of these centers were acquired
by Klepierre, a leading player in the continental European shopping
center property market, which owns circa 180 shopping centers in
16 countries in continental Europe, with a property portfolio value
of €21 billion as of the year ending 2014. Four additional shopping
and entertainment centers were sold to the Dawnay Day Group.
One shopping center was sold in 2007 to Active Asset investment
Management (“AAIM”), a UK commercial property investment group.
The transaction had a completion value totaling approximately
€387 million, representing circa 20% of all real estate transactions
completed in Hungary in 2007. Kragujevac Plaza was sold in 2014
to New Europe Property Investments plc (“NEP1"), a publicly traded
commercial property Investor and developer in Eastern Europe.

In 2015, Koregaon Plaza mall in India was sold and currently, Plaza is
focusing on the development of two new shopping centers ~ one in
Belgrade, Serbia and in Timisoara, Romania.

Since 1 November 2006, Plaza Centers N.V.'s shares have been traded
on the main board of the London Stock Exchange under the ticker
“PLAZ". From 19 October 2007, Plaza Centers N.V.'s share em
traded on the main list of the Warsaw StockFEXBRNERIN:
ticker “PLZ", making it the first property companyﬁU his dual \
listing, and as of 27 November 2014, Plaza C SchiekeRha
also traded on the Tel Aviv Stock Excha gl& ‘ze ticker “P
g |nma|s
on
Accoung’:t‘: :l:‘ :d":‘““'s BY:

PLAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Date



Financial highlights

* Reduction in total portfolio value to €392 million (31 December
2014: €466 million), following strategic disposals (mainly of
Koregaon Park Plaza and the lasi plot of land) and write-down
and uplift changes at trading properties and equity accounted
investees (related to assets in the Czech Republic (€6.2 million),
Romania (€9.2 million), Poland (€6 million), other regions
(€3.7 million) and an uplift in Serbia (€4.8 million)).

Cash proceeds from disposals were used to repay liabilities from
bonds issued, in line with the restructuring plan.

* While disposals resulted in an 8% decrease in Group NOI,
excluding the impact of the sale of Kragujevac Plaza in 2014, the
Group recorded a 10% increase in NOI (from €14.9 million to
€16.4 million) from the operation of its other shopping centres
including equity accounted investee.

* Net Asset Value decreased to €114 million (31 December 2014:
€153 million) primarily as a result of an increased NIS against
the EUR, as well as the write-down of assets, mainly in the Czech
Republic, Romania and Poland.
- Net Asset Value per share of £0.12 (31 December 2014: £0.17),
attributable to the abovementioned factors.

* Losses in the period reduced significantly to €46 million
(31 December 2014: loss of €120 million), stemming from a
non-cash €19.4 million impairment of trading properties and
equity accounted investee (31 December 2014: €87.5 million of
impairments), and an overall mostly non-cash net finance cost of
€31 miliion {2014: €36 million).
- Basic and diluted loss per share of €0.07 (31 December 2014

loss per share of €0.39).

* Consolidated cash position at year end (including restricted bank
deposits, short term deposits and held for trading financial assets)
of €20.4 million (31 December 2014: €41.7 million) and current
cash position of circa €18 million (€5.5 million restricted).

* Gearing increased to 79% (31 December 2014: 74%) as a result of
write-down and finance costs incurred during the year.

Operational and Group highlights:

* On 13 May 2015, Plaza announced the agreement to sell its Indian
shopping mall focated in Pune, India, for c. €35 million. The net
cash proceeds (after repayment of the related bank loan, other
liabilities and transaction costs) from the sale were c. €7.4 million
(525 million INR), which are being put towards Plaza’s future
investments and used for general corporate purposes.

* 0n 24 June 2015, Plaza reached an agreement to sell its 46,500 sqm

development site in lasi, Romania, in two separate transactions
(one for the sale of 37,334 sqm and the other for the sale of 9,166
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Total assets

2015: €392 million

2014; €466 million

2007 2009 2010 2015

Consolidated cash position*

2015: €20.4 million

2014: €41.7 million

2008 01 2012 2013 2014

007 2008 2000 2000 2015

2011 2012 2013 2014

* Including restricted bank deposits, short term deposits and held for trading financial assets

sqm), for a gross consideration of €7.3 million; Thers
bank debt secured against the property. In line with the Companys ¥ ;
stated restructuring plan, 75% of the net cash proceeds from the
transactions were distributed to the Company’s bondholders at the
end of September 2015 as an early principal repayment,

* Plaza's subsidiary, Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holdings
Limited (in which Plaza holds a 50% stake with its joint venture
partner, Elbit Imaging Ltd.) (“EPi"), on 2 Decemben2fifmsig
an agreement to sell 100% of Its interest in a special purpose
vehicle which holds a site in Bangalore to a local investor.
The total consideration for the sale is INR 321 Crores (circa
€45.4 million) which will be paid when the transaction closes.
Following this closing, 50% of the proceeds will go to Plaza, of
which 75% will be repaid to the Company’s bondholders in line
with the Company’s stated restructuring plan. The transaction is
subject to certain conditions precedent, and closing will take place
once these conditions are met and no later than'30 Septenvee
2016. The investor is providing certain security in order to

guarantee this deadline. FOR IDENTIFICATION

SES
* A stable occupancy level was recorded across thg%‘r;nopany's
existing shopping and entertainment centre

overall portfolio occupancy level at 94{56? %ﬁ gﬁm

2015 (31 December 2014: 95.34%).

Date Initials
Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
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AT T

Profit (Loss) after tax

2015: €(46) million

2 J14: €(120) million €m (250

2011

2012 2013 2014

2010

a1

2013

- AtTorun Plaza, Poland, occupancy increased to 96.08% (2014:
92.5%) and turnover remained stable despite a slight decrease
of 3.2% in footfall.

- -Riga Plaza in Latvia recorded an 8.6% increase in turnover
along with a 2.2% increase in footfall, compared to 2014.

A small decrease in the occupancy level to 97% (2014: 99.5%)
was a direct result of a small number of retailers exiting the
Latvian market altogether.

- Suwalki Plaza, Poland, continued to perform well, with a 2.5%
increase in turnover in 2015 and 5.7% increase in footfall,
compared to the same period in 2014. Occupancy decreased
very slightly to 96.5% compared to the same period in 2014
(97.7%).

- Zgorzelec Plaza delivered a 2.8% increase in turnover compared
to the same period in 2014, while footfall remained stable.

The increase was despite a reduction in occupancy from 95.2%
to 88.91% after the closure of the Stokrotka supermarket,
following which successful discussions with tenants resulted in
most of them agreeing to remain at the centre.

OVERVIEW

- A 10.6% turnover increase was recorded at Liberec Piaza,
compared to 2014, while occupancy remained stable at 83.67%
(2014: 84%).

Considerable letting success was achieved across the portfolio
and contracts were agreed with a number of significant new
tenants. This improved the overall tenant strength and mix in the
portfalio, and included agreements with KIK, Kinder Planeta, Pink
and Cliff Sport. In the second half of the year, Adidas, Drogas,
Calzedonia, Subway and other weli-known brands opened stores
In Latvia at Riga Plaza. Both Suwalki Plaza and Zgorzelec Plaza
successfully agreed to extend their first five-year lease agreements
which helped to keep a high occupancy level and will deliver a
more resifient, higher quality income over the coming years.

On 21 December 2015 Mr. Ron Hadassi was reappointed as
Chairman of the Board of Directors following a mesting of the
Board.

Key highlights since the period end

Since the year end, on 28 January 2016 Plaza announced the
appointment of Dori Keren and Yitshak (izzie) Elias to the roles

of Acting Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia! Officer,
respectively. Both roles will become effective on 1 April 2016 while
Dori Keren became Chief Executive Officer on 1 January 2017.

On 4 March 2016, Plaza agreed to sell its subsidiary holding
Liberec Plaza, a shopping and entertainment centre in the Czech
Republic, for €9.5 million. In ling with the terms of the agreement,
the buyer deposited 15% of the consideration in escrow. The

due diligence process, final closing and settiement is expected to
conclude by the end of March. The disposal follows an agreement
announced by Plaza on 29 September 2015 whereby a whally
owned subsidiary of Plaza ("PCE") won a tender to buy the loan
to the holding and operating company for Liberec Plaza for €8.5
million. Upon completion of the Liberec Plaza disposal, PCE will
receive €8.5 million on account of the bank loan it previously
purchased. Out of the remaining proceeds, 75% will be distributed
to the Company’s bondholders by the end of June this year.

On 24 March 2016 Plaza completed the sale of its 23,880 sqm

site in Slatina, Romania, to a third party developer for €0.66
million, consistent with the asset's last reported book value. In line
with the Company’s stated restructuring plan, 75% of the cash
proceeds will be distributed to the Company’s bondholders by the
end of June this year as an early repayment.

Today, 29 March 2016, Plaza announces that Sarig Shalhay
a Non-Executive Director of the CompEQRIRENGIERGARIC
intention to retire from the Board in June ZOPEJRPQSES‘\im to

focus on other interests. The Board wis w
confir
urse ...........

for his contribution over previous ye

changes to the Board if and as requj
Da Initials
Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs B V.
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Develop

Plaza develops modern, western-style shopping and entertainment
centers in capital and regional cities, primarily in Central and Eastern
Europe.

Acquire

Plaza may acquire operating shopping centers that have significant
redevelopment or growth potential.

Flexibility

Depending on market yields, Plaza either pre-sells or holds and
manages its assets until the exit yields are sufficiently attractive.

Maintain liquidity and debt management

2015 was an important year for Plaza as we progressed our plans
to create a more streamlined, better performing business. Our
focus on the disposal of non-core assets continued as we reduced
total assets. This approach has been allowing us to concentrate on
superior assets in our prime areas of focus within GEE, whilst at the
same time delivering proceeds to bondholders.

Plaza ended the year with a consolidated cash position (including
restricted bank deposits) of approximately €20.4 million, of which
circa €4.8 million of cash is held as restricted cash on a consolidated
basis. Working capital as at 31 December 2015 totalled negative €98
million chiefly due to the reclassification of €80 million mentioned
above and as trading properties were classified as non-current assets
in the Financial Statements, The Company's current cash position is
circa €18 million (of which €5.5 million is restricted).

At the start of 2016, Plaza’s credit rating by Standard & Poor’s
Maalot, the Israeli credit rating agency which is a division of
International S&P, was maintained on “BBB-" on a local Israsli
scale with a negative outlook.

Pursuant to the restructuring plan, the net cash flow to be received
by Plaza following an exit or the raising of new financial indebtedness
(except if taken for the purpose of purchase, investment or
development of real estate assets (“REA”) or the refinancing of REAs
after the full repayment of the asset’s related debt that was realised
or in respect of a loan paid in case of debt recycling and direct
expenses in respect of the asset) will be used for the repayment of
the accumulated interest until that date for all of the series of Notes
and 75% of the remaining cash (following the interest payment) will
be used for an early repayment of the near principal payments for

PLAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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each of the series of Notes (A, B, Polish) each in accordance

with its deferred debt ratio. Such prepayment will be actual cash
repayment and not in bond purchases. In 2015, Plaza paid

€19.3 million to bondholders and, since the restructuring plan
was approved in 2014, a total of €47 million (of which €19 miliion
for principal and rest for interest) has been distributed as well as
13.21% of shares in the Company.

Plaza will continuing to reduce corporate level debts by early
repayments following sale of assets according to the Company's debt
restructuring agreement, and achieving a one year deferral period on
bond principal repayments per the restructuring plan.

Plaza shall not make any dividend distributions, unless at least 75%
of the unpaid principal balance of the debentures (€199 million)
has been repaid and the coverage ratio on the last examination date
prior to such distribution is not less than 150% following such
distribution.

Plaza continued to focus on deleveraging its balance sheet during the
period but, as a result of impairment losses recorded in the period and
finance costs incurred, the gearing level increased to 79% in 2015.

Objectives

1 To concentrate on existing projects and target new development
opportunities in the strongest countries in Central and Eastern
Europe that have the potential to generate returns of 40% to 60%
on equity invested.

2 To fund 50% to 65% of total project construction costs through
competitively priced bank finance.

3 To limit the commencement of construction projects to those that
meet two major criteria, namely intensive demand from tenants
and those which are backed by external bank financing to ensure
minimal equity investment.

4 Plaza will continue to pursue its intensive asset management
strategy which has seen clear success at the Company’s Income-
generating centers in the CEE, where Plaza's focus remains on
initiatives that will drive occupancy levels, footfall and turnover to
maximise income and deliver value.

5 Plaza will continue to drive the reshaping o 'Egg)
disposal of furthar non-core assets and ma W
to deleverage the balance sheet and advance key deve

projects in core geographies Including
Belgrade in Serbia.

F{&'AﬂbN

pmem

I |t als

Date
Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
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6 Continue with efficiency measures and cost reduction where
possible. At the end of 2015 G&A expenses phase was reduced to
below €6 million following stringent cost control initiatives, e.g.
the Board was reduced from seven to five members.

Development criteria

Selection of target countries

Plaza’s primary focus is on countries in emerging markets and

the Company is currently present in CEE. (n order to determine a
favourable investment climate, Plaza takes into account country risk,
GDP per capita and economic growth, ratio of retail sales per capita,
potitical stability, sophistication of banking systems, land ownership
restrictions, ease of obtaining building and operating permits, busi-
ness risks, existing competition and market saturation fevels.

Site svaluation

Plaza looks to develop its first project in the capital city of a new
country, and thereafter in regional cities with a minimum catchment
area of 50,000 residents. Site evaluation includes site area,
catchment area, local zoning and town planning schemes, proximity
to transportation and vehicular routes and legal issues. A carefully
structured, internally developed evaluation process is in place

¥ involving each,of the rglevant disciplines (economics, engineering,

narketing, etc). S,

e .
e B —
-

OVERVIEW

Project development

Once the Company has approved a site, Plaza manages its
development from inception to completion, incorporating
engineering, marketing, financial and legal stages, designs,
architects, market forecasts and feasibility studies.

Emerging markets

Plaza has a strong track record in developing real estate projects
such as shopping and entertainment centers in emerging markets.
The Group has been present in the CEE region since 1996 and was
a pioneer in bringing western-style shopping malls to Hungary.
The concept continued throughout the CEE on the fantastic
opportunities that emerging markets have offered. Plaza carefully
investigates the benefits and challenges inherent in every proposed
project, adhering to its development criteria.

The Company is currently focusing its development efforts on
Romania and Serbia. Plaza will continue to advance remaining
projects within its land bank, through obtaining planning consents
and construction permits with its main focus on advancing related
permits and approvals for the Casa Radio project in Bucharest,
Romania and continuing processes to secure relevant local planning
and permitting approvals for the Belgrade (“MUP") project in Serbia
and Lodz Plaza project in Poland.

- .l""l
¥ i
;I

B e T T
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Since its creation, the Group has developed and let 32 shopping and entertainment centers
in the CEE region and one in India of which 29 have been sold with an aggregate gross value :,-/

of €1.25 bhillion.

Plaza currently owns and manages four shopping and entertainment centers. The overall occupancy level of Plaza's shopping and entertainment .
centers was 95%. Liberec Plaza, the Company’s center in the Czech Republic, was sold in March 2016. f

Zgorzelec Plaza : Opened March 2010
(Poland) + Plaza share 100%

13,000 :
SQm aLa :

Zgorzelec Plaza reported a 2.8% increase in turnover while
footfall remained steady compared to 2014. The increase was
despite a decrease in the occupancy from 95.2% in 2014 to
88.9% in 2015 due to the colsure of Stokrotka supermarket.
New openings in 2015 include Lee Wrangler, Diverse, Rossmann
(additional space), Pink and Monnari.
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Riga Plaza : Opened March 2009
(Latvia) : Plaza share 50°%

49,000 :
SQM GLa :

Riga Plaza shopping and entertainment center is located

on the western bank of the Daugava river by the Sala Bridge.

The two-floor mall includes an eight screen multiplex cinema
and 2,000 sqm of Fantasy Park. The center continues to deliver
significant operational success, seeing occupancy levels at
97%.The shopping center recorded an 8.6% increase in turnover
along with 2.2% increase in footfall compared to last year.

In the second half of 2015, well known brands such as Adidas,
Drogas, Calzedonia and Subway opened stores in the shopping
center. The group is in negotiations for the sale of the center.

@rant Thomton
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
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Suwalki Plaza Opened May 2010
(Poland) + Plaza share 100%

20,000
Sqm cLa :

Suwalki Plaza, the three-fioor shopping and entertainment centre
which includes a three-screen cinema and a bowling center as
well, continues to perform well with a 2.5% increase in turnover
in 2015 and 5.7% increase in footfal compared to last year.
Occupancy decreased very slightly to 96.5% from 97.7% in 2014,
New stores such as KIK, Kinderplaneta and Pink opened during
2015, while most existing tenants have signed lease renewals
with the fifth anniversary of the shopping center,

Torun Plaza : Opened November 2011
(Poland) : Plaza share 100%

40,000 |
SgMm GLa '

Torun Plaza, which comprises approximately 40,000 sqm of
GLA, is Plaza’s tenth completed center in Poland. The center's
occupancy has increased to 96% in 2015 (2014: 92.5%).
New leases were signed with tenants such as LPP brands,
Resto Design, Phramaland and Sizeer, and openings are
expected in 2016.

Liberec Plaza : Opened March 2009
(Czech Republic) : Plaza share 100%

17,000

Sqm GLa

Liberec Plaza shopping and entertainment center reported a
10.6% increase in turnover in 2015, with occupancy remaining
steady at 84%. The shopping center was sold in March 2016.

Grant Thorrton

; Adviseurs B.V.
OVERVIEW - PLAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL REFD 1S5 te on Adviseu



General

On 14 November 2013, Plaza Centers announced that its Board of
Directors had concluded that the Company would withhold payment
on the upcoming maturities of its bonds and approach its creditors
with a restructuring plan. The restructuring plan was approved on
26 June 2014 by the vast majority of the Company's creditors and,
subsequently, approved by the Court on 9 July 2014, becoming an
irrevocable decision on 21 July 2014. The Company announced
the publication of a prospectus in respect of a rights offering on

16 October 2014. The shareholders approved the rights offering on
28 November 2014 which was followed on that date by the capital
injection of €20 miilion by the existing shareholders. All conditions
precedent of the restructuring plan were fulfilled.

The creditors included in the debt restructuring were the bondholders
in Israel, the bondhalders in Poland and the banks at asset level with

aright of recourse to the parent company.

Plaza’s ordinary shares were listed for trade on the Tel Aviv Stock
Exchange with effect from 27 November 2014,

Summary

A summary of the main terms of the restructuring plan are set
out below:

* An injection of €20 mitlion into the Company at a price per share
of €0.0675 (the “equity contribution”).

* The Company issued to the holders of unsecured debt (i.e.
outstanding debt under the Israeli Series A and B Notes and
the Polish Notes) (“unsecured debt”) 13.21% of the Company’s
shares (“post equity contribution”). Such shares issuance was
distributed among the holders of unsecured debt pro rata to
the relative share of each relevant creditor in the deferred debt
(“deferred debt ratio”).

* Each principal payment under the debentures due in the years
2013, 2014 and 2015, pursuant to the original terms of the
debentures, shall be deferred by exactly four and a half years
and each principal payment due pursuant to the original terms
of the debentures in subsequent years (i.e. 2016 and 2017) will
be deferred by exactly one year. In the event that the Company
does not succeed in prepaying an aggregate amount of at feast
€92 million (NIS 434 million) of the principal of the debentures,
excluding linkage differentials within a period of two years
ending 1 December 2016, then all principal payments under the
debentures deferred in accordance with above, shall be advanced
by one year (i.e. shall become due one year earlier).
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All unpaid interest accrued on the Israeli debentures and Polish
debentures up to and including 31 December 2013 will be added
to the principal and paid together with it.

As of 1 January 2014, the annual interest rate of the unsecured
debt increased by 1.5%.

The Company paid to the holders of the unsecured debt an
amount of €13.8 million in 2014 interest payments.

The Company and all other companies of the Group, the current
and former directors and officers of the Group, all direct and
indirect shareholders of the Group from any and all liability under
any applicable law other than with respect to claims or demands
regarding which the grounds are fraud or malice or other ground
for which a release is not permitted by law.

The net cash flow to be received by the Company following an exit
or the raising of new financial indebtedness, except if taken for
the purpose of purchase, investment or development of real estate
assets (“REA") or refinancing of REAs after the full repayment of
the asset's related debt that was realised or in respect of a loan
paid in case of debt recycling (and in case where the exit occurred
in the subsidiary — amounts required to repay liabilities to the
creditors of that subsidiary) and direct expenses in respect of the
asset (any sale and tax costs, as incurred) will be used for the
repayment of the accumulated interest until that date for all of the
series (in the case of an exit which is not one of the four shopping
centers, only 50% of the interest) and 75% of the remaining

cash (following the interest payment) will be used for an early
repayment of the near principal payments for each of the series

of Notes (A, B, Polish) each in accordance with its deferred debt
ratio. Such prepayment will be actual cash repayment and not in
bond purchases.

Permitted disposals (provisions with respect to the four shopping
malis) — The Company will be allowed to sell the four shopping
malls (Torun, Suwalki, Kragujevac and Riga) or to undertake a
refinancing for any of these (hereinafter “disposal event”), subject
to the cumuiative net cash flow in the disposal event in respect of
these four shopping malis being no less than €70 million. Should
no disposal event occur for the four shopping malls together, the
Company will be allowed to perform a special purpose disposal
event anly if, after execution of the special purpose disposal event,
the surplus value of the shopping malls not sold {according to

the valuation deducting the specific debt to banks) is no less than
€70 million, deducting the net cash flows received from previous
disposal events and deducting the net cash flovf %W&GN'ON

purpose disposal event. PURPOSES
iR
Date =~ Initials
Grant Thorton
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V,
OVERVIEW



* Restrictions on issuance of additional debentures ~ The Company
undertakes not to issue any additional debentures other than is
expressly provided for in the restructuring plan.

* Restrictions on amendments to the terms of the debentures -
The Company shall not be entitled to amend the terms of the
debentures, with the exception of purely technical changes, unless
such amendment is approved under the terms of the relevant
series and the applicable law and the Gompany also obtains
the approval of the debentures holders of all other series of
debentures issued by the Company by ordinary majority.

* Goverage ratio covenant (“CRC") ~ CRC is equal to asset value
plus cash and cash equivaients less the Group's bank liabilities
secured by an encumbrance over any of the Group’s rights or
assets or otherwise rank in priority ahead of the plan claims;
and divided by the aggregate amount of remaining plan claims
plus all other liabilities of the Group that rank pari passu with the
plan claims and that are not subordinated debt. The calculation
is based on known Group valuations reports and consolidated
financial information available at each reporting period. Minimum
CRC deemed ta be complied with by the Group is 118% in each
reporting period.

¢ Minimum cash reserve covenant (“MCRC") — The cash reserves
of the Company have to be greater than the amount estimated
by the Company’s management required to pay all administrative
and general expenses and interest payments to the debentures
holders falling due in the following six months, minus sums of
proceeds from transactions that have already been signed (by
the Company or a subsidiary} and closed and, to the expectation
of the Company’s management, have a high probability of being
received during the following six months. Investments in new or
existing REA of the group shall not be permitted if following such
investment the cash reserves are less than the minimum cash
reserve and minimum CRC is not met.

* Negative pledge on REA of the Company - The Company
undertakes that until the debentures have been repaid in full,
it shall not create any encumbrance on any of the REA, held,
directly or indirectly, by the Company except in the event that
the encumbrance is created over the Company’s interests in a
subsidiary as additional security for financial indebtedness (“FI")
incurred by such subsidiary which is secured by encumbrances on
assets owned by that subsidiary.

* Negative pledge on the REA of subsidiaries — The subsidiaries
shall undertake that until the debentures has been repaid in full,
none of them will create any encumbrance on any of REA except
cerfain cases.

OVERVIEW

* Limitations on incurring new Fl by the Company and the

subsidiaries — The Company undertakes not to incur any new Fl
(including by way of refinancing an existing FI with new FI) until
the outstanding debentures debt (as of 30 November 2014) has
been repaid in full, except in certain events, mainly:

- the new Fl is incurred for the purpose of investing in the
development of a real estate asset;

- the new F! is Incurred by a subsidiary for the purpose of
purchasing a new REA by such a subsidiary, provided that
following such a purchase the cash reserve is not less than the
MCRC;

- at least 75% of the net cash flow resulting from the incurrence
of new Fl is used for a mandatory early repayment of the Notes.

Dividend policy — Plaza shali not make any dividend distributions,
unless (i) at least 75% of the unpaid principal balance of the
debentures (€199 million) has been repaid and the coverage ratio
on the last examination date prior to such distribution is not less
than 150% following such distribution, or (ii) a majority of the
plan creditors consents to the proposed distribution.
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Hislory of corporate debt raisings and bond repayments by the Company

The Company raised debt in Israel by issuing marketabie bonds and in Poland by private issuance

Bond raising 401,850,451 1,483,126,346 15,085,058*
Interest accrued and capitalised 31/12/2013 6,652,927 16,055,759 665,575
Directly purchased by Plaza - Removed from the cycle (8,253,378) (96,443,579) -
Bond raising, net 400,249,999 1,402,738,526 15,750,633
Principal payments over the years (until 31/03/2016) (187,773,030) (1,101,533,108) (1,791,519)
Interest payments over the years (until 31/03/2016) (132,683,985) (415,051,754) (5,430,726)
Total payments (320,457,015) (1,516,584,862) (7,222,245)
Total payments over the years as percentage of total ralsing, net (%) 80.06% 108.12% 45.9%

* 60,000,000 PLN

Activities Following Approval of Restructuring Plan

September 2014:

December 2014:
February 2015:
May 2015:

June 2015:
September 2015:
December 2015:

March 2016:

March 2016:

March 2016:

Improving Perfor

Completed the sale of a 31,500 sqm plot in Targu Mures, Romania, generating cash proceeds of €3.5 million.
Completed the sale of Kragujevac Plaza Shopping and Entertainment centre in Kragujevac, Serbia for a total consideration of
€38.6 million. The net cash proceeds from the sale were €12.2 million.

Completed the sale of a 41,000 sqm plot in Hunedoara, Romania generating cash proceeds of €1.2 million.
Completed the sale of part of a plot in Lodz, Poland for €0.5 million.

Completed the sale of a 17,000 sqm plot in Brasov, Romania generating cash proceeds of €0.33 million.

Completed the sale of Koregaon Park Plaza Shopping and Entertainment Centre located in Pune, India for circa €35 million.
The net cash proceeds from the sale, circa €7.4million, were put towards Plaza’s future investments and used for general
corporate purposes. The mall was underperforming and created negative NOI, and circa €14 million of its bank loan was
recourse to the parent company.

Completed the sale of a 46,500 sqm plot in lasi, Romania generating cash proceeds of €7.3 million.
Completed the sale of an office building in Bucharest, Romania (823 sgm GLA) for €1.1 mitlion.

Completed the transaction to waive the Company’s leasing rights to the Cina property in Bucharest, Romania, which has
been sold by its owner. The gross proceeds from the transaction were circa €2.7 million.

Completed the sale of Liberec Plaza Shopping and Entertainment Centre in Liberec, Czech Republic for €9.5 miltion
(the Company received €8.5 million (out of the €9.5 million) on account of the Liberec bank loan it purchased in 2015).

Completed the sale of a 23,880 sqm plot in Slatina, Romania generating cash proceeds of €0.66 million

Signed a binding pre-agreement to sell its development land in Piraeus, near Athens, Greece, for €4.7 million.
The sale agreement with a third party developer is subject to certain conditions being met, including EQMMMI%

up to six months to complete. PURPOSES
mance: Continuing improvement of the occupancy levels and NOJ of the malls, extending leases [fftj i
Date |n|;;zgs
Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
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Re

February 2014:

May 2015:

June 2015:

September 2015:

Following the sale of its airplane for US$1.9 million, the Company reached a settlement with the airplane financing bank for a
reduced repayment of US$1.1 million (out of the outstanding bafance of US$1.9 million). The settlement generated a gain of
US$0.81 million (€0.6 million) in the Company’s books.

The Company concluded the sale of Koregaon Park Piaza in Pune, India, which eliminated a recourse component of the loan
of circa €14 milfion (the recourse would have matured four years from the restructuring approval - July 2018).

The Company concluded the sale of an SPV holding a plot comprising a c. 1,200 sqm plot in Ploiesti, Romania for a total
consideration of €240,000. The proceeds were used to repay an outstanding bank loan and no proceeds were obtained by
the Group. A waiver was obtained for the remainder of the unpaid bank loan facility, totaling €1.4 million, and the Company
therefore recorded a gain, included as finance income in its consolidated financial statements.

A subsidiary of the Company has won a tender to buy the loan of the wholly owned holding and operating company for
Liberec Plaza shopping and entertainment centre in the Czech Republic. Plaza has agreed to buy the €20.4 mitlion bank loan
(which was provided by two commercial banks) for €8.5 million, reflecting a discount of 58%. The Company recorded a
profit on the discount (circa €12 million) in its financial statements for the second half of 2015. The Liberec loan was a full
recourse loan (the recourse would have matured four years from the restructuring approval - July 2018).
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2015 was an important year for Plaza as we progressed our

plans to create a more streamlined, better performing business.
Our focus on the disposal of non-core assets continued as we
reduced total assets. This approach has been allowing us to
concentrate on superior assets in our prime areas of focus within
Central and Eastern Europe, whilst at the same time delivering
proceeds to bondholders and creating a stronger business for our
shareholders.

Performance across our shopping centres has been stable during
the year, with an overall portfolio occupancy level of 94.96% as of
31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: 95.34%).

Rental income feli during the year compared with previous year,

This reduction reflects the fewer properties managed by Plaza
however, importantly, the quality of the income is now higher and
more resilient, reflecting the superior portfolio of assets. To that end,
taken on a like for like basis, rental income of the assets Plaza owns
actually increased during the period.

Over the course of 2015, in line with the restructuring plan agreed
in 2014, we repaid 75% of proceeds from disposals to bondholders.
Since the restructuring plan was approved, Plaza has now returned
€47 million (of which €19 million is principal and the remainder
interest) to bondholders, in addition to 13.21% of shares in the
Company. Pleasingly, at the start of 2015, Plaza's credit rating by
Standard & Poor’s also improved from “D" to “BBB-" on a local
Israeli scale with a stable outlook.

More generally, we have been seeing economic improvement

across our core geographies but the Board remains vigilant to

wider macro-economic factors. Without doubt, 2015 was a year of
significant progress and we look ahead towards further improving
performance across our assets in 2016, with construction starting on
key developments, and taking action to reduce leverage and provide
proceeds to bondholders through the ongoing disposal of non-core
and mature assets.

The Directors believe that the Group has a number of strengths that

enable it to compete effectively in the industry in which it operates.
These strengths include the following:

PLAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Proven track record and Geographical reach

Plaza has been active in the CEE for 20 years and together with its
regional teams has developed projects in eight countries.

The Company's strong track record in successfully seliing (and
sometimes pre-selling) its centers is demonstrated by the sale of
developments between 2004-2008 to Kiépierre, a major player in
continental Europe’s retail property market, Dawnay Day, then one
of the UK's leading institutional property investors and aAIM. The
Group aiso has continuing relationships with leading institutional
property developers and strategic buyers. Monitoring the economic
and financial developments in the CEE markets since the financial
turmoil of 2008, the Group has positioned its development program
to ensure that it can deliver shopping centers into markets with the
highest retail demand. Between 2009-2012, the Group has opened
seven shopping centers and currently operates them using its
management experience, while benefiting from their rental income,
until sufficient sale prices are achieved. Despite the challenging
economic conditions in the CEE, the Group has managed to conclude
some significant transactions between 2012-2015.

In 2012, Plaza has managed to utilize its experience and “know-how”
in the shopping center field to enter the US commercial real estate
market in 2010, resulting in the acquisition of 49 US-based shopping
centres, which were later sold in a transaction valued at USD 1.47M,
representing a 50% return on equity for Plaza in a period of 18
months, In addition, during 2013-2015, in line with its disposal prog-
ram, the Company has managed to successfully sell some of its
assets—Kharadi and Trivandrum projects and Koregaon park Plaza
shopping and entertainment centre in India, Prague 3 and a plot In
Roztoky in the Czech Republic, Dream Island and existing shopping
center Uj Udvar in Hungary, as welf as the sale of certain plots in
Targu Mures, Brasov, lasi in Romania and sale of its office buil-

ding and transaction to waive its leasing rights of cina property both
located in Bucharest, the sale of part of a plot in Lodz, Poland and
the sale of Kragujevac shopping center in Serbia.

Highly skilled management team

In its 20 years of operation, the Group’s highly qualified real estate
professionals and local management teams have accumulated
extensive knowledge of local markets and demonstrated a proven
ability to source strategic development sites, design attractive and
innovative projects that meet the demands of the local market and
obtain planning and building permissiong exp€
runs a highly efficient construction procegs in orderﬂumﬁﬁ
costs- the Group has completed many offits de ! 3
construction timeframe of between twelvem? l'r
and without budget overruns. ~ EMpuk

@rant Thornton

Accountants en Advisaura BV,

OVERVIEW



The Directors believe that it is this efficiency and quality of execution
together with the Company's local knowledge and infrastructure that
has given the Group its competitive advantage in each of its principal
markets.

Extensive network

The Company has strong relationships with the banks accompanying
the projects in the operational regions, as well as with international
and local retail brands — such as H&M, Inditex, C&A, TKMaxx,

New Yorker, Pesk & Cloppenburg and Reserved, which rent space
in the shopping centers, and also with international real estate
funds, which invest in assets in different countries. The strength of
such relationships is demonstrated by the Company’s track record
of signing up tenants, with 80% to 100% of each shopping and
entertainment center developed by the Group having been let within
the first two years after opening and at least 70% of each shopping
center having been pre-let during the construction period.

Plaza s also able to benefit from Elbit’s knowledge and experience in
the hotel field for future development opportunities

Strong brand name

Plaza Centers has become a widely recognised brand name for
successful property development in CEE, which Is beneficial at
all stages of project execution (e.g. following portfolio sales to
Klépierre, Dawnay Day and aAIM, the purchasers continue to use
the “Plaza Centers” brand name under license).

Thorough project evaluation

Prior to each project, Plaza goes through a carefully developed,
structured evaluation process involving each of the relevant
disciplines (economics, engineering, marketing, etc).

Successful project management

Almost all projects to date completed on time and within budget.

Capital Markets

Plaza’s shares are traded in the London Stock Exchange (“LSE"), the
Warsaw Stock Exchange (“WSE") and in the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange
(“TASE"), providing platform needed for raising funds for new
projects and operations.

OVERVIEW

Flexibility and ability to anticipate and
adapt to market trends

Plaza is well positioned to satisfy the significant retail demand
resulting from rapidly growing household incomes, as well as the
increasingly westernised tastes and habits of emerging market
populations. Decisions to dispose of portfolio properties are based
on in-depth analysis of market conditions.

During the years 1996-2004, when exit yields (yields of realization)
were high, the Group retained and operated shopping centers

on completion and gained rental income. Once property yields
decreased, starting 2004, the Group started selling its shopping
centers in line with the commercial decision to focus its busi-

ness more on development and sale rather than operating. While
yields are high, the Group has the management skills to operate
the assets and benefit from their rental income, as done in the

past, until the next low yields cycle. Piaza continues to focus on
improving the performance of the shopping centre portfalio, applying
the Company’s strong asset management capabilities and specific
emphasis on reducing leverage as well as the further rationalisation
and strengthening of the portfolio by disposing of non-core
properties

FOR IDENTIFICATION
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" Our markets

' Population (m)* .

-’,"( R =q
- RS- F -~

M Poland B Latvia W Bulgaria M Poland 38.6 B Greece 10,
M Serbia 2 Czech Republic W Hungary B Serbia 7.2 I Bulgaria 7.2
M Romania M Greece M India B Romania 21.7 W Hungary 9.9

B Latvia 2 M India 1,252

[ Czech Republic 10.6

GDP per capita* I

Unemployment*

Lavia  Czech
Republic

* Source: CIA - The World Factbook

Grant Thornton
Accountants en Advise
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Totat of 21 assets Iocaled across CEE region and in India.
1 Estimated value of €1,733 million on completion.

Partfolio composition — by country - 10 Market value of the land and project (€m) €m 200

A I Active
= i M Under development/planning

- 1680
_',!; §‘§ I Offices

e Tl

«
3

Poland  Serbia Romania lavia Czech Greecs Bulgaria Hungary  india

Republic
Market value on Market value of the iand
completion {(€m) and the project (€m)*
Complete and active projects 210 210
rent developments e 894 ' 134
Pipeline projects 6292 55
' ‘,_um., comber2015 1,733 399
Valug of P Piaza Cent -mr by Cushman and Wakegeld as of 31 December 2015.
. ‘2 Ghennaipm _ with the compamtmsalw prlce method novalue at completion was estimated.
4 it
Decemherzmé 5y
= 3 _
Net Financial Debt EUR Million (314)
Asset values*
ngagsets N W i _ 210
m Development Assets** 162
' T S W T 52
Offlce Bmldlng 3
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r'J 40,000 sqm eLa

The Company took the strategic decision to scale back on starting new projects and
acquisitions, and to focus on projects with availability of external financing or strong
tenant demand. In 2016 the Group plans to progress the development of Belgrade Plaza
(Visnjicka) in Serbia and Timisoara Plaza in Romania. In addition, in the near future the
Group intends to focus on the developments of Casa Radio project (first phase) in Romania
and Belgrade Plaza (MUP) in Serbia.

Timisoara Plaza
Romania

c——

Plaza owns a plot of land with an area of 32,000 sqm in Timisoara,
Romania, on which it is intending to develop a shopping and enter-
tainment center. The planned center will have a GLA of approximately
40,000 sqm and includes a hypermarket, fashion retailers, and
restaurants. Construction is expected to commence in 2016 and
the center is expected to open during the second half of 2017.




Belgrade Plaza
(Visnjicka) Serbia
32,000 sgqm aLa

Plaza owns a 31,000 sqm plot of land in Belgrade, the capital of Serbia.

The Belgrade market offers potential with its large populated catchment

area of approximately 1.7 million people. Plaza intends to develop a

new shopping and entertainment center with a GLA of approximately

32,000 sqm. Construction commenced in 2015 and the center is
scheduled to open in 2017.

'y
FYRY N e
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Poland

| Proje : city - ’;L..l:""-.‘iill -

|
Toru-n Flaza - Toru-ﬁ. - 100%
Suwalki Plaza Sulwalki 100%
Zgorzelec Plaza Zgorzelec 100%
Lodz Plaza Lodz 100%
Kielce Plaza Kielce 100%
Leszno Plaza Leszno 100%
Lodz (Residential) Lodz 100%

* Operating
** Under planning and feasibility examination

1 External valuation was not conducted.
2 Gross area of the plot.

Plaza has completed 10 shopping and entertainment

centers in Poland of which seven have already been sold.
Currently the Group owns and operates three shopping and
entertainment centers across Poland. During the year, the
centers have continued to perform successfully, with an average
occupancy level of 93.8% as at the reporting date.

Torun Plaza: complete and active project

Torun Plaza is located in Torun, an almost 800-year-old city of
approximately 200,000 inhabitants. Torun is one of the most
beautiful cities of Poland located at the intersection of ancient
trade routes. The gothic buildings of Torun’s old town were
designated as a world heritage site by UNESCO in 1997.

Torun Plaza, which opened in November 2011, is the Group’s tenth
completed development in Poland. The two-floor shopping and
entertainment center with approximately 40,000 sqm of GLA, is
anchored by Zara, Reserved, Home & You, New Yorker, H&M,
Media Expert, Carry, Sport Direct, Martes Sport, C&A, TK Maxx, a
multi-screen Cinema City, bowling center and Pure fitness center,
in 2015, occupancy of the mall increased to 96% compared to
93% in 2014 and turnover remained stable.

PLAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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97,725,000

40,000 97,725,000 Opened in Q4 2011*
20,000 43,250,000 43,250,000 Opened in 02 2010*
13,000 12,050,000 12,050,000 Opened in Q1 2010*
35,000 70,911,000 7,400,000 S
33,000 60,533,000 3,325,000 **
16,000 n/a' n/a' i
24,7002 n/a’ n/a'  Under sale process
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Zyorzelec Plaza: complete and active project

Zgorzelec Plaza is located in Zgorzelec in south west Poland, near the
German border. Thanks to two roads border crossing (including one
of the largest in Poland), a railway border crossing and the restored
old town bridge which connects the old towns of Zgorzelec and
Goerlitz (55,000 citizens on the German side), Zgorzelec Is a gateway
between Germany and Poland. The shopping and entertainment
center is situated less than five minutes walking distance from the
railway station. Zgorzelec Plaza comprises approximately 13,000
sqm of GLA anchored by H&M, KappAhl, Douglas, Carry, a fitness
center, a cinema and 300 parking spaces. In 2015, occupancy

decreased to 89% from 95% in 2014 as a result ft Ri EMPFCATION

supermarket unit. New openings in the center in P01

Wrangler, Diverse, Pink, Monnari and an extensidn to th eXIs ing
Rossmann unit. J / ZrantTho ﬁ '
Date initials
Qrant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
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Suwalki Plaza: complete and active project
Suwalki Plaza is located in Suwaiki, a city crossed by expressway
E67(8), which links Augustow with the Lithuanian border. Suwalki
is a city with approximately 70,000 inhabitants and is located

45km from the Polish-Lithuanian border. Suwalki Plaza, which

was opened in May 2010, is located in the main commercial and
residential district of the city and is fronted by an important arterial
route to the east. It is also located on a junction of a street which
links directly into the city center. The PKS bus terminal and main
railway station are located approximately one km from the shopping
and entertainment center. Suwalki Plaza is a three-fioor shopping
and entertainment center with approximately 20,000 sqm of GLA
anchored by Stokrotka Supermarket, H&M, KappAhl, Deichmann,
Carry, HeBe, Douglas, Empik and a three-screen cinema. The
occupancy of the shopping center is at 96.5% (2014: 97.7%). New
stores such as KIK, Kinderplaneta and Pink opened during 2015
and most existing tenants have signed lease renewals, with the fifth
anniversary of the shopping center.

Lodz Plaza: pipeline project
Lodz Plaza is located in Lodz , the second largest city in Poland
with over 720,000 inhabitants. Lodz is recognized as an important
academic and cultural center in Poland, hosting well-known
cultural events. Lodz Plaza is planned to be a two-floor shopping
and entertainment center with approximately 35,000 sqm of GLA
anchored by a supermarket, a department store as well as a multi-
screen cinema and bowling and entertainment center. The project is
under feasibility and planning examination and amendment of the
local master plan is underway.

OVERVIEW
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Kielce Plaza: pipeline project

Plaza has won a competitive tender and acquired a 25,000 sqm

plot frem PKS Kielce S.A. (the local branch of the Polish National
Bus Gompany) for the development of a major new shopping and
entertainment center in Kielce. The plot is located alongside a major
road and two km from the heart of Kielce. Kielce has over 200,000
inhabitants and an estimated catchment area of approximately
350,000 people, and is located in Central Poland on the main
motorway linking Warsaw and Krakow. On completion, the scheme is
planned to have a GLA of 33,000 sqm, and approximately 1,000 car
parking spaces. The Company will be targeting a mixture of domestic
and high-profile international retailers and entertainment operators
as potential tenants for the center. The project is under planning and
feasibility examination.

Leszno Plaza: pipeline project
Plaza has a perpetual usufruct over a 18,000 sqm site in Leszno,
for the development of a new shopping and entertainment

center. The site is ideally located in the center of Leszno, a city
with 65,000 inhabitants, situated in western Poland between the
two big economic centers of Poznan and Wroclaw, and is close to
the central railway and bus station. On completion, the shopping
and entertainment center is intended to have a GLA of 16,000 sqm
providing space for aver 70 shops and 450 car parking spaces.
The project is under planning and feasibility examination.

ssveovsssrsosena $essnceccsessssesssssnnsens

Lodz (Residential): pipeline project
Plaza owns part of a development site and has a perpetual usufruct
over the remaining part of the site, located in the center of Lodz,
which is suitable for use as a residential and offices area. The site

is located in the central university district, within 500 meters of the
popular Piotrkowska pedestrian street. The site is also located in close
proximity to large high density housing estates. The plot is being sold
in stages.

Sesscssesesesssasrosesesnesssess e e
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Serbia A
Ownership. GLA(sym)  Marketvalue Markelvalueolihe  Expectod

Projec Lty

. on completion  land and project  compleion |

' 31 December 31 December
Belgrade Plaza (Visnjicka)  Belgrade 100% 32,000 91,299,000 29,625,000 2017
Belgrade Plaza (MUP) Belgrade 100% 63,000 153,831,000 13,625,000 o

1 GBA

** Under planning and feasibility examination

On 1 March 2013, Serbia was granted candidate status to the
European Union. The Company believes this will significantly
increase the flow of international capital into the country, enabling
its carefully selected Serbian development pipsline. Dperational
the assets fo benefit from the anticipated growth in investor inte-
rest as demonstrated by a joint venture between two international
investors who bought the two biggest shopping centres in Belgrade
in March 2016.

In 2014, Plaza completed the disposal of its first shopping i _
and entertainment center in Serbia, Kragujevac Plaza for €38.6 il L DR T <
million. It was the first western-style shopping and entertainment
center to be opened outside the capital, Belgrade. Currently
the Group is focusing on the development of Belgrade Plaza
(Visnjicka) shopping and entertainment center - construction has Belgrade Plaza (MUP): current development project

commenced in 2015 and building permit was granted.
Plaza won a competitive tender announced by the Government of
Belgrade Plaza (Visnjicka): current development project Serbia for a site located in the center of Belgrade, which it plans to
Tereicesceiincnuneratasraiassasaasrenannnassanssa. developinto an office space together with a hotel and retail gallery.
Plaza owns a 31,000 sqm plot of land in Belgrade, the capital of The development is expected to comprise a total of 63,000 sqm of

Serbia. The Belgrade market offers potential, with its large catchment  GBA including an apartment hotel, business center and shopping
area of approximately 1.7 million people. In 2015, Plaza announced gallery as well as 700 car parking spaces.
that it had recieved the building permit to develop Belgrade Plaza,

a 32,000 sam of GLA shopping and entertainment center. Located The new complex will be located an the prominent site of the former
on Visnjicka Street, adjacent to the Danube River in old Belgrade, Federal Ministry of Internal Affairs, situated on the main streat which
the new development will include international and domestic retail runs through the center of Belgrade. The area is home to foreign
units, a supermarket and an entertainment component. Construction  embassies, the Serbian Government, the Serbian Ministry of Finance,
begun in 2015 and completion is targeted for the first half of 2017, the Belgrade Chamber of Commerce and Belgrade’s largest public
The Company has witnessed great interest from tenants and has hospital as well as the city fair and the future railway station.

pre-let circa 45% of the GLA. The Company has also recieved abank  The project is under planning and feasibility examination.

financing offer for approximately 55% of the project cost. FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES
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Belgrade Plaza
MUP) Serbia
63,000 sqm aLa

The building is located in the center of Belgrade in a neighborhood of
government offices and foreign embassies. On completion, Belgrade
Plaza (MUP) will comprise a shopping gallery, an apartment hotel and
business center.




Timisoara Plaza Timisoara
CasaRadio  Bucharest - 75%
Csiki Plaza Miercurea Ciuc 100%
_ Slatina Plaza Slatina 100%
”Constanta Plaza i Constanta 100%

* . Under planning and feasibility examination
1 .GBA Including parking
2 “First phase

Plaza is currently focusing on the development of Timisoara Plaza
as it recieved the building permit and a hinding financing offer
from a bank. In 2015, the Company successfuly dispesed two of its
non-core assets in Romania - Cina in Bucharest and lasi, as well
as the Palazzo Ducale office building in Bucharest for a total of
€10.6 million. The Company continues checking the feasitiility and
planning of the projects, including obtaining permits.

Timisoara Plaza: current development

Plaza owns a plot of land with an area of 32,000 sqm in Timisoara,
on which it is intending to develop a shopping and entertainment
center. The site is situated in the north east of Timisoara, a city.in
western Romania, close to the border with Hungary with a population
of 320,000 inhabitants and a catchment area of approximately
700,000 inhabitants. The site is situated on a three-way junction

and enjoys excellent visibility, In 2015 Plaza announced that it had
recieved the building permit to develop Timisoara Plaza, a girca
40,000 sqm GLA shopping and entertainment center. A binding
financing offer was also agreed with a bank for circa 65% of the
praject cost. Construction is expected to commence in 2016.and the
opening of the center is targeted at the end of 2017.

PLAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL REPORT 2015

40,000 70,329,000 9,400,000

467,000 578,711,000 81,450,000 *
14,000 14,831,000 2,400,000 *
17,000 30,151,000 1,000,000 Sold in March 2016
18,000 2,150,000 2,150,000 *
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Casa Radio (Bucharest): current doyslopméot

AR R R IR S L e s i e e sieieesie e e 0Ts 8

In February 2007, the Gompany closed a transaction for the
acquisition of a 75% interestin a company (the “Project Company”)
which tnder a public-private partnership agreement with the
Government of Romania is expected to develop the Casa Radio
(Dambovita) site in oentral Bucharest The propeny oompnses asite
covering an approxnmate area of 92,000 sqm (97,000 : sqm including ' .
5,000 sqm for Public Authonty Building (“PAB")) The proposed '
scheme will comprise the refurblshm, of the exnsting building. as
well as the development of additional space annexed 1o the buudnng
and on adjoining land. The developmem of Casa Radio compnses '
approximately 467, 000 sgm of built area, mcludlng 290,000 sqm
GLA shopping 'mall and Indoor leisure centgr awW\fMN
sqm GBA of offices, hotel complex with corfference cep{gRp@®SES
underground car parlqng spaces. The Comp;ny has.gbtained the

U

“PUD? (Detaned Urban Permit) and the “P n ermm
torthe site. The Company is currantly dlsous§ T §) ix e of the -

i

' tials
Project with the Romanian authories.  pate
~ Grant Thomton o
écceomsnts en Asiwsenrs
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- Casa Radio
Romania
, - 467,000 sqm asa

Casa Radio will include a 90,000 sqm GLA shopping mall and indoor
leisure center, approximately 127,000 sqm GBA of offices, hotel complex
with conference center, Public Authority Building and underground
car parking spaces.




Csiki Plaza: pipeline project
Plaza purchased a plot of Jand with an area of 36,500 sqm in
Miercurea Ciuc, for the development of a shopping and entertainment
center. Csiki Plaza is situated in the center of Miercurea Giuc, a city

in Romania, with a population of 50,000 inhabitants and a catchment
area of approximately 300,000 inhabitants. The site is situated

400 meters from the city hall. The shopping center is planned to

have a GLA of approximately 14,000 sqm, and is intended 1o include
a supermarket, fashion retailers, a food court and restaurants.
Gonstruction commenced in late 2008 and stopped during 2009

due to lack of interest from tenants because of the economic crisis.
The Group intends to sl the project or alternatively lease-up the
projectin parallel to the development of other sites in Romania —
subject to leasing progress and financing:

-------------------------------
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Constanta: pipeline project

Plaza has acquired a 26,500 sqm plotin Constanta. The plotis
conveniently located o one of the two main entrance roads to the
city and consists of an existing shopping center and an open park-
ing lot of 8,500 sqm. Constanta is located on the Black Sea bank and
is one of Romania’s main industrial, commémialand tourist centers.

The Group.is investigating the gption of adapting thé:ei(istjng :

-------

shopping center to-create approximately 18,000 sqm of GLA which : .

will be suitable for one big-anchor such as a leading supermarket
and/or.a DIY store together with some:smaller retail units.

e Hion

OVERVIEW

nieen Adviseurs ey



Chennai Chennai

Bangalore Bangalore

*:Under planning and feasibility examination.
*** Under Sale’

In 2015 the Graup sold Koregaon Park Plaza shopping and
snlertainment center, which was completed and opened to the
public.in March 2012 Iocated in the upmerket area of Pune,
Maharashia State. It was the Group’s first completed project
in India.

Currentiy the Groupﬁas interest (through a joint venture with
Elbit Imﬁgmg) in W sites for resldenﬁal deveiopments {ocated
inthe clues Gl Chennzi and Bannalore.

Chennai: pipeline project

OVERVIEW

302,400 o

10,742,000 *
15,089,000

18500 116,457,000

Sang'ah:zré: pipeline project

The lndlan JV Vehicle currently has a 50% stake in a company which

:  has rights on a 54 acre plot in Bangalore. The site located on the
I, '},eastern side of Bangalore, India’s fifth largest city, with a population

of over eight million people. The site can be developed into'a mega
mixed-use project with a-total built area of 310,000 sgm with over
1,100 luxury residential units. In December 2015, the JV signed

an agreement to sell its interest in the project to its Partner, the
transaction is subject to certain conditions precedent and closing
will take place once these conditions are met and no later than

30 September, 2016.

FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES

Initials

Grant Thornton
Atcourtants en Adviseurs B.V.
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Latvia
RaPen B g 49,000 47,463,000 47,463,000 Opened in 01 2009°
Czech Republic 7 - -
LiberecPlaza  Liberes 100% 17,000 9,700,000 9,700,000 Operedn 01 2009+
Hungary 7 -

DavidHouse  Budapest 100% 2,000 2,625,000

7 Arena Plaza Extensmn Budapest 100% 40,000 87,718,000 3,400,000
Greece
Pireas Plaza Athens 100% 38,000 60,038,000 4,050,000
Bulgaria , '
Shumen Plaza Shumen 100% 20,000 37,048,000 975,000

* Operating *** Sold in March 2016

** Under planning and feasibility examination **** linder sale process.

Plaza owns a shopping and entertainment center in Riga,

Latvia, and in March 2016 sold it's shopping center in Liberec,
Czech Republic. In addition the Group owns three developments in
Hungary, Greece and Bulgaria, and one office building in
Hungary.

Riga Plaza: complete and active project

............................................... *8e V : 7 - - a P‘éza‘ Lah"
Riga Plaza is located on the west coast of the Daugava river,

south west of Riga’s city center. Riga, the capital of Latvia and the
largest city in the Baltic States, has a population of approximately
700,000 inhabitants. Riga Plaza has excelient connections to the
city center (a three to five-minute drive), as well as outstanding Liberec Plaza: complete and active project

connections to the nearby main roads. There are several public L. ovuu. et e e e
transport stops (trolleybus and bus) located nearby, with the nearest leerec Plaza is located in the center of Liberec, a city in the north of the
public transport stop located directly in front of Riga Plaza. Riga Gzech Republic, close to the border with Germany and Poland, with a
Plaza is a two-floor shopping and entertainment center with a GLA population of 101,000 inhabitants and catchment area of approximately
of approximately 49,000 sqm, anchored by a hypermarket, an 350,000 inhabitants. The site is situated 20 meters from the main square.
eight-screen multiplex cinema and 2,000 sqm of Fantasy Park. The entire center comprises approximately 17,000 sqm of G%ﬂb NTIFICATION
In 2015, the shopping center continued to perform well with an includes an anchor supermarket, fashion retailers; a squash dn s

occupancy of 97%. New openings during the yearinclude Adidas, center, a Dinopark, a food court and restaurants. The cegter also comprises a

Drogas, Calzedonia, Intimissimi, Aldo, Levis'and Subway. The Grotip - residential area of 514 sqm {five apartments) and 1,100 kg
is in negotiation to sell its 50% share in the center to a third party. The center was opened to the public in March 2009. Occ emall. =
The expected sale price approximates the asset book value. in 2015 was B4%. The center was sold in March 2016. 6a.te 4 tnitials

Grant Thomton
Accountants en Adviseurs 8.V,

PR
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Liberec Plaza, Czech Republic

. David House, Hung

nate metalwork and fine
2800 sqm plot and
ists of four floors; an atrium and a basemé  With atotal
constructed area of approxmately 2, 000 sqm

Arenz Plaza Eﬁe&é%aﬂiiﬁcéapesi): pipe,l,incpmject

dza Extension i Is a plann

.class A” offices. The Arena Plaza Ext
former histaric Kerepesi trotting track in )
The project is under planmng and feasmlhty exammatmn '

OVERVIEW

Arena Plaza Extension, Hungary

?i;ecs'?iaza (Athens): ‘pipélme project

Plaza has purchased 28, OOD sam plct land in Shumen, one of the
largest cmes in nor h-sastern Bulgaria, Sdkm {from Varna. The srte is

ideally sutuated at the crossroads.of the two. malor tp@c MF[CAUOP@
Shumen within ort walkmg distance tothe: city centerp@gp@gEs
station and umvcrsrty. Shumen Plaza is p|anned 1o be

ccmmermal and entertammcnt center with 20, 000 ﬁ%&@ ,
‘ parkmg spaces serving the clty pcpulatyon of. apné it éjéo‘loo 000. 5 s

people and a larger chment ot 2 000 peoplﬂ% prc;ect js Initials

Grent Thomton !
under planning and feasnbtllty exam 1 on. A aunigais on Advissura BV,
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2015 was an important year for Plaza as we progressed our plans to
create a more streamlined, better performing business. Our focus on
the disposal of non-core assets continued as we reduced total assets
to €392 million (31 December 2014: €466 million). This approach
has been allowing us to concentrate on superior assets in our prime
areas of focus within Central and Eastern Europe, whilst at the same
time delivering proceeds to bondholders and creating a stronger bu-
siness for our shareholders.

Performance across our shopping centres has been stable during
the year, with an overall portfolio occupaney level of 94.96% as of
31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: 95.34%)

Rental income fell during the year to €18.7 million compared with
€22.1 million at the end of December 2014, This reduction reflects
the fewer properties managed by Plaza {reduction of €3.1 million)
however, importantly, the quality of the income is now higher.and
more resilient; reflecting the superior portiolio of assets. To thatend,
taken on a like for like basis, rental income of the assets Plaza owns
increased during the period.

Our total foss for the year reduced significantly to €46 million,
compared with €120 million at the end of December 2014. This was
helped by a reduction in our net finance costs. a decrease in the
operating costs of our shopping centres, as well as lower central
administration costs. Crucially, it was also supported by considerably
reduced property write-down costs compared with the previous year,

Over the course of 2015, in line with the restructuring plan agreed

in 2014, we repaid 75% of proceeds from disposals to bondholders,
totalling €19.3 million. Since the restructuring plan was approved,
Plaza has now returned €47 million (of which €19 milion is principal
and the remainder interest) to bondholders, in addition to 13.21% of
shares in the Company. Pleasingly, at the start of 2015, Plaza’s credit
rating by Standard & Poor’s also improved from “D" to “BBB-"on a
local Israeli scale with a stable outlook.

More generally, we have been seeing economic improvement across
our core geographies but the Board remains vigilant to wider macro
economic factors. Without doubt; 2015 was a year of significant
progress and we look ahead towards further improving performance
across our assets in 2016, with construgction starting on key
developments, and taking action to reduce leverage and provide
proceeds to bondholders through the ongoing disposal of nion-core
and matured assets.

Key Events

Plaza undertook the disposal of the following non-core assets during
the-year:
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« On13 May 2015 Plaza announced the agreement to sell its Indian .
shopping mall located in Pune, India, for ci€35 milllon The net
cash proceeds (after repayment of lhe re ated bank loan, pther

7 llabllmes and transacilon costs) from the sale were ¢. €7.4 million

"(525 million INR). '

' On 24 June 2015, Plaza reached an agreement to sell its 46,500 sqm ~
development site in lasi, ananla in two separate transactxpns
{one forthe sale ot 37, 334 sqm and the other for the sale. of ; -
9,166 sqm) fora prnss consnderatlo 1 of €7 3 mllllnn Therewasno
bank debt secured apainst the pro erty. In line with the Company’s
stated reslructunng plan 75% of th gt cash proceeds from the
transactions were distributed fo mpany’s hundhnlders at the‘ .
end of September 2015 asan early principal repayment.

On 10 September 2015 Plaza announced that it has reached an
agreement to sell Palazzo Ducale an office bmldmg 0f 823 sam
GLA in the centre of Bucharest Flomanla for €1 085 mllllon
consistent with the asset's reported book value. In line wnh

the Company’s stated restructuring plan 75% of the net cash
proceeds from the transaction wers dlstributed 1o the Company S
bondholders at the end of September 2015 as an early principal
repayment. _

Plaza’s subsidiary, Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holdings

Limited (in which Plaza holds a 50% stake with its joint venturs
partner, Elbit Imaging Ltd.) (“EPI"), on 2 December 2015 signed

an agreement ta sell 100% of its interestin a special purpose
vehicle which holds a site in Bangalore to'a local investor

The total consideration for the sale is INR 321 Crores {circa

€45.4 million) which will be paid when the transaction closes.
Following this closing, 50% of the proceeds will go to Plaza, of
which 75% will be repaid to the Company’s bondholders in line
with the Company’s stated restructuring plan; The transaction is
subject to certain conditions precedent, and closing will take place
once these conditions are met and no later than 30 September
2016. The investor is providing certain security in order to
guarantee this deadline. - -
0On 14 December 2015, Plaza provided an update on the sale ofthe
Gina property in Bucharest as its Romanian subsidiary concluded -
the transaction to waive its leasing rights in the asset which

has been sold.by the owner. The expected gross cash proceeds
due to Plaza’s subsidiary is circa €2.7. million (out of a total
consideration of €4 million) and the expected net proceeds; after
related taxes and transaction costs, are circa €2.26 million. In line
with the Company’s stated restructuring plan, 75% of the net cash
proceeds from the transaction will be distributed to the Company’s
bondholders by the end of March 2016 as an FOR PEMINFICATION
repayment. ; PURPOSES

* During 2015, Plaza took the strategic decEslon 1 senﬁ.;‘lg nton
Chennal, india asset, rather than to proce ?ﬁf svelopm D
project. On:16 September 2015, EPI (an'In ture of 2 e

Date Initials
Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
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Roy Linden
CFO and Acting CEO

Plaza) obtained a backstop commitment for the purchase of the
Chennal scheme. EPI, which had been in discussions regarding
the sale of the Chennal Project SPV. obtained a commitment that,
subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions precedent, the sale
transaction would be completed by 15 January 2016 (the “Long
Stop Date”) for the consideration of ap roxumately €21.6 million
(INR 1,617 millions}, net of all transactlon related costs. However,
it was agreed that, should completion not take place by the Long
Stop Date, then EPI's stake'in the Chennai Project SPV.wi
increased 1o 100%. Infine with the Sale Transaction

since the local Indian bartner (the “Partner”) fai

transaction by he Long Stop Date. EPI.ha

the Partgers 20% holding in the Indi

Builders Private Limited.

Plaza also achieved a numb

id the shares
tcentre toa
n of €9.5 million,
50% share in its Riga
rty. The sale price is expected
ok value. More information will be
sing of the transaction. '
, Plaza announced that it had received the
permit to develop Timisoara Plaza, a circa 40,000 sqm
1C ppmg and entertainment centre in Tlmlsoara western
omanla A bmdmg financing offer was also agreed with the
Hungarian Export-Import Bank Plc (Exnm bank) for circa 65% of
the project cost. A tender process is now underway to select a
general contractor for the project. which is expected to
complete during the second half of 2017,
On 9 July 2015, Plaza announced that it had received the buil-
ding permit to develoi‘i Belgrade (Visnjicka) Plaza, a 32,000 sgm
GLA shopping and entertainment centre. Located on \fsnjkzka
Street, adja' nt to the Danube River in old Belgrade, the new
development will include approximately 110 retail unlts a
upennarket and a multi-screen cinema complex. Construction
n in 2015, with demolition works and pile works ¢

and skeleton construction underway, the completion is targeted

for the first half of 2017. To date, the Company has agreed

pre-let termsjor circa 45% of the lettable area demonstrating

the significant tenant demand that exists for space in the new
_centre, The Cbm'pany has recaived a bank financing offer for

approxlmately 55% of the construction cost and expects to finalise

in the next quarter

Piaza has also continued to make operational and asset management

_ Drogress across its shopping centre portfolio.

Group management update

* Since the year-end; 6n 28 January 2016, the Board of Plaza took
the decis]bn 1o abpoi,nt Dori Keren and Yitshak {1zzie) Elias to the
roles of Acting Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,

Mr. Ron Hadassi as Chalrman of the Board of Directors following
_ameeting of the Board.

‘ Resgﬁs

As stated, Plaza’s total comprehensive loss for the year narrowed

to €37 million compared with €116 million at the end of December
2014 or a €46 million loss attributable to the owners of the Company
{€120 million: 2014). The most significant factor in this was a large
reduction in 'broperty net write-down casts of €19 million compared
t0 €89 million in 2014 These write-down ‘costs are ascribed mainly
to the revaluation of Liberec Plaza, Czech Republic (€6 mitlion) and
Casa Radio in Romania, while the remaining write=down and loss
from disposéls is mainly due to the sale of Koregaon Plaza in India
(realisation on foreign currency translation adjustments).

Plaza successtully reduced net finance costs; shopping centre
operating costs and central administration costs during the period,
As at 31 December 2015, Plaza had cash and cash equivalents of
€20.4 million, including €4.8 million of cash held as restricted cash
deposits.

Debt restructuring plan

In ling with the debt restructuring plan agreed in 2014, Plaza repays
756% of proceeds from disposals to bondholders. in 2015 Plaza
paid €19.3m to bondholders and, since the restruc
approved in 2014, a total of €47m (of which €19millfon fﬁlE NWCATION
and rest for interest) has been distributed as wel! as 1 21 o of
shares in the Company. For background on this r nithegnton
refer to the Company announcement of 10 Jul){' ] j’
' Date

Initia'ls '
Grant Thornton
Accountants sn Adviseurs B.V.
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Cash flow projection

Following the closing of the Company’s restructuring plan, the The remainin’g NIS'345 million (€81 millioh) of debentures
Company's consolidated financial statements inclode liabilities to
bondholders for the aggregate principal amount of €203 million.

if the Company stnves to achueve the abnve memmned condition in
The following fable sets out the cash flow forecast of the Company the Plan
until: mid-2017 in order to achieve the abovementioned repayments;
as they fall due, Smce parts of senes B debenturesrare held in treasury, the total

According to the Plan, if by 1 December 2016 the Company manages

to repay the principal debentures of NIS 434 million (€102 million),

then the remaining principal payments shall be deferred for an

additional year (“the Deferral”). Since the Plan came into effect, up

until 31 December 2015, the Company has repaid circa NIS although these repayments'ar:g'
89 million (€19 million) of the debentires. mentioned assets in this scenario.

Opening balance of consolidated cash’

Sources of cash during the period

Net proceeds from disposal of operating shopping centres?
Proceeds from disposal of plots held?

Net operating income from shopping centres*

Total sources expected

Items added

Principal repayment of debentures, nets

Interest repayment of debentures, net

Investment in projects under construction®

Repayment of bank facilities in subsidiaries (principal+interest)
General and administrative expenses

Total uses expected

Opening balance - as appeared in the consolidated statemant of financial position, including restricted cash (which will be released upon the disposal of the operating shopping centres).
2016 - Expected net payment from the sale of four shopping centres (Riga, Liberec, Suwaki and Torun).

2016 —The Company expects extensive disposals of plois held in CEE and in India. The main 2016 disposals are expected in tndia and Serbia. In2017; the main disposalsare due in india.

‘As the operating shopping and entertainment centres are 1o be disposed ofin 2016,:in 2017 Net Operating Incoma is generated from the Belgrade Plaza (Vlsn)n:ka MB.JREM tﬂgAﬂON

opened in the first half of 2017, PURPOSES

2016 ~ Dug to be paid by 1 December 2016. The gross amount is expected at €110 million, less the expected repayment due to treasury series B bonds held i# the
2016 ~ Main investment in Belgrade Plaza (Visnjicka project) and in Timisoara project (Romania).

2016 - Immaterial restricted cash amounts. 2017 - Including restricted cash in Visncka of €3 million. st it
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
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NAV , . Liquidity & Financing

The Company's property portfolio (CEE and India) was valued by Fora detauled hqutdlty analysis refer to the debt restructuring section
CGushman and Wakefield as at 31 December 2015.and a summary T nded the year with a consolidated cash position

valuation is shown below. '7 estncted bank deposits) of approxumately €20.4 million,

Net Asset Value pershare decreased to 017 €/share from 0.22 €/ i o 'ollda d ba5|s Worklng capital as at 31 December 2015 totalled
share at the year—end in 2014, o negatlv €98 milhon chiefly due tothe reclassmcation of €80 million

The Company's NAV.w; Vi:culated as follow o . cUrrent assets in the Fmanclal Statements The Company S current

Asset values

_ period and finance eei.;ts incurred, the gearing level increased
Development Assets“ 10 79% in 2015. At the start of 2016, Plaza's credit rating by
‘Plpelme ge’tsw ‘ _ Standard Poors was maintained:on “BBB-" on a lacal Israeli
. Office Building o ; scale with a negative outlook.

Other assets and liab . Strater & Outlook

‘ln 2016 Plaza will continue to focus on improving the performance
hoppmg centre portfolio, applying the Company’s strong
asse ,management capabilities.

There will be additional emphasis on reducing leverage as well as the
further rationalisation and strengthening of the portfofio by disposing
of-nen-core properties.

Focus on Gentral and Eastern Europe will continue, creating a strong-

performing portfolio. Plaza will also look to make progress on its

developments, including Timisoara Plaza and Belgrade (Visnjicka)

. Plaza, and will explore partnership and financing opportunities for

Location Adtive e e 7 the Casa Radio project as well as to advance permits for the Belgrade
= : Plaza (MUP) and Lodz projects.

While the markets in which Plaza operates showed positive economic
. _ z . signs during 2015, the Company remains vigilant towards wider
Poland macro-ecofiomic impacts.

Plaza’s focus remains on building a strong portfolio, unfocking the
value of land through developments where possible, reducing debt
Jevels and delivering on behalf of bondholders and shareholders.

FOR IDE’MH@\T!ON
- CFO andpyghipgryeipé

May 2016

ﬁ

.......

Date lnltlals

Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs B Y.
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Plaza recorded a number of important operational and strategic
achigvements during 2015 and took action to improve the
performance of its portfolio as well as the wider business.

Highlights for the financial year included:;

* Operations: Improving performance of its operating shopping .
and entertainment centres focused on Central and Eastern Euroﬁe,
and achieving key development milestones at Timisoara Plaza and
Belgrade (Visnjicka) Plaza.

* Disposals: focus remained on disposing of non-cora asseisto.

reduce leverage and provide payments to bondhoiders in line with .
~_permits,

the restructuring plan. Since the approval of the restructuring
plan, circa €47 million has now been paid to bondholders..

«. Financial position: As at 31 December 2015, Plaza h'éd carsh'_an,d '

cash equivalents of €20.4 million including €4.8 million of cash
held as restricted cash deposits.

_Llocation  Naw g sset

Operating Shopping and Entertainment Centers

Retall & k

Suwa!k; Plaza .
‘ nt scheme

Retail &
entertainment scheme

Zgorzelec,
Poland

Zgorzelec Plaza

Retall &

 Tow un, : :
la entertamment scheme;

~ Torun Plaza

Retall &
entertainment scheme

Liberec,
Czech Rep.

Liberec Plaza

Riga,
Latvia

 Riga Plaza .
entertainment scheme

Develupment Assets

:"BuCﬁafést, szed-use retan

Romania

,: Casa R dio

Retail &
entertainment scheme

Timisoara,
Romania

Timisoara Plaza

*all completion dates of the projects are subject to securing externai financing and securing sufficient tenants demand.
Projects that are classified as “Under planning and feasibility examination™ also have potential to be sold as land.

** Following year-end, effective ownership increased to 50%
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 in Poland, Czech
an ofﬂce bmldmg in Hungary,

40,000
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As of the repomng date, Plaza has 21 assets in nine countr s,

i lgana Greece and
nts Plaza retams the

ublic (égreed 1o be sold) and Latvua as well s

'The develupment projects are at various stages of the development

| cle from land holdmgs through to those with plannmg and

The Company s current assets and pipelme projects are summarised -

in the table below

7  Stis'
clive '
ership%

Operating, opened in
March 2010

Operating, opened in
March 2009

Construction scheduled to

commence in ' Tl@‘g
scheduled foré&t@g Rpgg% .

(f zfnt‘fh; g

Da a initiale

Grant Thomiton .
éceeun!ants en Adviseuts B




Assel/Project Location Natureofasset

Development Assets (Cont.)

permitting phase

Belgrade, Retail & Construction scheduled
(Visnjicka ) Serbia entertainment scheme commence in 2015; completion

scheduled for H1 2017

Belgrade Plaza

Budapest, Office 2,000 100 Operational office
Hungary

David House

Kielce Plaza Kielce, Retail & 25,000 100 Planning and feasibility
Poland entertainment scheme examination

In p]’énniﬂg :andf
 feasibility pihrase' 7

Leszno Plaza Leszno, Retail & 24,700 100 Planning and feasibility
Poland entertainment scheme examination

. Planning i feasnbllity ;
7 examlnatlon .

Arena Plaza Budapest, Office scheme 22,000 100 Plannmg and feasmlllty

- Extension Hungary (land use right) examination

Planning and feasiblhty' ,
- exammatlon '

Constanta Plaza Constanta, Retail & 26,500 100 PIannmg and feasibility
Romania entertainment scheme examination

100  Planning and feasibility
_ examination

Pireas Plaza Athens, Retail/Offices 15,000 100 Planning and feasibility

Greece examination
Bangalors,  Residential scheme 218500 25 Planning and feasibility
nda ' ' ' ex’amlnation'
o ' T FOR IDENTIFICATION
Chennaj** Chennai, Residential scheme 302,400 40 Plannlng and feaslbllltyPURpOSES ;
India examlnatmn

LcV ?WWW

Date Initials
Grant Thornton v
Bl dviseurs
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Details of these activities by country are as follows:

Poland

Plaza owns and opérates three completed shopping and entertain-
ment centres across Poland, with an average occupancy of 93.8%.

Torun Plaza, which was completed and opened in late 2011,
comprises approximately 40,000 sgm of GLA and is Plaza’s tenth
completed centre in Poland. Occupancy level increased to 96.08%
at year end. The centre reported a slight decrease in footfall (3.2%),
while the turnover remained stable compared to 2014,

Suwalki Plaza, comprising approximately 20,000 sqm of GLA
with tenants such as H&M, Rossmann, New Yorker, Reserved and
Cinema Lumiere, continues to perform well. Occupancy decreased
slightly to 96.5% (2014: 97.7%) and turnover increased by 2.5%
during the year. New stores KIK, Kinderplaneta and Pink opened
during 2015 and most existing tenants have signed lease. renewals,
with the fifth anniversary of the opening of the centre having taken
piace in May.

In Zgorzelec Plaza, the 13,000 sqm shopping and entertainment
centre has experienced an occupancy decrease, reaching 88.91%
(2014: 95.2%), attributable mainly to the closing of the supermarket
unit (Stokrotka). Despite that, after successful discussions with
tenants, most of them chose to stay in the centre. Positively;
turnover has increased by 2.8% compared to 2014 while footfall
remained stable,

Feasibility and planning studies-were also progressed at
Lodz Plaza (comprising approximately 35,000 sqm of GLA) and
amendment of the local master plan'is underway.

Plaza also owns a residential plot in Lodz; Poland, which is being
sold in stages: 3,340 sqm was sold in 2015 and another 5,200 sqm
has been sold since the end of the period, at the beginning of 2018.
The rest of the plot (approximately 24,700 sqm) is expected to be
sold in-2016.

Hungary

Plaza has a transferable land use right to a site adjacent to the

Arena Plaza, on which it plans to develop a 40,000 sqm office
complex extension to the existing shopping centre. In fine with
Plaza’s cautious approach to development, the Company will hold off
on the commencement of any construction until it is satisfied that

a recovery in the Budapest office market and a general rise in both
occupancy rates and rental levels is underway.

David House, an office building on Andrassy Boulevard, in Buda-
pest, remains tinder the Company’s ownership.
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Czech Repuhlic

Turnover at Liberec Plaza shopping and entertainment

centre (approximately 17,000 sqm GLA), owned and managed by the
Company, improved by 10.6% compared to 2014, while occupancy
slightly decreased to 83.7% (2014: 84%).

In September 2015, one of Plaza’s wholly owned subsidiaries

won a tender to buy the bank loan to the wholly owned SPV of
Liberec Plaza. The €20.4 million bank facility was provided by two
commercial banks to which the Company agreed to pay and paid an
amount of €8.5 million, reflecting a discount of 58%. The Company
recorded a €11.9 million profit on the discount in these consolidated
financial statements, included as finance income.

In March 2016, Plaza agreed to sell its subsidiary holding in Liberec
Plaza for €9.5 million. In line with the terms of the agreement,

the buyer has deposited 15% of the consideration in escrow The
due diligence process, final closing and settlement is expected to
conclude by the end of March 2016, Upon completion of the Liberec
Plaza disposal, Plaza will receive €8.5 million on account of the bank
loan it previously purchased. Out of the remaining procesds, at Jeast
75% will be distributed to the Company’s bondholders by the end of
June this vear, in line with the Company’s stated restructuring plan.

Bomania

Plaza holds a 75% interest in a joint venture with the Governpiment
of Romania to develop Casa Radio (Dambovita), the largest
development plot.in central Bucharest. The 467,000 sqm complex;
including a 90,000 sqm GLA shopping mall and leisure centre,
offices, a hotel and a convention and conference hall. is planned
for the site. The Company has obtained the PUD (Detailed Urban
Permit) and the PUZ (Zonal Urban ‘Plan) for the Dambovita Gentre
Multifunctional Complex.

In light of the financial crisis, and in.order to ensure a construction
process that is aligned to current market conditions, the Company
initiated preliminary discussions with the Authorities (which

are shareholders in the SPV and a parly to the Public Private
Partnership) regarding the future of the project. The Company

has also officially notified-the Authorities that it will be seeking to
redefine some of the terms in the existing PPP.contract, including
the timetable, structure and project milestones. Please see note 8 (d)
of the Financial Statements for further information on-the project,

InJuly 2015, the Company received the building permit to

develop Timisoara Plaza, a circa 40,000 sqm GLA EGRARENAIFICATION

ania. A tRRIRRESES

entertainment centre in Timisoara, western R
financing offer has also been agreed with a co

merps @ I\fohomto
circa 65% of the project cost. The construction is dAo -
commence in 2016, and completion is expecteé,' tz 21 ey

Initials
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Latvia

and Kochi. Under the terms of the agreement, Plaza acquired a

o 47.5% stake in Elbit India Real Estate Holdings Limited, which had

In Riga Plaza, which is 50% owned by Plaza, while occupancy

decreased slightly to 97. 02% (2014: 99.5%), turnover increased by
8.6% compared to the pre ear, and.footfall increased by 7.2%.

The Company t

Serhia

In July 2015, the Company received the building permit to develop
Belgrade Plaza (Visnjicka) (previously known by the project name
Sport Star Plaza), a 32,000 sqm of GLA shopping and entertainment
centre. Construction commenced in 2015 and completion is antici-
pated in 2017. The demolition, excavation and piling: works have been
completed. Reflecting a strong demand for modem retail space, 45%
of the centre’s available retail spaceWas pre-Iet as of the reporting
sl letting progress the Company has

a fimanting: offer for 55% of the construction cost.

Plaza owns a building in the central administrative district of
Belgrade, which housed the former Yugoslavian Government's
Federal Ministry of Internal Affairs. Development plans for the
building comprise a shopping gallery, an apartment-hotel and a
business centre, totalling circa 72,000 sqm of gross building area.
Processes 1o secire the refevant local planning and permitting
approvals are underway.

On 1 March 2013, Serbia was granted candidate status to the
European Union, The Company beheves his will Slgnmcantly
increase the flow.ofi tional capltal into the country, enabling its
g G ted Serbian development pipeline, and the assets as
comp!ete, to'benefit from an anticipated growth in investor
nterest. IriMarch 2016, a joint venture between two international

~investors bought the two biggest shopping centras in Belgrade,

demonstrating strong interest in the investment market there.

India

In May 2015, the Company signed an agreement to seli the SPY
holding Koregaen Park Plaza, the retail, entertainment and office
scheme located une, |ndia for cxrca €35 mlllmn (2,500 milhon

restructy g plan all the
were retamed wathin the

tiire with Elbst Imagmg (the
cisin Banga!arei Ghennai

) 1o develop
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 the Partners 20% holdings in the Indian com

‘existing stakes in mixed-use projects in India, in conjunction with

local Indian partners.

The JV projects are as follows:

Bangalore - This residential project, owned in an equal share
between the JV and a prominent lacal developer, is located on the
eastern side of Bangalore, India’s fifth largest city with a population
of more than eight million inhabitants. In March 2008 the JV entered
into an amended and reinstated share subscription and framework
agreement, with a third party, and a wholly owned indian subsidiary
of the JV.which was designated for this purpose (“SPV"), to acquire,

- through the SPV; up to 440 acres of the plot in certain phases as set

forth.in the Amended Framework Agreement.

As of 31 December 2015, the SPV holds jaint development rights in
approximately 54 acres of the plot for a total aggregate consideration
of approximately INR 2,843 million (€40 million). In addition, the
SPV has paid to the Partner advances of approximately INR 2,536
million (€35 million) on account of future acquisitions by the SPV of
a further 51.6 acres.

In-December 2015, the JV signed.an agreement to sell 100% of
its interest inthe SPV to the Partner. The total consideration for
the sale upon completion of the transaction'is INR 321 Crores
(approximately €45.4 million) which will be paid at transaction
closing. The transaction is subject to certain conditions precedent,
and closing will take place once these conditions are met and no
later than 30 September 2016. The Investor has provided certain
security in order to guarantee the aforementioned deadline.

Chennai - A residential development, 'which is 80% owned by the Jv
and 20% by a prominent local developer. The Chennai Project was
designated at the end of 2014 as a project for development. During
2015, due to changes in the Group's activities and objectives, the
Company decided not to develop the Chennai project but rather to
dispose of it in its current form. In this respact, on 16 September
2015, the JV obtained a backstop commitment for the purchase of
the Chennai, India Scheme.

The JV, which has been in discussions regarding the sale of the
Chennai Project, has obtained a commitment that, subject to the

fulfitment of certain conditions precedent, the sale transaction will

be completed by 15 January 2016 (the “Long Stop Date”) for the
co"n'si'deraﬁon .of approximately €21.6 million (INR 1,617 millions),

net of all fransaction related costs. If completion does not take place

by the Long Stop Date, then the JV's stake in fhe (ORIDENTEIGATION
be mcreased to 100%. In line with the Sale Trinsaction RIFRPGSES

since the Iocal Indian partner (the “Partner”) fliled lete the
transactmn by the Long Stop Date, the JV.ha ex ?%
Inmals

Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
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Results

During 2015, Plaza remained focused on the execution of its strategy
to dispose of the non-core and mature assets in its portfolio, to
reallocate capital to its care yielding assets and to reduce debt levels.

The Company has designated its properties into three types:

» Completed trading properties;
* Projects scheduled for construction; and
* Plots in the planning phase.

In respect of its completed trading property projects, the Company
still faces material uncertainties in respect of the time required

to sell the properties. However, the Company has not changed its
business model and it is actively seeking buyers at appropriate
pricing. Therefore, it is clear from the Company’s perspective that
these completed properties are trading properties, rather than
investment properties.

in respect of the sites held, which are not intended to be develaped
in the near future, the Company is actively looking for buyers and
does not hold the land passively with the intention of gaining from

a potential value increase. Sites scheduled for construction are
intended to be developed and sold in the normal course of business
once circumstances allow. For this reason we also believe that these
are appropriately classified as'trading properties: As at 31 December
2015, as in previous years, the trading properties were classified as
non-current assets in the Statement of Financial Position:

Income comprised rental income from the operating shopping centres.

In 2015, Plaza generated €18.7 milfion of income compared to
€22.1 million in 2014, This includes rental income and service
charges collected from the tenanis. The rental income in 2015 was
€13.1'million while in 2014 it was €15.4 million. The decrease is a
result of the strategic sale of Kragujevac Plaza in mid-2014

{c. €2.3 million of income recorded in 2014) and also the sale

of other undeveloped projects. A 10% increase in NOI was recor-
ded across the shopping centre portfolio (from €14.9 million to
€16.4 million), including company share in NOI from the commercial
centre of Riga, Latvia, but excluding the impact of the 2014 sale of
Kragujevac Plaza. Income from the Group's Fantasy Park operation,
which provides gaming and entertainmant services in Plaza’s active
shopping centres, decreased to €0.7 million (from €1.7 million in
2014} following the operational clostre of some units in the Group’s
shopping centres. Before the reporting date the last tnit was sold as
part of the non-core business disposal process.

The disposal of Kragujevac Plaza also led to a reduction in operating
costs from €8.5 million in 2014 to €6.5 million in 2015, while the
Fantasy Park operating costs decreased from €2.2 million in 2014 to
€1 million in 2015 following the clostires.
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anet ﬁnance cost '0ff€35.6:ﬁiiiﬁbn in 2014,

A write down of trading properties amounted to €20 million in 2015
(€87.million in 2014), comprising projects in Romania (€9.2 million);
india {€1.5 million); Poland (€6 million); the Czech Republic

(€6.2 million); Hungary (€1 million) and others. This was partly
offset by an uplift in the value of Belgrade Plaza of (€6 million).

The upliftin relation to joint ventures classified-as equity accounted
investments amounted 1o €0.9 million in 2015, related to Riga Plaza
{Latvia), compared to a net €1.7 million.write down in 2014 (related
to Plaza’s Indian project (Chennai) slightly offset by the €0.4 milhon
increase in the value of Riga Plaza (Latvia).

The Company's active efforts to further rediice costs resulted in
administrative costs decreasing by 6% to €7 million (2014:

€7:4 million), comprising a lower scale expense for professional
service providers and a lower head count. With the elimination of
circa-€0.5 million severance payments for the two resigning GEOs
during the year, administrative costs amounted to €6.5 million.
Expenses for 2016 are expected to be in the region,o'f €6 million,

Other net income 1ncrease to €5 5 million from' \ rI in 2014 chiefly
as a result of a one-time gain recognised dueto the Kochr project

in India (€4.7 million) and a settlement wrth the potential buyer of
Koregaan Park (€0.7 million) {2014 - £2.3 mrllron insurance pay out
received in connection with the Koregaerr Park fi re incident, offget
mainly by expenses resulting from the impairment of other assets
(mainly Palazzo Du Calle office In Romania €0.7 million) and a loss
on the disposal of other assets (£1.5 millidn)),

Restructuring costs were incurred in connectron with the Company’s
debt restructuring process in 2014 '

A net finance oss of €31, million was recorded ;5’{ compared fo

Finance lncome mcreased t0 €14.3 million (2014 €2 ), iargelyr
attributable to the settlemem of bank loan debt at a

million) related 10 prorects in the Gzech Republrc and R

Finance expenses Increased from €36.8 m:l!ron to €45 21
mainly comprrsmg

. Interest Expense on debentiires (£13. 9 mrlhon compared
£4.6 million in 2014 where most debentures were presentac
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss), and n0n~cash amomsatr
the discount (the differsnce between farr v
valie) of £10.8 millmn (€0.8 millior

. €5 1. million mtere x|

i rllron in 2014. )?URP
. » Foreign exc nge losses on debentures €14.8 mrllron n‘?ﬁh’ - J
in 2014).
Date
tanis en Advi
BUSINESS REVIEW Aecountants on Advise
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A tax expense of €1 miflion recorded in the consolidated income
statement against the tax benefit of €1.3 million in'2014 that largely
represented the creation of deferred tax assets attributed 1o the
Polish operations.

As a result of the above, the loss for the year amounted toc.
€46 million in 2015, compared to €120 million in 2014. Basic and
diluted loss per share for 2015 was €0.07 (2014 €0.39).

Balance sheet

The balance sheet as at 31 December 2015 showed total assets of
€392 million, compared to total assets of €466 million at the end of
2014. The decrease was mainly driven by the write down of trading
properties and equity accounted investaes, as well as the disposal of
assets and cash used for repayment of debt

The Company's consnhdated cash position (mcluding restncted bank
“deposits, short term deposns and held fortradmg financial assats)
decreased to €20.4 million (31 December 2014: €41.7 million) after
the repayment of bond principal and interest, and the buy out of the
:bank loan. Gearing increased to 79% (31 December 2014 /4% asa
result of zmpalrment losses and ﬂnance costs lncurred dunng the year,

Trading property' alues decraased from €371 mnllon in 2014 to
€318 million in. 201 5 as result ofstrategic asset dlsposals (mainly.
Koregaon Park lndna) ‘and‘ s write downs booked in the period.
~ Atthe end of the vear, tradm jpertles were classified as non-

- operaﬁng:asset currenﬂy classiﬁed under this headmg'is R
The remamder are the two develnpment sites in India (B:
'and Chennal) The va!ue has mcreased by €7 million since 2014
comprising a €1 million uphft value and by £1.7 million due to

. exchange rate movements.

i, Tntal bank bnrmwmgs (Inng and short term) amounted t0
€102 5 mnhon (31 Dece' ber 2014 €150.8 million)

ron bank financing, Plaza has a balance sheet liability of
181.6 million {with an adjusted par value of circa €203 mitlion) from
issuing debentures on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange and to Polish insti-
tutional investors. These debentures are presented at amortised cost,

, Ptoyisionfs arﬁé'bnnkéd in-connection with the Company’s Casa Radio
p:rn}'ept in Bucharest Romania:

BUSINESS REVIEW

" (2014 4 mlllmn) owmg to the payment of

1 Generai Baekgmtmd

Other current liabilities have decreased from €13.2 million to
€7.million in 2015. The decrease is mainly attributable to the
execution of sale of Koregaon Park in India.

The total equity decreased from €120 million in 2014 to €83 million
in 2015 due to a €46 million loss suffered mainly from write downs,
NIS strengthening against.the EUR, bonds discount amortisation and
from a niet €9 million increase in the translation reserve connected

- to the Indian operations of the Company, stemming from the

strengthening of the Indian Rupee against the Eura.

Cash flow (including cash flow disclosures
as reQuir,e,d_h:y Israeli Securites Regulations)

Cash flow provided from (and used in) operational activities in 2015
was negative at €2.6 million (2014: positive cash flow of €8.3 ml"IOﬂ)
mainly due to rapayment of ather liabilities associated with the Koregaon
Park shoppmg centre, and the sale of a shopping centre in Serbia.

Cash flo Vprowdted from investment acﬁvmes in 2015 remalned Iow

ed €26 million (2014 nagative €1.4 million) owing to the
dlsposal of the nmce bunding in Romania and net sale of held for
tradlng marketable debt securmes ' '

Cash flow used in fi nancing acnvmes in 2015 totalled £17.9 mnllmn
million and
the dlscount of 58% over the bank loan purchased inthe

'Czéch Republic. In additmn,2014 acnvltles mcluded rights |ssuance
net proceeds of €18.8 million.

Disclusure in accordance with Regulation 10(8)14 of tne lsraell

; Securmes Regulanons (periudic and immadiale reporis), 5730-1 970

C ng tn the abnvemennoned regulanon upon exsstence of
defined in the regu!atmn tne Cnm‘ any rs bliged
nnts pro;ected cash flo

Upon such warning signs, the Company | }
projected cash flow for the period of 24 onths
period, and also to provide explanationston di
previously disclosed estimated projecte tg

cash flows:

Date
Grant Thornion
Accountants en Adviseurs B.
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2. Projected cash flow

According to the Restructuring Plan, a three and a half year

period deferral of payment was granted. {f by 1 December 2016

the Company manages to repay NIS 434 {circa €102 million) of
debentures, then the remaining principal payments shall be deferred
for an additional ane year. Since the Plan entered into effect, until 31
December 2015, the Company has repaid circa NIS 89 milfion (€19

million) out of the debentures. The remaining NIS 345 million (circa
€81 million) of the principal bonds (through the sale of assets),
together with the interest of approximately €13 million are stili to be
paid up to 1 December 2016, if the Company strives to achieve the
abovementioned condition in the Plan.

The Company regards this scenario as the most probable; and has

Csh and Cash equivalents - Opening halance
Solo resources:

Cash inflow from operating activity:

proceeds from selling trading and investment properties

Cash inflow from finance activity:

Distributions from operating subsidiaries {through loan repayments)
Release of restricted cash due to disposal of subsidiaries

Total sources:

Expected use

Cash outflow from operating activity:
Administrative expenses

Gash outflow from ‘investment activity:
Investment in equity in projects

Cash outflow from finance activity:

Principal repayment to Noteholders

Interest repayment to Noteholders

Total uses:

Cash and cash equivalents - Closing balance:
Restricted deposit

1 Gonsolidated cash position, withon restricted cash in subsidiarles in a total amount of
€8 million, due to bank facilities restrictions. The Company is expected to bs able to
collect all remaining cash in subsidiaries upon exit.

20186: Comprised from the exercisa of four out of the five shopping centres in GEE the
Company owns, and also plots, mainiy in Serbia and India. 2017: Mainly from plat
disposals in Indfa and Poland.

Based on expected Net Operating Incame (“NOI*) from subsidiaries, less expected
payment to bank financing in subsidiaries. The Company sxpects to retrieve the funds
through repayment of existing intercompany loans.: The vast amoimt of the retrieve is
from Polish operating shopping malis,
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accordingly reclassified €79.6 million of its debentures as short term,
aithough these repayments are not falling due, unless the below
mentioned assets in this scenario are disposed.

The materialisation, occurrence consummation and execution of the
events and transactions and of the Assumptions on which the pro-
jected cash flow is based, including with respect to the proceeds and
timing thereof, although probable, are not certain and are subject

to factors beyond the Company's control as well as to the consents
and approvals of third parties and certain risks factors. Therefore,
delays in the realisation of the Company's assets and investments or
realisation at a lower price than expected by the Company, as well as
any other deviation from the Company's Assumptions, could have an
adverse effect on the Company’s cash flow and the Company'’s ability
10 service its indebtedness in a timely manner

2 152.4
3 7.6
4 7.2

178.3
4 5.8 5.0 ¢
5 16.9 1.0 .
6 107.5 14.7 :

Management eshmatlon based on last yaars actual cash restriction halances

2016: Cornpnsed mainly from mv&stme : the
and ﬂmisoara (Romama)

Assummg EUR/NIS

Into consideration also

used for the early. prepaym
. Restriicturing Plan. o

Qrant Thoriton
Agtiuntants wn Adviseurs

Refer to remark 6 in respect of exchange rates.
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3. Projected salo cash flow

In.its prospectus dated 27-May 2014, the Gompany published its

expected.cash flow for the following 24 months. Below is a summary

table of comparison between forecasted and actual cash flow, with
explanations on the differences on cash flow published for the
18 months period ending December 31, 2015.

Cash and Cash equivalents - Opening balance
Solo resources:
Cash inflow from operating activity:
Proceeds from selling trading and investment properties
Cash inflow from finance activity:
. -Distributions from operating subsidiaries (through foan repayments)
. Right issuance
Other financial income
__Total sourcas:
Expected use
Gash outflow from operating activity:
~ Administrative expenses
Cash outflow from investment activity:
~ Investment in equity in projects
Gash outflow from finance activity:
- Principal repayment to Noteholders
- Interest repayment to Noteholders
Principal repayment to Noteholders
_ Total uses:
_ Cash and cash equivalents - Closing balance (Solo):
Restricted deposit

 The below explains the main reasons for deviation bet
T Company instead has
mance of the shopping malis, in order to
3 ‘Lower due to tenant improvements cost incurred in operating shopping centras in the

period.

4. Actual right issuance —net of total restructuring plan costs of circa €4.5 million.

BUSINESS REVIEW

6 Decreased as a result of low le
7 Refer to remark 1 above.

8_Actual'amount includes repayment of Liberec ltf_iej
million.

Grant Thornton v
Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
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Hungary

Poland

Arena Plaza Extension
David House

 TonunPlaza

Zgorzelec Plaza
Suwalki Plaza

 Lodz Plaza

 Kieloe Plaza

Czech Hepubllc

' Romanla '

l.atvia
Greece

India

Bulgaria

Serbia

TOTAL**

* Asset was valued with the comparative sales price method: no value at completion was

estimated

Liberec Plaza

Gasa Radio Plaza

Timisoara Plaza
Miercurea Ciuc Plaza
Slatina Plaza
Constanta Plaza
Brasov

Riga Plaza
Pireas-Plaza

Bangalore
Chennai

Shumen Plaza

Belgrade Plaza (MUP)
Belgrade (Visnjicka) Plaza

" * Rounded to nearest thousand

6,650,000

2,625,000
96,300,000
13,450,000
43,075,000
7,400,000

3,600,000

15,725,000

87,075,000
8,940,000
2,460,000
1,000,000
3,300,000
1,990,000

45,000,000
4,475,000

14,206,000
10,031,000

1,025,000

13,650,000
18,850,000

400,827,000
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3,400,000
2,625,000

97,725,000
12,050,000
43,250,000
7,400,000
3,325,000

9,700,000

81,450,000
9,400,000
2,400,000
1,000,000
2,150,000
1,990,000

47,463,000
4,050,000

15,089,000
10,742,000

975,000

13,625,000
29,625,000

399,434,000

Notes:

« All values of land and project assume full planning cnnsent for th
* Plaza Centers has 2 50% Interest In the Riga Plara shappmg cent J

87,353,000
2,625,000

96,300,000
13,450,000
43,075,000
70,911,000
70,158,000

15,725,000

555,138,000
72,283,000
14,276,000
30,151,000

3,300,000

147,039,000

45,000,000

73141000

109,646,000

18,710,000

153,831,000
91,299,000

* Plaza Centers has a 75% share of Casa Radio Plaza
» Plaza Centers has a25% share of Bangalore
* Plaza Centers has 2 40% share of Chennai.

= Alithe figures reflect Plaza’s share
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86,718,000
2,625,000

97,725,000
12,050,000
43,250,000
70,811,000
60,533,000

9,700,000

578,711,000
70,320,000

47,463,000

, sn,

‘38 mm 1

116, 457 000
Comparable*

163,831,000
91,299,000

Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs B




Plaza Centers’ Board Oversight of company
strategy and all project

development decisions

Wide-ranging property
development expertise

Review and approval
of business plan and
budgets

Active management
and monitaring of
development risks

Senior Management | , Bperienced

- . - ' , property development
professionals with global
property development
expertise '

Responsible for sourcing
_ development projects

* Developmentof
_ business plans

Overseeing the
__management of
. deveiopment projects

Local Country Management
- DoriKeren Rabia Shihab

Gountry Director , Country Director
Poland and Latvia , Serbia

Day-to-day'management
of local operations and

Luc Ronsmans
Country Director
The Netherlands, Romania,
Bulgaria and Greece

Yitshak lzzie Elias
Gountry Director
India

* Both roles effective on 1 April, 2016 while Dori Keren will become CEG on 1 Ja?uary, 7201 7 untants on Adviseurs &
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, Board of Dlrectors and
Semor management

Chairman

Mr. Ron Hadassi, Non-executive diractor (male, 51, Israeli)

Mr. Ron Hadassi has broad experience in leading real estate firms.
Mr. Hadassi currently is the senior manager of Bronfman-Fisher
Group, engaged in industry, real estate, finance and retail and holds
various positions within the Bronfman-Fisher Group. He also serves
on the Board of Directors of the controlling shareholder and Carmel
Winery and he is the chairman of Eibit Medical Technologies Ltd.
Mr. Hadassi holds a BA in economics, political science, an LLB and
an MBA from the Tel Aviv University. Mr. Hadassi was appointed as
an executive director on 8 July 2014 and elected as chairman and
non-executive director on 28 November 2014, Mr. Hadassi may

article 23.6 of the Articles, provided that Mr. Hadassi has expressed
his avallability for-a subsequent term of office.

Executive director

Mr. Nadav Livni, (male, 42, British)

Mr. Nadav Livni is the founder of The Hillview Group, an
independent privately owned merchant bank based in London.
Since 2006, The Hillview Group has expertly managed over $3.5
billion of strategic capital market transactions across Central and

Eastern Europe, Russia, Africa and USA. Mr. Livni previously worked

at Deutsche Bank, Goldman Sachs and KPMG. He also serves

on the board of EI. Mr. Livni is a qualified chartered accountant,
holds a Bachelor of Commerce (honours in economics), a Master
of Science (finance), and is a guest speaker on the topics of private
equity and real estate investment at London Business School.

Mr. Livni was appointed as a non-executive director on 8 July 2014
and elected as an executive director on 28 November 2014.

Mr. Livni may periodically be re-elected by the Annual General
Meeting pursuant to article 23.6 of the Articles, provided that

Mr. Livni has expressed his availability for a subsequent

term of office.

* Mr. Shalhav resigned his position as a non-executive director on 8 March
2016 becoming effective on 8 June, 2016,
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periodically be re-elected by the Annual General Meeting pursuant to
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Mr. David "Dékel is currently a nonéeXebut"

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Marco Hahib Wichers (male, 57, Dutch)

Mr. Marco Habib Wichers is currently the chief executive officer of
Branco Europe B.V. Between 1994 and 2013 he acted as the CEO of
AMGEA Holding B.V. Between 1988 and 1995, he acted as the CEQ of
Branco International (nc. New York (a manufacturing company) and
between 1983 and 1995 he acted as the CEQ and owner of Cravat
Club, Inc. New York (a manufacturing company). Mr. Wichers holds a
degree in economics and marketing from the International University
of Hospitality Management. Mr. Wichers was appointed as non-
executive director on 1 November 2006. In November 2011, he was
appointed as chairman of the Board. The General Meeting appointed
Mr. Wichers as non-executive director, in accordance with the Dutch
Act on Management and Supervision (Wet bestuur en toezicht) on

20 November 2012. Mr. Wichers has been re-elected in accordance
with article 23.6 of the Articles, by the General Meeting on 8 July 2014.
Mr. Wichers may periodically be re-elected by the Annual General Meeting
pursuant to article 23.6 of the Articles, provided that Mr. Wichers has
expressed his availability for a subsequent term of office.

Mr. Sarlg Shalhav (male, 42, Dutch)* :

Mr. Sarig Shalhav is a lawyer and tax counsel and has extensive
experience on commercial real estate and real estate finance
transactions and advises multinationial businesses, government
agencies, private equlty houses and banks n a  wide range of real

from Manchester University, an LLM:deg:ree
law and a PhD in in’gematiqnal taxgﬁcn f;dm ]

penod'cally be re-electedr yr he Annual Genera M
amcle 236 of the Articles, provided that Mr. Shalha
his availabllnty for a subsequent term of off ice.

Mr. Dai:id,,l)gkel {male, 51, ﬂutch)k

.6 of the Amcles provided
expressed his availability for a subsequent term

(lgf{& .
Grant Thorr

Accountants.en Advisel!
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Senior management

Mr. Dori Keren (46) BA, MBA, BB in Accounting

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Dori Keren joined Plaza Centers in 2006 as financial director
of Poland and Latvia and was appointed Paland country director

in 2013. From April 2016 Mr. Keren serves as Acting CEO of the
Gompany. Prior joining to Plaza Centers Mr. Keren worked in Israel
for 10 years in variety of financial jobs in-positions which accompany
business activity as economist, financial controller and GFO,

Mr. Keren holds BA in Economics and Polifical Sciences from the
Tel Aviv University, an MBA degree from the Ben-Gurion University,
and BB Post Degree in Accounting from College of Management
Academic Studies.

Mr. Hoy Linden (39) BBA, CPA (USA, Ist), Former Chief
Financial Dfﬂcer Former Acting CEO

Mr. Roy Lmden joined the Company in November 2006 and has

~ acted as chief frnancial officer since then and acting GEO in 201 5
until 31 March, 2016. Prior to joining the Company, he served as
manager in the real estate desk of KPMG in Hungary for nearly
four years, specialising in auditing, busmess advrsory, local and
rnternational taxatron for companres operat ng throughout ths CEE

' admlmstratron from the College of Management and an MBA from
Tel Aviv Unrvers ity and he is a certified public accountant in lsrael

Mr, Uzr Eli (40) LLB, Aﬂomey at Law (lsr) MBA

fo corporate clients (mainly hr-tech and bio-tech companies and
venture capital funds) in all aspects of corporate governance, and
representation in various transactions, such as financing and M&A
fransactions and other wide varieties of licensing and technology

o transactlnns Mr EII holdsa LLB degree and an MBA degree from the
Cnllege of Managemont Academic Studies and he is.an attorney at aw.
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fane Ton.Ltd. Mr. Shihab holds Bachelor degree of economics from

: holds & BBA degreo in accountmg and busrness

Mr. Guy Lavan (38) BSc, Chief Engineer

Mr. Guy Lavan joined the Company in 2007, he acted as Dambovita
Center Deputy Execution Manager. Since 2013 he was acting as
Deputy Chief Engineer and as of April: 2015 he was appointed as the
Group Chief Engineer and head of construction. Prior to joining the
Gompany Mr. Lavan was advising to major multinational developers
and contractors in construction of shopping centers in Romania,
the Israeli international airport and Intel Factory in'Israel. Mr. Lavan
holds BSc Degree from the Technical University.of Budapest

Mr. Luc Ronsmans (65) MBA, The Netherlands and Romania
Country Director

Mr. Luc Ronsmans joined the Europe Israel Group in 1999, Located
in Amsterdam and Bucharest he acts as manager for European
operations for both the company and its group affiliates. Prror o

_joining the Europe Israel Grotip, Mr. Ronsmans was aclive in the
'bankrng sector, holding managenal positions with Manufacturers

Hanover Bank, Contmen;al Bank (Chrgaco) -AnHyp Bank and Bankr

- Naggelmar:hers in Belgium.

Mr. Rabia Smhah (37) BA CPA Czech Republlc Serhia

'Counlry Direclor 7
' Mr Rabia Shihab jolned Plaza Centers June 2008 as fmancra|
' drrector of Romanra and Bulgaria, From:

vember 2011 he has been
servmg as the i nancra! director of Serbia and the Czech Repub C.

On March 2014 he was addrtronal!y appointed as the country ;
rnanager Priorj 1ommg Plaza Genters:he servad as financial controlle

the Hebrew Umversrty of Jerusaler.

Mr. Gahor Latmann (36) BSc CEE Leasing Director
Mr Gabor Lattmann romed the Company in 2002, he acted in

fvanous pusmons in the company Smce 2005 he was actmg as

as of Apnl 201 5 he was anpornted as the Gmup

OR IDENTIFICATION (
| PURROSES
:

grantTh
n a s

.

Grant Thornton.
s Advxs;urs BY

*. Mr. Shathav resigned his position as a non-executive director on 8 A
2016 hecoming effective on 8 June, 2016.




Directors’ report*

Principal activities and review of business

Plaza Centers N.V. is a leading developer of shopping and
entertainment centers with a focus on the emerging markets of
Central and Eastern Europe (“CEE"), where it has operated since
1996 when it became the first company to develop western-style
shopping and entertainment centers in Hungary. This followed
its early recognition of the growing middle class and increasingly
affluent consumer base in such markets.

Since then, it has expanded its CEE operations inte Poland, the
Czech Republic, Latvia, Romania, Serbia, Bulgaria and Greece.

In addition, the Group has extended its area of operations beyond the
CEE into India and the US. The Group has been presentin real estate
development in emerging markets for.over 20 years: To date; the
Group has developed, let and opened 33 shopping and entertainment
centers and one office building. 21 of these centers were acquired

by Klepierre, one of the largest shopping center owners/operators

in Europe. Four additional shopping and entertainment centers were
sold to the Dawnay Day Group, one of the UK’s leading institutional
property investors at that time. One shopping center (Arena

Plaza in Budapest, Hungary) was sold to Active Asset Investment
Management (“AAIM”), a UK commercial property investment group
and one shopping center (Kragujevac Plaza in Serbia) was sold-in
2014 to New Europe Property Investments plc (“NEPI"); a publicly
traded commercial property investor and developer in Eastern
Europe, holding 26 income producing assets. In 2015 Plaza sold its
Indian mall ocated in Pune and in March 2016 its mall in Liberec,
Czech Republic. The remaining four centers, which were completed
during 2009 - 2012 are being held and managed by the Company,
while utilising the Company’s extensive experience in managing retail
assets.

For a more detailed status of Plaza’s main focus in 2016 and
current activities and projects; the directors refer to the Executive
Officer's statement on pages 28 to 31 as well as to the following
chapters: Overview, Business Review and Management and
Governance.

For an overview of subsequent events refer to note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pipeline projects

The Company is active in seeking new sites and development
oppartunities in countries in which the Company is currently
cperating. The Company is also analysing and contemplating
investment in further countries that meet its development
parameters and investment criteria.
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Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared ona
going concern basis, which assumes that the Group will be able to
meet the mandatory repayment terms of the banking facilities and
debentures, as disclosed in notes 2c and 16 of the consolidated
financial statements.

The Board of Directors has analysed the following two major risks
associated with the preparation-of the financial statements included
in the annual report:

1. Extensive review and assessment of the real estate valuation
process, together with senior management and the external
valuators of the Company as of 31 December 2015, which Is the
base for important disclosures included in the Companys 2015
financial reports —

2. Extensive review and assessment of the features of the debt
restructuring plan details mcludrng prospe 'cash outﬂow
covenants and comply with these elements nd especrally the
planned repayment up until December1 2016

Based an and considering the aboVe éSsessments, done for the
period of 14 months following the signature of these reporis, the
Board of Directors has a reasonable expectatron that the Company
will be able to continue in operation and meet its lrabllrtres as they
fall due.

Dividends

i) at Ieast 75% of the unpard prmcrpal halanoe 0
(€1 99 mrllian) has been repald and the coverage

' The drrectors have no rnterests in‘the shares of thﬁ g
“than the directors’ share options as given on pagB ot

Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseu
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. lssue of shares

Directors and appointments

The following served as directors of the Company at
31 December 2015:;

Ron Hadassi — Chairman, Non-executive director
Nadav Livni — Executive director

Shlomi Kelsi* ~ Non-executive director

Yoav Kfir* — Non-executive director

Marco Wichers — Independent non-executive director
Sarig Shalhav — Independent non-executive director
David Deke! — [ndependent non-executive director

The General Meetihg of Shareholders is the corporate body
authorised to appoint and dismiss the directors. All directors, unless
they are retmng, submit themselves for re—electron every three
years, pursuant to the rotation scheme for drrectors as lard down in
Article 15.3 of the Artlcles of Association. The General Meetmg of

' ,Shareholders is entitled to suspend and dismiss

directors by a srmple majority vole. ,

' Substanhal shareholdmgs

As of the balanee sheet date, Davrdson Kempner Capltal LLC
~ held approxrmat ly 26.3% and York Gaprtal Man sment Global

- 'Advrsors held approxrmately 3.64% of the entire lseoed share

1 th tand except as dlsclosed
mpany Js not aware of
or"' n the Company s

capital of the Company Other tha
under “drreotors interests” above, t
any addmonal interests amoun‘rrng to 3%
shares besrdes that of rts parent company E

_ Pursuant to the Artrcles of Assocratron the General Meeting of
,Shareholders rs‘the corporate bod authonsed to issue shares and
to drsapply pr mptron nghts ln each Annual General Meeting,

 the General Mee g of Shareh Iders is requested to delegate these
' powers to the Board. The scope'of"thrs power of the Board shall be

'delermmed by the resolu'don of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

to g ve the aethonsahon Typloally the Compal

authorisation for the Board
hich is limited to the allotment of
shares up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount of 10% of the
then isstied share capital. The authorisation is valid for a period
ending on the date of the next Annual General Meeting: In 2015 the
Board has not received,such authorisation.

. * Mr Kelsiand Mr Kﬁr was dismissed from its position on 17 December, 2015,
_ See the reference on page 46 -
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Employee involvement

The Company has 83 employees and other persons providing
similar services. [n 2014 the Group had 120 employees and other
persons providing similar services. The management does not expect
significant changes in the development of the number of employees,
following the reorganisation process in recent years. The Company’s
employees are vital fo its ongoing success. It is therefore important
that all levels of staff are involved in its decision-making processes.
To this end, the Company has an open culture and flexible structure,
and staff are encouraged lormally and informally to become involved
in discussions on the Company’s future strategy and developments.
Employee share option schemes were adopted on 26 October 2006
(as was amended in October 2008 and November 2011) and on

22 November 2011 which enable employees to share directly i in
the sliccess of the Company

Annual General Meeting '(AGM)

The Anntial General Meetmg of Shareholders Is held every year within

six months from the end of the ﬂnanoral year in order to discuss

and approve the annual report andr adopl {vaststellen) the Dutch

statutory annual accounts, drsoharg of the drrectors from their

llabi ity for the conduct of busmess in the preoedlng year and any
other issues mentloned below. 7

The main powers of the General Meetmg of Shareholders relate .
to the appointment of members of the Board the adoptlon of the
annual financial stat ents deolaratron of end, release the

Board’s members from |rabrhty and amendments to the Articles of

Assocratron k

The annual general meetmg of shareholders was held at Park Plaza _
 Victoria Hotel Amsterdam, Damrak 1-5, 101216 Amsrerdam the

30 June 2015 at10.30 am (CET) ‘

glish language; (ii) not
ders of ordinaryrshares'in

forthe 2015 financial year; (v) to authorize
and unconditionally to exercise all powers of l&re

**As of 19 December 2014, based on the latest disclosed posr{ ddejby U
Kemaner Capital Management LLC {“DK7): Burlington Loarbﬂa?yeme Lim
23.89%..and DK holds 2.4% directly.

Accountants en Advise



equity securities in the Company up to 226,234,891 (two hundred
and twenty six million, two hundred and thirty four thousand, eight
hundred and ninety-one) ordinary shares, being 33 per cent. of the
Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at the date of the natice
for the annual gensral meeting, provided that sich authority shall
expire on the conclusion of the Annual general meeting to be held in
2016, save that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer
or-:agreement which would or might require equity securities to be
allotted after such expiry and the Board may allot equity securities'in
pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if the authority conferred
hereby had not expired; (vi) to designate the Board; generally

and unconditionally, as the competent body to restrict or exclude
pre-emptive rights upon issuing ordinary shares set out in article

6 of the Company’s Articles of Association, stch power to expire

at the conclusion of the next Annual general meeting to be held in
2016, and the Board may allot equity securities following an offer

or agreement made before the expiry of the authority and provided
that the authority is limited to the allotment of the equity securities
up to the percentage of 10% of the issued capital of the Company

at the date of the notice for this Annual general meeting; being
68,556,028 (sixty eight million, five hundred and fifty six thousand
and twenty eight) ordinary shares in the capital of the Gompany:

(vii) to authorize the Company, generally and unconditionally, for the
purpose of Article 8 of the Articles of Association of the Company to
make market purchases of the ordinary shares in the capital of the
Gompany on such terms and in such manner as the directors may
from time to time determine, subject to certain conditions (vili) to
re - elect Mr. Sarig Shalhav as non executive director; and (ix) to re
~elect Mr. David Dekel as non executive director |

The proposed resolutions of items No. (i)~ (iv) and items No: (viii) =
(i) of the agenda were passed and items No (v) - (vii) of the agenda
were voted against.

Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM)

An extraordinary general meeting of shareholders was held at

Park Plaza Victoria Hotel Amsterdam; Damrak 1-5. 1012 LG
Amsterdam, the Netherlands on 19 December. 2015 at10am (CET).
0On 30 October 2015, the Company received a written requisition
within the meaning of article 27.3 of the Articles of Association, from
Elbit Ultrasound (Luxembourg) B.V/S.a 1L, “Elbit"); a shareholder
holding 44.9 per cent of the Company's ordinary shares. to convene
an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders. The requisition
contained the following proposals; (i) to dismiss Mr. Shlomi Kelsi
from his position as non-executive director, in accordance with

article 23 of the Articles of Association, and (ii) to dismiss Mr. Yoav

Kfir from his position as non-executive director, in accordance
with article 23 of the Articles of Association:
All proposed resolutions were passed.
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Article 10 of Directive 2004/25

With regard to the information referred to in the resolution of Article
10 of the EC Directive pertaining to a takeover bid which is required
to be provided according to the Dutch law, the following can be
reported:

= There are no special restrictions on the transfer of the shares of
the Company.

There are. no special statutory rights related to the shares of the
Company.

There are no restrictions on the voting rights on the Company’s
shares.

Information.on significant shareholding can be found above.
There are no agreements between the Sharehdlders which are
known to the Company and may result in restrictions on the
transfer of securities and/or voting rights. .

The applicable provisions' regarding the appointment and
dismissal of members of the Board and amendments to the
Articles of Assomatlon are set forth above. '

The power of the Board regardlng the | «ssue of shares and the
exclusion of pre-emption nghts and the,repurcnase of shares in '
the Company can be found above

There are no significant agreements to ‘Which the Gompany is a
party and which take effect alter or terminate i upan a change of
control of the Company following a takeover bid. .
There are no agreements between the Gompany and its Board
members or employees providing for compensation if they resign
or are made redundant without valid reason or if their employment
ceases because of a takeover bid. ‘ _
Other information can be found in the notes
statements (p!ease seenote 19 - Equny)

Forecast

Plaza continues to evaluate its daveldpment plpehne
it believes oﬁers sngnxf cant opportunities. Plaza remal
prudent and pragmanc inits appmach fo deplnymg signi
levels of equity to commence new projects, This bemg sa
continues to pmgress a limited number of pr
resment countnes in CEE, such as Pmand R

Jurly;zl,rﬁ,and‘a:'i‘)lind!ng in
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Advancing related permits and approvals for the ‘Casa Radio

project in Bucharest, Romania and exploring opportunities for
financing and/or partnerships for the development: and, continuing
processes to secure relevant local planning and permitting approvals
for the Belgrade (“MUP”) project in Serbia and Lodz Plaza project in
Poland, remain a priority.

Plaza intends to sell yielding assets where value potential is or is
close to being established and where sale prices are appealing, and
to seli plots which are not part of the Company's core business or
not suitable for development in the short/medium term.

Following the successful completion of the restructuring plan, Plaza
has confidence in the long term future growth of the Company
and the management is resolute in rts bellef that, with the ongoing
support of the Groups bondholders and sharehplders the delivery
- of the strategy, together with the bnghtenmg economlc outlook will
rresult inthe delivery of value and growth to the Company’s lnvestors.
Plaza will continus to reduce corporate debt by early repayments "'
; lollowmg the sale of assets according to the Company's debt
restructurmg agreement and achrevrng aone year deterral penod on
bond pnnmpal repayments (NlS 434 Mrlllon) per the restructuring
) important mformatron inregards to Plaza S oesh ﬂow
, pl’DjeCIIOUS please refer o Note 2 c) In the consolidated frnanmal
statements ‘ '

' 'Plaza is In various stages of negot‘ ion for the strategic sale of
some assets in the portfolro (e g. neg ion fo sell its 50% share
in nga Plaza (Latvl" ,pm]ectto a third party), i Vi
__are no slgned agreements or head of terms in pla
' blndmg pre-agreement to sell development plot inP
Athens, Greece

' The number of the Groups employees changed srgmtroantly over
_ Tecent years, however follewmg the approval of the
restructurlng plan no matenal change is expected for2016
- tollowmg the nomi Ination of Dorl Keren and Yitshak (lzzre) Flias to
oles of Acﬁng Chief Executive Oﬁrcer and Chisf Flnancial Otfrce

IDENTH cenor\z .

Grant Thorton
Accountants wn Advise
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‘Corporate governance

The Company was incorporated in The Netherlands on May 17,

1993 as a private limited liability company (besloten vennootschap
met beperkie aansprakelijkheid). The Company was converted into

a public limited liability company (naamloze vennootschap) on
October 12, 2006, with the name “Plaza Centers N.V.”. The principal
applicable legistation and the legisiation under which the Company
and the Ordinary Shares in the Company have been created is book 2
of the Dutch Civil Code (Burgerlijk Wetboek).

Compliance

The Board is committed to high standards of Corporate Governance,
in order to maintain the trust of the Company’s shareholders and
other stakeholders. The Company has a one-tier board (as provided
for in the Dutch Civil Code) whereas the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code is based on a separate management Board and supervisory
Board. Where possible, taking the aforesaid into consideration; the
Company complies with the Dutch Corporate Governance Code and
the UK Corporate Governance Gode, with the exception of a limited
number of best practice provisions which it does not consider.to be
in the interests of the Company and its stakehalders or which are not
practically feasible to implement.

The Deviations from the Dutch Code in 2015

Best Practice Provision 11.1.3 stipulates inter alia that the Company
should have an intemal risk management and control system
which should in‘any event employ as instruments of the internal
risk management and control system a code of conduct which
should be published on the Gompany’s website. Such code of
conduct has not been available during 2015.

Best Practice Provision 11.1.4 {b) stipulates that the management
board shall provide a description of the design and effectiveness
of the internal risk management and control system for the main
risks. Since the Company has no such code, it cannot refer its
design and effectiveness.

Best Practice Provision 11.1:6 stipulates that the management
board shall describe the sensitivity of the resuits of the Company
to external factors and variables. Singe the Company has no
streaming/fixed annual revenue from operation of properties, it
does not perform such analysis.

Best Practice Provision 1.2.4 stipulates that granted options

shall not be exercised in the first three years after the date of
granting. The current share incentive schemas of the Company -
do not restrict the exercise of options to a lockup period of three
years, The reason therefore is that the Company and the Elbit
Group share the same remuneration policy and the Company’s
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.

.. Best Pmctlce vaxsmn HL17 stlpulates that the supamb'fy:;“v‘i‘;';u
* board shall discuss at least once a year on its ARGRVBIFIHE"

Share Option Schemes were drafted in accordance with Eibit's
Share Option Scheme, in order ta maintain the incentive for all
employees of Elbit a group based upon the same principles. It
should be noted however that, in 2015, no options were granted
or exercised.

Best Practice Provision 11.2:12 and Best Practice Provision 11.2.13
stipulate inter alia that the remuneration report of the supervisory
board shall include account of the manner in which the
remuneration policy has been implemented in the past financial
year as well as an overview of the remuneration policy planned by.
the supervisory board for the next financial year and subsequent
years and should contain the information specified.in these
provisions. The current remuneration policy of the Company has
remained unchanged from 2006 at the moment the Company’s
shares were admitted to listing and is fairly straight forward, as
stich that »implementation” is not an isslie. Furthermore _pursuant
1o the Articles of Assocsa’uon the general meeting of shareholders —
determines the remuneration policy, and not the non-sxectitive -
directors. When the remuneratmn pohcy nee s,changing; approval
will be sought from the general meetlng ofshareholders ofthe
Company.

Best Practice Provision 11.3.3 and Best Practice Provision [11.6.2
stipulate that both executive directors and non-executive directors
shall not take part in any dlscussmn nr‘ decision- makmg that

pmvjéion ofVSBgﬁro'n 174 ,':ot:ghé;Aﬁiclés of
resoluﬁon"can be passed. then despite the c
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own functioning and that of its individual members, and the the Company has had four non-executive directors (Messrs.-Ron

conclusions that must.be drawn on the basis thereof. The desired Hadassi, Marco Wichers, David Dekel and Sarig Shalhav) out of
profile, composition and competence of the supervisory board whom three are considered to be independent. See also page 42
shall also be discussed. Moreover, the supervisory board shall = “Additional Information for an overview of the directors’ former
discuss at least once a year without the management board be- and current functions”. Consequently, three out of the six non-
ing present, the functioning of the management board as an organ executive directors in 2015 were considered to be independent.

of the company and the performance of its individual members,

and the conclusions that must be drawn on the basis thereof. In + Best Practice Provision 111.3.3 and Best Practice Provision 111.4.1
2015 the non-executive directors have not specifically discussed (a) stipulate that all supervisory board members shall foliow an
the items that appear in this Best Practice Provision on separate induction program. The Gompany has no formal induction prog-
occasions. The Board, however, feels it important to notify the ram in place. New directors typically follow an ad:hoc introduction
shar'enoldersthat as a rule, every Board meeting includes an to the Company which makes them familiar with the Company and
assessment by all Board members of their own functioning and its business and which enabled them to perform their tasks.

that of their fellow Boérd'memners. The Board is of the view that, - 7
oiven the fact that the Company has ‘aone-tier board rather thana = Best Practice Pravision 111.35 stipulates that a non-executive
separate management board and supervisory board this course of director (in terms of the Dutch bepor’ate'Governance Gode a

action appropnately meets the requ;remsnts as 1a|d dnwn in this superwsory director (commissaris)) may be appointed to the
Best Practice Provnsion - - board for a maximum of three four-year terms. Section 23 of

: . the Articles of Association provldss for 4 retirement schedule
Best Pracnce Provision I11.1.8 stipulates that the supervisory ' 'whersby d!rectors who have been in office for riot less than three
board shall discuss at least once ayear the corporate strategy ~_consecutive annual general meetmgs shall retlrs from office. .
and the risks of business and the results uf assessment by the . - Pursliant to section 23 g of the Amclss such a director ‘may be
management board of the structure and operanon of the internal ,reappomted which could result ina term of ofﬁce Wthh is Ionger
risks managemsm and controi systems, as well as any significant than three four—year terms.
changes thereto. In 2015, there have not been separate meenngs ,
,of the non-exscunve direct‘ sio dnscuss the items mentioned o Best Practice Prov;smn V3 supulates nter aha that the Gompany

should have an internal auditc Though i in fact the Company does .
' not have an internal aud;tor nsetf as part of the Elbﬁ !magmg
ei'ﬁP;r speciﬁcally Gmup the Cnmpany has a Quality Control Regulator who, in
etings in 2015 practace functlons as an intema! audnor _

'!}emtmns from the UK Csde on.

-system of nsk management has been assessed by the full Bo 8 rpa r ai e G ﬂ’d 8 m a H 8 8

| nnt cnmply w:th the fol!owmg prﬂ / szo ‘

'Best Practice Prnvisions IH.~2}1‘ and;]llLQA stlbglate'that the

 non-executives within the eanmg of Best Practice Prowsmn
.2, 2 From 1 January 2015 until 17 December 2015 the

ﬁ rs,.in function
2015>cnn sidered to be non- |ndependent were Messrs Ron
assi, Yoav Kfir and Shlomi Kelsi, Messrs. Yoav Kfir and Shiomi
Kelsi stepped down from their-functions at the occasion of the
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of the Company
that was held on 17 December2015. The independent non- directors present and, led by the Senior In
executlve d»rectors in 2015 were Messrs Marco Wichers, Sarig non-executive directors should meet withogtthé
Shalhav and David Dekel. From 17 December 2015 onwards at least annually to appraise the Chairman's 3e?foma%gﬁn
' : Accountants en Advi
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such other occasions as are deemed appropriate.

Code Provision B.6.1 states that the Board should refer in the
annual report as to how performance evaluation of the Board, its
committees and its individual directors has been conducted,

Code Provision B.6.3 states that the non-executive directors,

led by the Senior Independent Director, should be responsible

for performance evaluation of the Chairman, taking into account
the views of executive directors, In 2015, the Chairman and the
non-executive directors did not meet separately, However, at every
Board meeting, an assessment is made by each Board member of
his/her own performance and that of other members. The Board
is of the view that this course of action provides an appropriate
mechanism for the evaluation of the performance of Board
members.

Gode Provision C.2.3 states that the Board should, at least
annually, should conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems and
should report to shareholders that they-have done so. The Board
did not conduct a review of the effectiveness of the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems in the year

under review. However, the Board has established a process for
identifying and managing the risks faced by the Company and
both the Audit Committee and the executive director regularly
consider the effectiveness of the Gompany's internal controls and
risk management procedures as part of the on-going management
of the Gompany. The Board confirms that any appropriate actions
either have been or are being taken to address any weaknesses in
these areas.

Code Provision C.3.6 states (amongst other things) that, where
there is no internal audit function, the Audit Committee should
consider annually whether there is‘a need for an internal audit
function and make a recommendation to the Board, and the
reasons for the absence of such a function should be explained.in
the relevant section of the annual report. Although the Company
does not have an internal auditor, the Company has access to a
quality control regulator who, in practice, functions as an internal
auditor.

Code Provision E.2.3 states that the Chairman should arrange
for the Ghairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Gommittees to be available to answer questions at the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders and for all directors to attend.
in the year under review only Mr. Dekel attended at the genera!
meetings of the shareholders.
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Compliance with WSE Corporate
Governance Rules

The Code of Best Practice for WSE-Listed Companies (the “WSE
Corporate Governance Rules”) applies to companies listed on the
WSE, irrespective of whether such companies are incorporated in
Poland. The WSE Carporate Governance Rules consist of general
recommendations related to best practice for listed companies
(Part 1) and best practice provisions relating to management boards;
supervisory board members and shareholders (Parts 1 o V).

The WSE Corporate Governance Rules impose upon the companies
listed on the WSE an obligation to disclose in their current reports
continuous or incidental non-compliance with best practice
provisions (with the exception of the rules set forth in Part ).
Moreover, every year each WSE-listed company is required to
publish a detailed statement on any non- compliance with the WSE
Corporate Governance Hules (including the rules set forth in Part[)
by way of a statement submltted with a listed company's annual
report. Companies listed on the WSE are required to  justify non-
compliance or. pamal oomphance with any m‘ the WSE. Gorporate
Governance Rules and to present possmle ways of ellminatmg the
potential consequences of such non compllance or ffie steps such
company intends to take to mltlgate the risk of non-compliance
with such rule in the future. The Comoa 7 comphes 1o the extent
practicable, with all the principles of the W SE Gorporate Governance
Rules However the Company will only be in the posltion to comply

current report.

Board practmes

In the Netherlands statutory Jaw prowdes for both ao
governance (momstlsch bestuursmodel) and a two-t|e
(dualistlsch bestuursmodel, having a separate managemen
and a separate SUPBIVISOTY board) Itis well es ;bllshed pra
for intemat fonal active companies in the Netherlands 10 hav
one-tier structure in the management board {bestuus ‘?Althoug;
members of the management board arﬂ form managlng dme

, ’ In
the Company and other directors are responsible forasuperv(bsm'a Thornt

Accountants en Advisel
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the day-to-day management of the Company. Al responsibilities
are subject to the overall responsibility of the Board. All statutory
provisions relating to the members of the management board apply
in principle to ali members of a one-tier board.

The Board is accountable to the General Meeting of Sharehalders.

Composition and aoperation of the Board

From 8 July, 2014 until. 17 December 2015, the Company had seven
directors — one executive director and six non-executive directors,

of whom three were independent. At the EGM Mr. Kelsi and Mr.

Kfir were dismiééed,See page 46. Since the dismissal of the above
directors the Company. nafs five directors — one executive director and
four non-exeoutive directors, of whom three are independent.

The appointment of Board ‘members is done. by the Genaral Meeting.
The current Arﬁoles of Assocratron contai (sechon 238) an
arrangement for the appolntment/re-appomtment of rndependent

_ directors, if and for so long as the ordinary shares are admrtted to
the. Ofﬂcial List of the London Stock Exchange which i in essence
provudes for a regulation pursuant 10 whroh the appointment is

made by separale resolutions of the General Meetmg and the meeting

of independent snareholders (an rndependent sharenolder not
- bemg a person who exe

365 0T controls on its own ortogether
acting in conoert thirty percent (30%) or more of the votes ina
- General Meeﬁng) - .

_ atthe Combén kpense The Company has establis
"oommittees infine with the UK Combined Code and the Dutch‘
Corporate Governanoe Code. These are the Audit Committes, the
'—Remuneration ommrttee and the Nomi nation Committee, and a
' bnef descnptron of each may be found be!ow

Audit Committee

the internal and external auditing. Among
must consider the integrity of the Company’s
financial statements, the effectiveness of its internal controls and
risk:management systems, auditors’ reports and the terms of
appointment and remuneration of the auditor.

Gomposition”: Mr. Wichers, Mr. Dekel and Mr. Shalhav.
Chairman; Mr. Dekel.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meets at least twice each financial year
to prepare the Board’s decisions on the remuneration of directors
and other senior employees and the Company's share incentive

plans (Under Dutch faw and the Articles of Association, the principal
guidelines for directors’ remuneration and approval for directors’
options and share incentive schemes must be determined by a
general meeting of shareholders). The Committee also prepares an
annual remuneration report on the Company’s remunaration policy.
The remuneration report may be found on pages 64- 66 of this

document.

Compds'ition*f:/Mr. Wichers, Mr. Dekel and Mr. Shathav
Chairman: Mr. Wichers.

, Nommanon Gommmee

Meeting at Ieast twice a year, the main tasks of the Nornination
Gommittee are to prepare selection criteria and appointment

' prooedures for Board members and to review the Board’s structure,

size and composmon

Composmon*** Mr. Wmhers Mr Dekel Mr Shalhav
Chalrman Mr. Wrohers

Internal }contro'l'[riskrmanagement

The Board has established a continuous process for idsntifying
and managing the risks faced by the Company, and confirms that
any appropriate actions have been or are being taken to address
any weaknesses, It is the respansibility of the Audit Committee

1o consider the effectrveness of the Company’s internal controls.
risk management procedures and nsks assocrated wnth mdnndual
~ deve!opment projeots - ~

approached and is co-operati
Authaorities regarding the ma .
in this respect and it has submitted
Authorities. There is a risk that the outc

affect the outcome of the project. 1

A*/*<* Until 17 December, 2015 Mr. Kelsl was a men&aﬁhe Remuneration a
Nomination Commitiees. :
Accountants en Advise



Share Dealing Code

The Company operates a share dealing code, which limits the
freedom of directors and certain employees of the Company to
deal in the Company's shares. The share dealing code imposes
restrictions beyond those that are imposed by law. The Company
takes all reasonable steps to ensure compliance by those parties
affected. The Company operates a share dealing code, particularly
relating to dealing during close periods; for all Board members
and certain employees, as is appropriate for a listed company.
The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure compliance

by those parties affected. The share dealing code meets the
requirements of both the Model Code set out in the Listing Ruiles
and the Market Abuse chapter of the Netherlands Act on the financial
supervision.

Controlling shareholder and conflicts
of interest

At the date of this document, 'the Company is aware of the following
persons who are interested directly or indirectly in 3% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company:

Percentage of
issued share
capital/voting

rights
44.90%

Number of
ardinary
shares

307, 847 376
180 282 196'

Eibit lmagmg L:mlted

' {Davidson Kempner Capltal
'Management LLC -
York Capitai Management
Global Advisors LLC

24,936,483 364%

The Board Is satisfied that the Company is capable of carrying on
its business independently of EIbit Imaging Limited. with whom it
has a relationship agreement to ensure that all transactions and
relationshipsit has with the Elbit Imaging Group are conducted at
arm’s length and on a normal commercial basis.

Shareholder communication

The Board meets with shareholders each vear at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) to discuss matters relating to the business.

Details of AGM's held in 2015 can be found on pages 45 and 46.
The Board is committed to maintaining an open, honest and positive
dialogue with shareholders. '
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To ensure that all its communications are factually correct. it is
furnished with full information before every meeting on the state
and performance of the business. It also has ultimate responsibility
for reviewing and approving all information contained in its annual,
interim and other reports, ensuring that thev. present a balanced
assessment of the Company's position.

The main channals of communication with shareholders are the
senior independent director. Ghairman, GEO, GFO and otir financial
PR advisers, although all directors are open to dialogue with
shareholders as appropriate. The Board encourages communication
with all shareholders at any time other than during close periods,
and is willing to enter dialogue with both institutional and private
shareholders.

The Board also actively encourages participation at the AGM,

which is the principal forum for dialogte with privéte shareholders.
As well as presentations outlimng the progress of the business, it
includes an open questlon and answer session in whi Indmdua|
interests and concems may be addr ed. Resolutions put to vote .
and their results will bs publlshed followmg the mee lng' -

The Company’s websne (www plaz centers. bom),:co,n,tains

The Company is responsible not only to its s

t0 a range of other stakeholders mclu" I
suppllers and the communities upon whom its 0
|mpact ~ ‘

. regulatory and mternal en

Date
Grant Thornton

Accountants en Adviseurs B
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The Company undertakes a detailed environmental impact study
of every project it undertakes, including an audit of its waste
management, water and energy usage, emissions to air and water,
ozone depletion-and more.

Health and safety

The Company regards compliance with environmental legislation
in every.country where i't'operaies as its minimum standard, and
significant levels of management attention are focused on ensuring
that all employees and contractors achieve and surpass both
regulatory and internal environmental standards.

The Company undertakes a detailed environmental impact study
of every project it undertakes, including an audit of its waste
management, water and energy usage, emissuons to airand water
0zone depletion and more . : '

Cnrporate gu’vernance declaration

This declarahon is included pursuant to Atticle 22 of the Decree
further stlpu ations regarding the content of annual reports '
(Vaststellmgsbesluit nadere voorschrn‘ten inhoud Jaarverslag)
23 December 2()(!4 (as amended) (hereafterthe “Decree”)

Forthe statements in this ﬂon as understond in Articles 3, 3a

and 3b of the Decres, please see the refsvant sections of this Annual
_ Report The folio; ing should be und od to be inserts to an'd: .

repemions,of these statements. -

+ Compliance with the provisions and best prannce p
Gode (pages 48 10 50): '

L The functioning of the general meetmg of shareholders, ns
pr mary authorities, the ngms nf shareho!ders and how they cdn
be exercised (page 45)

s The compnsmon and functmmng of the Board and its Cnmmntees
(startmg o0 pages 50 and 51)

FOR IDENTI FICK{ O

sations of the members of the Board in respect of the
possibility to issue or purchase shares (page 45).
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Risk management

Plaza mainly operates its business in emerging markets and therefore
it is exposed to a relatively high degree of inherent risk in such
activities. The Management Board is responsible for setting strategic,
financial, and aperational objectives as well as for implementing risk
management according to these objectives.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Group’s activities.

The strategic risks largely pertain to the real estate projects

and geographical allocation, and to the timing of purchases,
development, investments and sales and the corresponding financing
arrangements. Operational risks include, amongst other things,

the selection of properties and lessees; the technical condition of
propetties, tax-related risks, as well as the performance of Plaza's
organisation and its systems. The financial risks concern interest
rate, liquidity and counterparty credit risks, foreign currency
exchange rates, - level of gearing, debt arrangements cross-defaults
as well as secure finance or refinancing risks and compliance with
its debt restructuring plan.

Plaza has an adequate risk management and internal control system.
An important element of the internal control system is a management
structure that can take decisions effectively and on the basis of consu-
Itation. Strict procedures are followed for the regular preparation

of monthly, quarterly and annual figures based on the Company's
accounting principles. Monthly meetings or conference calls are

held between the Management Board and focal managers to discuss
the results per country versus budgets and the long term financial
planning. The internal management reporting system is designed

to follow developments in tental income; the value of investments,
rent arrears, vacancies, the progress of (re)development projects
and disposal of further non-core assets and assets not suitable for
development in the short-medium term, and the preparation of the
financial results for period in comparison with the budget. There

are internal infarmation systems regulations which contain inter alia
back-up, recovery back up and management of disasters plan to
ensure that data will not be lost in case of emergencies.

Business strategy and restructuring plan

Plaza is focused on its businesses in CEE region and India (emergihg

insome cases has entered mto (ocal partnershvps

markets). By nature, various-aspects of the emerging markets are

relatively underdeveloped and unstable and therefore are often
exposed to risks arising from unforeseen changes, such as legal,
political, tax, regulatory, and economic changes:
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“term earnings and cash flow potential of the Broup,
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In 20186, Plaza will continue to focus on improving the parformance
of the shopping centre portfalio, applying the Company's strong
asset management capabilities: There will be additional emphasis

on reducing leverage as well as the further rationalisation and
strengthiening of the portfolio by disposing of non-core properties.
Focus on Central and Eastern Europe will continug, creating a strong-
performing partfolio. Plaza will also look to make progress on'its
developments, including Timisoara Plaza and Belgrade (Visnjicka)
Plaza, and will explore partnership and financing opportunities for
the Casa Radio project as well as to advance permits for the Belgrade
Plaza (MUP) and Lodz projects, While the markets in which Plaza
operates showed positive economic signs during 2015, the Company
remains vigilant towards wider macro-economic impacts.

Plaza’s facus remains on building a strong portfolio; unlobkmg the
value of land through developments where possnble reducing debt
levels and delivering on behalf of bondholders and shareholders.
Asset sales will be considered for yielding assets where valie
potential is or is close to bemg establsshed and wherg. pnce are
appealing or the sale of plots which are not part of th !
core business nor suitable for de{/elopment in the shon-medlum

term. Furthermore, continuing to reduce corporate debt by early ,
repayments following sale of assets according to the Company’s debt
restructuring agreement, and achieving a one year deferral period on
band principal repayments: (NIS 434 M;lhon) as perthe restructuring
plan, will remain a priority. ' . ,

3oard each year,
Usiness plan and a
d of five yearrs',;with

The strategy is evaluated by the Managem |
reformulated as necessary and established i
cash flow forecast. The strategy considers a

detailed budget proposals elaborated in the The strategy Is
then translated Into concrete tasks and actions his process,
opportum’nes and :mponant business risks are id . énd ihe
Companys objec‘nves and strategy are evaiuated edif
appropriate. The strategy is discussed wﬂh and app the
Management Boa [suant lothe restructurmg pl ns
Followmg the  approval of the restructurmg plan itisv laza

continues to ook to tha long term ob)act:ves of the bust

In addmon to ensure knowledge and understandmg ofifs |
envnronments P!aza employs local employees and‘consuﬁa

Capital managemeni

The: Board's policy is
mamtam mvesto I
future development of the

......

t%mﬂt%%nﬂon
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~ Plaza will con’nnue wrth effi

account its capital requirements, whilst at the same time maintaining
an appropriate level of dividend cover.

However, ptirsuant to the approved restructuring plan, the:Company
will be allowed to distribute dividends to its shareholders only

if at least 75% of the unpaid balance of the bonds (excluding
bonds that are sold by a Company’s subsidiary) following the

date the restructuring plan will come into effect and shall bind all
creditors which are subject to it, have been repaid in full prior to
stich distribution and provided that following such distribution a
certaln financial coverage ratio Is met; unless such distribution

has been approved in a meeting of the creditors that are subject to
the restructuring plan by a majority of at least 67% of the debt's
balance which is being'held byrthe creditors participating in such
meeting and voting. Notwfthstandlng the aforesald, in case of an
additional equity investment in the Gompany of at least €20 million

that occurs following the date the restructunng plan came into force,

the Cornpany will be allowed (subject to apphcable law) to dlstnbute
a dividend to its shareholders in an amount equal to 50% of the sald
additional equity investment and such dlstnbu’non will not be subjeet
to the said limitations.

The Board seeks {0 maintain a balance between the hlgher returns
. that might be ;possrble with higher levels of | borrowmgs and the 7
' 'advantages and secunty afforded by a sound caprtal posrtlon

, veasures and cost reduction
where possrble At the end of 2015, G&A xpenses were reduced
to below £6 milllon per annum followm stringent cost control

followmg six months mmus sums of pro eds from transactions
that have already een srgned (by the Company ora subsrdrary)

ring plan} is not met, namely

Financing risk management

Liquidity risk ,
_In line with the de’bt' restructuring plan agreed in 2014, Plaza repays
75% of proceeds from disposals to bondholders. In 2015, Plaza
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paid €19.3 million to hondholders and, since the restructuring
plan was approved in 2014, a total of €47 million (of which €19
million for principal and rest for interest) has been distributed as
well as 13.21% of shares in the Company. For background on this
restructuring, please refer to pages 8-10.

Fallowing the closing of the Company's restructuring plan, the
consolidated financial statements include liabilities to bondholders
for the aggregate principal amount of €203 million. The company
published cash flow forecast (as described on page 30)-until
mid-2017 in order to achisve the abovementioned repayments, as
they fall due and to achieve 1 year deferral of the bonds principal
repayments (NIS 434 million). The Company regards this scenarip
as the most probable althuugh these repayments are not falling due,
unless the mentioned assets in this scenario are disposed of.

As Plaza depends on external fi nancing and has a’h’ioh eiposure to
CEE and India, Plaza bears the risks due to ﬂuctuatrons in sellmg '
yield, lnterest rates exchange rates and other indices, its financial

_ assels and debt value cash flow, covenants and cost of capital will

be impacted, theraby aﬁectlng its ability to raise capltal At the start
of 2016, Plazas credlt ratlng by Standard & Poors was malntarned
on “BBB-" on a lecal Israeli scale with a negatlve outlogk whlch put
Plaza ina strunger poslhon but vrgrlant gomg into 2016

. Plaza cnntrnued to focus on deleveraging its balance shest clur ] th

pe riod but, as a result of lmpalrment losses recorded in the perlod
and f nance costs incurred, the geanng level lnoreased t079% in
2015,

As part of tha Companys plan to reduce leverage, the following

actlon took plaee in respect of bank loans = reflnancmg and dlssount .

consideration of 6240
an outstandlng bank Ioan

* Asubsidiary of Plaza has won a tender to buy
wholly owned holding and operating companyfer/idh
shopping and entertainment centre in the Czecéh ?lepi@hc
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Plaza hasagreed to buy the €20.4 million bank loan (which was
provided by two commercial banks) for €8.5 million, refiecting‘a
discount of 58%. The Company recorded a profit on the discount
(circa €12 million) in its financial statements for the second haf
of 2015. The Liberec loan was a full recourse loan (the recourse
would have matured four years from the restructuring approval -
July 2018).

As a basis for and contribution to effective risk management and
to ensure that Plaza will be able to pursue its strategy even during
periods of economic downturn, Plaza limits its financial risks by
hedging these risks if and when expedient.

Interest rate risks

In view of Plaza’s policy to hold investments for the long term
while exit yields are high, the loans used to fund this are also taken
with long maturities. Plaza uses interest-rate swaps to manage its
interest-rate risk. This policy regarding the hedging of interest-rate
risk is defensive in nature, with the objective of protecting itself
against rising interest rates. The Group incurs certain floating rate
indebtedness and changes in interest rates may increase its cost
of borrowing, impacting on its profitability. On'a project by project
hasis, the Group considers hedging against interest rate fluctuations
or as sometimes required to hedge by the lending bank.

Forelgn currency exchange rates

As Plaza’s functional currency is Euro, it is exposed to risk deriving
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates as some.of its
purchases of services and constriiction agreements are conducted in
local currencies; or are affected by them. Its rental revenues may also
be denominated in local currencies. The Group seeks to minimise
these risks by ensuring that its principal liabilities (financing and
construction) and its principal sources of revenue (sale proceeds
and rentals) are all denominated in the same currency (namely
Euro), or are linked to the rate of exchange of the local currency

and the Euro. In‘order to limit the foreign currency exchange risk

in connection with the Notes, the Company has hedged in previous
years, the future payments to correlate with the Euro under certain
swap arrangements, forward transactions and currency. options sale
in respect of the Notes previously issued, and may enter into similar
hedging arrangements (as:necessary) in respect of each of the series
of Notes, subject to market conditions:

If the Company is not successful in fully hedging its foreign
exchange rate exposure, changes in currency exchange rates relative
to the Euro may adversely affect the Group’s profit or loss, cash 7
flows and certain covenants. A devaluation of the local currencies n
relation to the Euro, or vice versa, may adversely affect the Group s
profitability.
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Furthermore, Plaza is monitoring its currency expostre on a
continuous basis and acts accordingly by investing inforeign
currencies in certain cases when cash flows denominated in foreign
currency are needed according to project construction budget. As a
policy, the Group does not invest in foreign currencies for speculative
purposes. The consolidated financial statements include additional
information about and disclosure on Plaza’s use of financial
instruments.

The Company’s top risks

The following risks and related key mitigants, where apblicable, are
described below:

* Our business is subject to general business and macro and
microeconomic risks
Risk description: In addition to risks that are relevant to a specific
activity or relate to a épéciﬁc territory, certain conifiﬁons’ and
changes:in the economic environment in the countries in which we
aperate may have an adverse effect on our business performance
Changes in the global economy, in real estate and/or the busi-
ness environment in which we operate and/ora negatrve trends '
in the capital markets and/or a decrease i in cur capital and/or
impairments in our real estate assets may be harmed by certain
factors that may entall |mpairment losses not previously recorded,
which would affect our financial resultsfand the satisfaction of
financial covenants, may have an advpr effect on ourabrhty
to raise funds. Macroeconomic or microeconomic changes as
described above may influence our compliance with financial
covenants uinder certain bank foans and ¢ }
including but not limited to, as aresult of th
o7 Debt Service Gover Ratio (“DSCR"). and/nra
capital. '

Risk mmgatron In reactnon 1o slow economm I
will contmue with efﬂcrency measures and cost redk
possrb!e (e g GRA expenses were reduced rnatenal

which were puttowards Plazas fuwre mvestments and gen
'corporate purposes, and drspnsals of non-core sttes or nut
suitable for development in the short term/mediu: ‘ terr?@%:
asin Rornama and Po|and and restr ctrts co
construction prorectst ‘
on prorects with ten

and addmonal measures will be taken if necessary.
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*_Events of default under the Group’s debt arrangements may
result in cross-defaults being triggered under other debt
arrangements that the Group has in place
If an event of default were to subsist under one or more of
the Group's debt arrangements, that event of default may, in
accordance with the cross-default provisions; constitute an event
of default tinder the Group's other debt arrangements. Upon an
event of default (whether due to cross-default or otherwise); the
relevant lenders would have the right, subject to the terms of the
relevant facility arrangements to, amongst other things, declare
the borrower’s outstanding debts under the relevant facilities to
be due and payable and/or cancel their respective commitments
under the facilities, enforce therrsecunty, take control of certain
assets or make a demand on any guarantees given in respect
of the relevant facility. In respect of the bonds, the trustess
representing holders of bonds (or a resolution of the holders of
bonds) may be able to elaim under olroumstances where lhe .

~ Gompany doss not fulfil its obllgatrons under the bonds (moludlng;
but not llmrted 1o paymentr obligations) an immediate seftlement,

and declare all or ary part of the unsettlad balance of the bonds
immediately due and payable In respect of the Polish bonds,
eaoh holder of the Polish bonds has the rlpht to askfor an early
redemptmn ol the Palish bonds on  the occurrenoe of an event.

- of defanlt by the Company (lnoludlng but not limited to payment

' obhgatlons) A detault and/or aeoeleratlon of repayment of debt

‘under the debt arrangements may affect the abllrty of the Group {o
obtain alternative ﬁnanomp lor erterm sitheron a timely.
‘Dasis or on terms favourable to the |
10 pursue rts etrategrc business plans, Th

eﬁeot,on the Groups busmess results of op

5,

fmanoral

, mten' dio enhanoe the returns on the Group t
~ when the value of the Group S underlylng assets is nsrng, 1tma
havethe opposne effect where the valle of underlylng assete '
rs falling. Any fallin the value of any of the Group's propertres
__may have slgnrfreantly reduce the value of the Group s equity
investment in the member of the. Group whloh holds such
property, rneanmg that the Group may not make arprofrt may

nts. The occurrence of
t ay have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s business, financial condition and/or results of
operations.

Risk mitlgatlon:r Continuous negotiation with financing banks
in order to improve credit facilities' terms, or disposal of
subsidiaries, in which facility agreement is in place. In addition
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) end the Groups ability
have an adverse

bank loans refinancing and discounts or waivers are being
discussed as evidenced in the case of Libersc plaza loan tender
which bought in 58% discount and materia! discount paying back
SPV loan holding plot in-Poliesti; Romania.

The Group's financial performance is dependent on local
realestate prices and rental levels

Risk description: There can be no guarantee that the real estate
markets in CEE region and India will continus to develop, or
develop at the rate anticipated by the Group, or that the market
trends anticipated by the Group will materialise. Where vields

_ are high, such as some of the current market vields, the Group

will not be able to achieve substantlal capital gains by sellmg the
commercial centers

Risk mitigation: Once assets are developed and glven the
Company’s ﬁnanolal strength, Plaza is able to hold developments :
on its balance sheet as yreldlng assets Sales of assets will not be

' :—f—'undertaken if offered ylelds are hlgh and Plaza will capitalise upon
s extensrve expenence gained over eight vears of managing and

running shoppmg malls effi orently to hold and manage these as
mcome-generanng mvestments in lts portfollo and continue to
drive occiipancy at these centers until sufficient otfered yields are

in plaoe subject 1o the festricturing plan and aohlewng the one
, year delerral perlod of the Dbinds principal repaymente

;fReal eslete valuation is inherenﬂy subjective and uncertain
: "'Rlsk description; The valuation of propery is inherently subjective

due 1o, amongst other things, the individual nature of each
propely, and furthermore vaantions are sensitive to change in

~ market sentrment As suich, valuations are subject to uncertainty

and cash generated on drsposals may be different from the value ‘
of assets prevrously carried on the Group s balanoe sheet There is
; tvalua; ns ot properhes when made, wrll reﬂeot ~
ale prices even where those sales oceur shortly after

: i ron the value of
ﬂuotuate asa resull of factors such as
1 ts and appllcable laws (rncludlng

decreases in the published value of the G hu
adversely affect the price of the ordinary sli' }( [
Date




Risk mitigation: Plaza will rely on its extensive experience and

knowledge of managing retails assets and strang relationships
with local and international retailers while using estimates

and associated assumptions. These estimates and underlying

assumptions are closely reviewed on an ongoing basis by the

Board members.

The Group’s borrowing costs and access fo capital markets
depend significantly on the Company’s credit ratings and market
perception of the Gompany's and the controlling shareholder's
financial resitience

Risk description: During 2015, the Israeli credit rating agency,
which is a division of International Standard & Poor’s, upgraded
the credit rating of Plaza's two series of Notes traded on Tel Aviv
Stock Exchange from “D"to “BBB-”, on a local Israeli scale; with
astable outlook and at the start of 2016 Plaza’s credit rating was
maintained on “BBB-* with a negative outlook. Reduction in the
credit ratings of the Group or deterioration in the capital market
perception of the Group’s financial resilience, could significantly
increase its borrowing costs, limit its access to the capital
markets and trigger additional collateral requirements in derivative
contracts and other secured funding arrangements. Therafore,
any further reduction in credit ratings or deterioration of market
perception could materially adversely affect the Group’s access
1o liquidity and competitive pasition and, hence. have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial position and/or
results of operations. These material adverse effects could also
follow from a reduction in the credit ratings of the controlling
shareholder.

Risk mitigation: Implementing the restructuring plan will resolve
the Company’s liquidity situation. Plaza is working hard to raise
external financing for capital needs and continues reviewing
financing options available to the Company to achieve the most
effective debt profile.

Plaza is actively pursuing sales opportunities to generate cash
which will contribute to the Company's liquidity and reduce debt
levels. The amended maturity schedule of debentures and loans

is detaited in the restructuring plan on page 8 and 9. In addition,
the Group maintains good relations with the financing banks who
remain supportive of companies with strong track records and o

tew debt facilities are under negotiation as evidenced by a binding

financing offer for Timisoara project which was agreed with the
Hungarian Export-Import Bank Pl (Exim bank) for circa'65%

of the project cost and the bank financing offer for the Belgrade
Plaza project for circa 55% of the construction cost. Thefi nanomg
agreement is expected to be finalised in the next quarter '

* _Plaza may he subject to risk relating to its co-investments,

)

 resilts ofopera ns

- Risk mitigat on: Plazahas very detalled agreé

because ownership and control of such investments are shared
with third parties

Risk description: Some of the Group’s projects (Riga Plaza; Plaza
Bas projects, the Casa Radio development and two projects in
India (Bangalore and Chennal)) are held through joint venture
arrangements with third parties meaning that ownership and
control of such assets is shared with third parties. As a resuit,
these arrangements involve risks that are not present with projects
in which the Group owns a controlling interest;

including:

the possibility that the Group’s joint venture partner might at

any time have economic or other business interests that are
inconsistent with the Group’s business interests;

the possibility that the (Group’s joint venture pariner rnay bein

2 position to take action contrary to the Group’s instructions or
requests, or contrary to the Group’s policles or objectrves or
frustrate the execution of acts which the Group bel ieves to be in
the interests of any pamcular project;

the posslbrlity that the Group’s S joint venture partner may. have .
different objectives from the Group, mcludmg with respect to

the appropriate timing and pricing of any sale or refinancing ofa
development and whether to enter ukto agreements with potential
contractors, tenants or purchasers, .

the possibility that the Groups jomt ven’rure partners may, engage
in, or be percelved to engage in, disreputable conduct;

the possibility that the Group's joint ven Ure pariner mrght become
bankrupt or insolvent; and '
the possibihty that the Group may be'réqu

' provrde frnanoe

Group is:un:'a'ble 10 reach or‘maintarn‘ agfr :
venture partner or ather third parky ont
operation of its business, th |
on the Group' Teputation

partners that contain provisions that are supposed 10 I|m|t the Initia
@Grant Thornton

Accountants an Adviseurs
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risks and exposures mentioned above (e.g: deadlock provisions,
information and visitation rights provisions, etc.): In respect of
the Bangalore project in India, Plaza has signed an agreement

to sell ifs interest in the SPV holding the project to its local part-
ner subject to certain. conditions precedent and not later than

30 September 2016. With respect to Chennai project, India
foltowing the local partner failure to complete the sale transaction
agreement Plaza will exercise its right to get the Partner's 20%
holdings in the SPV h'oiding the project. In addition; Plaza is in
negotiations to sell its 50% share in Ripa Plaza (Latvia) to a third

party.

Casa Radio Project
Risk description: In March 2016 Plaza announced that its board
had become awara of certain'iseu'es with respect to certain

agreements that were executed in the past by Plaza in connection :

, with the Casa Radio Proj ect in Romama

Rrsk mmgation In order to address this matter, Plaza’s Board
Vappointed the chairman of its Audit Gommittee to rnveshgate the
‘matters internally. Plaza’s Board also appomted mdependent law
hrms o pertorm an mdependent review of the issues raused
Plaza has approached and is co- operatmg fully with relevant ,
Romanian authontres regardmg the matters that have come fo its
attenhon inthis respect and it has submrtted its tmdmgs tothe
,Romanlan authorities. As the | vestigahon is ongoing, Plaza is
unabte to comment on any related to this matter

in addition, our Casa Radio projectin Ro
govemmentai £X 'pnatmh ar monetary sarnct
of the development end expiontatron rights granted
-~ venture company in reta’uon to the Casa Radio site
are for a period of oniy 49 years and i in the event that this tej
- is not extended, the nghts in relatron to. the site would revertto
the Govemment of Romanra Addmonaily, there may be other

regulatory risks reiatrng to the Romaman governments right to
_expropriate the rights to the Casa Radio Site in Buoharest or that
they will impose sanctions on the Company with respeot 10 the
property Furthermore these nghts are subject to terminat

ni may QGQSUDJ:BCHO

We may have difficulties exercising mortgages/guarantees
given in connection with our project in Bangalore; India which
__may stgniﬁcantiy affect our abflity to dispose of such assets and
complete ourstrategy relating to our plots in India

MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE @ '

Although the real estate sector in India is experiencing a
challenging downturn, our strategy with respect to our plots

in India is to dispose of such assets under the most optimal
market conditions. Our plots in India are partially owned by our
subsidiary, Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holdings Limited, or EPI,
and by local Indian partners. Due to regulatory, physical and

other limitations to develop our project in Bangalore, India, on
December 2, 2015 we announced that EP| signed an agreement fo
sell 100% of its Interest in a special purpose vehicle which holds
a site In Bangalore, India to a local Investor. The transaction is
subject to certain conditions precedent, and closing will take place
once these conditions are met and no later than 30 September
2016. In the event the closing conditions aren’t met by this date,
the local mvestor would be subject to the terms of an agreed upon
separation mechanrsm under which EPI will be entrtted under

, 'certain circumstances, fo exercise guarantees piaced by the local
7 ;rnvestor ln the event the separation mechanism isn' tproperly

executed and we are tnable to enforce the terms of the separatron’ .
mechanism on the. Iocal investor, we may face regulatory, Judrcial
andJor ie" ifficulties in exercl smg the guarantees Pplaced by

the Iocal westor due to among other thmgs m]unctrve reliet
requested by the local 'nvestor or third parties which may

materrally adverseiyra, ect oura ility to drspose of the land 1o thrrd
parhes which may Jeopardlse our businese strategy, planmng and

,operatlons and could calse severe delays in disposatron of the
_ plots and could have a matenal Vadverse effeot on olr o ratrons

cash flow and in turn, our abrhtyto repay. our debts in tlmeiy ~
manner.

Even if we are abie 10 properiy execute the separahon mechanism

. ‘and/or exererse the guarantees piaced by the ioeai investor, there

is no guarantee that we wul he abie to drspose ot the iand in the ;

projects, our ability to secure full title td our
may be significantly restricted. For exa
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80% owned by EP! and 20% by a local indian partner through
Kadavanthara Builders Private Limited, a special purpose vehicle.
Since the transaction did not close by January 15,2016, EPI
exercised its right to the local Indian partner's 20% holdings in
Kadavanthara Builders Private Limited and now contractually owns
100% of the Chennai, India project. Due to local regulatary and
legal restrictions and a lack of coopération from our local Indian
partners, the newly acquired 20% holding may be difficult to
register under applicable Indian reguiations.

In addition, there are ongoing court cases with respect to third
party proprietary claims to certain parcels-of land within the
Chennai, India project which may further impade our ability to
dispose of the asset. Physical and geographical limitations such as
the lack of an access road leading to the Chennai project territory,
theft of sand and destruction of property, and third party holdings
throughout the Chennai project territory (which we are unable to
purchase from such third parties at all or on reasonable market
terms) may also impede our ability to dispose of the Chennai
project on optimal commercial terms. Even in the event we are
successful in obtaining full title to the Chennai India project, the
presence of other limitations described above means that there

is no assurance that we will be able to sell such project to third
parties which may harm our business strategy and our cash flow.

Legal and regulatory risk

Like afl international companies, the Company is exposed to the
changing regulatory environment in the countries and regions where
it conducts business. Many of the CEE countries in which the Group
operates or intends to operate are countries that until the last two
decades were allied with the former Soviet Union under a communist
economic system, and they are still subject 1o various risks; which
may include instability or changes in national or local government
authorities, land expropriation, changes in taxation legislation or
regulation, changes to business practices or customs. changes to
laws and regulations relating to currency repatriation and limitations
on the level of foreign investment or development, The Group will be
affected by the rules and regulations regarding foreign ownership of
real estate and personal property.

The Group may be liable for the costs of removal, investigation

or remediation of hazardous or toxic substances located.on orin
a site owned or leased by it, regardless of whether a member of
the Group was responsible for the presence of such hazardous or
toxic substances. The costs of any required removal, investigation
or remediation of such substances may be substantial and/or
may result in significant budget overruns and critical delays in
construction schedules. The presence of such substances, or the
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_ Relief from taxatmn -available to the

with the assumptions made by the Company ﬂy o ,
Changes to the tax laws or practice in the courfiY; ?é e e Initia
Grant Thornton
Accountants en Advnseuts
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failure to remediate suich substances properly, may also adversely
affect the Group's ability to sell or lease the development or to
borrow using the real estate as security, Additionally, any future sale
of the-development will be generally subject to indemnities to be
provided by the Group to the purchaser against such environmental
liabilities. Accordingly, the Group may continue to face potential
environmental liabilities with respect to a particular property even
after such property has been sold: Laws and regulations, as may

be amended over time, may also'impose liability for the release of
certain materials into the air or water from a property, including
asbestos, and such release can form the basis for liability to third
persons for personal injury or other damages. Other laws and
regulations can limit the development of, and impose liability for, the
disturbance of wetlands or the habitats of threatened or endangered
species. Any environmental issie may significantly increase the cost
of a development and/or cause delays, which may have a material
adverse effect on the profi tablllty of that develupment and the results
of operations of the Group. .

There is an mcreaslng awareness of environmental issues in

Central and Eastern Europe. This "m'ay 'bé of critical importance in

areas previously occtipied by the Soviet Army, where SOII pollutlon

may be prevalent. The Group generally —lnsusls upon receivingan
environmental report as a condition- urchase, or alternatively,
conducts environmental tests during its due dlllgenca investigations.
Also, some colntries such as Poland, Hu’ ary, Romania and the

Gzech Republic require that a developer tarries out an environmental
report on the land before building permit ab cations are considered.
Nevertheless, the Group cannot be certain that all sntes acqmred
will be free of environmental pollutlon If.a pro
acquires tums ott to be polluted such a findin
the Group’s ablllty o construct, D
entertainment center on su
suffer expenses incurred in cleaning up the polluted
be significant.

While ths Group makes every effort t0 canduct thomugh
due dlllgence mvestlgatmns in some countnes where for
communist reglmes carried out exlens;ve land expmpnatm
the past, the Group may be faced with resmutlon clalms by fo
land. owners in respect of pmject sxtes acqun‘ed by it. If tiphel
these clalms would jeopardise tha mtegnty uf xls tltle tothela
its ability to develop the land, whlch

effect on the Group’s busmess fi
operatlons
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Company operates or any other tax jurisdiction affecting the Group
could be relevant. Such changes could affect the value of the
investments held by the Company or affect the Company'’s ability

to achieve its investment objective or alter the post-tax returns to
shareholders. The tax positions taken by the Group, including the tax
effect of transfer pricing and the availability of tax relief provisions,
are also subject to review by various tax authorities.

Under the Dutch participation exemption rules, income including
dividends and capital gains derived by Dutch companies in respect
of qualifying investments in the nominal paid up share capital of
resident or non-resident investee companies, are exempt from Dutch
corporate income tax provided the conditions as set under these
rules have been satisfied. The participation exemption rules and more
particularly the statutory conditions thereunder have most recently
been amended with effect from 1 January 2010. Such amended
conditions require, among others, a minimum percentage o'!_ the
share capital in the investee company requires that the investee
company is not held as a passive investment (the ‘motive test'). If
the motive test is not met, the participation exemption nevertheless
applies provided tha either the subject-to-tax-test or asset test is
‘met, To benefit from the participation exemption réglme -during the
entire holding periad. the requirements must be mgt th_rhughout the
entire holding period. The participation exemption also applies to
qualifying hybrid Joans. Should the Company not be in compliance
- 'with all participation exemption requirements or should the partici-
pation exemptmn rules be amended, this will affect its tax relief
which could have an adverse effect on its cash flow position and net
profits.

The _Gumpany has provided substantial amounts of loans to its
subsidiaries which are treated as hybrid loans and exempt under the
participation exemption. Most of these loans are not covered by a tax

- ruling confirming the treatment for Dutch tax purposes. Therefore,

there is a risk that a discussion arises with the Dutch tax authorities
on the treatment thereof.

Tax losses may be carried forward and set off against income of the.
immediately preceding tax year and the nine subsequent tax years
and may be offset against any income of the uum'panies currenfly
mcluded in the fiscal unity as long as these remain part of the fiscal
umty If losses are considered so-called “holding and/or financing
losses”, they may only be offset against income that is derived in
years that the Company also qualifies as “holding and/or financing
company” within the meaning of art. 20 (4) of the Dutch Corporate
Income Tax Act 1969, provided that the net balance of intragroup
receivables has not increased compared to the relevant loss making
year (unless there are sufficient business reasons for such increase).

_MANAGEME_NT AND GOVERNANGE °

If the Company were to be treated as having a permanent
establishment, or as otherwise being engaged in a trade or busi-
ness (including owning real estate outside the Netherlands), in any
country in which it develops shopping and entertainment centers or
in which its centers are managed, income (positive and negative)
attributable to or effectively connected with such permanent estab-
lishment or trade or business, is generally excluded from the Dutch
tax base. Specific conditions may apply based on the relevant double
taxation treaty and Dutch domestic law. The occurrence of one or
more of these factors may have a material adverse effect on the
Group's business, financial condition and/or results of operations.

Financial reporting

Plaza prepares an annual budget for each country, which is
compared with the actual results. Investment budg'ets and cash flow
forecasts are also prepared. The quarterly fi igures are re\newed by
the external auditor prior to their publication by means of a press
release. The financial statements are audited by the external auditor,

: and Ihe quar‘rerly and half year figures are subjected to a limited

review by the external audrtur

Internal control and risk managemeni
prucedures

1) Definition and ohjectives

Internal control is the structure within which resources, behavior,
procedures and actions are implemented by the Management Board
and throughout the Company to ensure that activities and risks are
fully controlled and to obtain the reasonable assurance that the
Company’s strategic objectives have been met.

Plaza’s internal control procedures aim to ensure:

» the optimisation of operations and the smooth functioning of the
Groups internal processes:
+ compliance with current laws and regulations;

~» the application of |nstmcﬁons and dlractlons given by the

- Management Board; and
» the reliability of financial information.

The system is based on the following three key principles;

= the involvement of and taking responsibility by all personnel: all
Group employees contribute to internal control procedures; each

employeg, at his or her level, should exeraise gffeptivamaiFdCavEION
L il

the activities for which he or she is resporisible;  pyjRPOSES
* the full extent of the scope covered by the procedures: the -
! nt orni
procedures should apply to all entities (op allg gg vand
« separation of tasks: control functions shnuI;LE ent of-+ “ al; """"
operating functions. Date iﬁ
tThor
Iy
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The internal control procedures designed to address the objectives
described above cannot, however, ensure with certainty that these
objectives will be achieved in full, since all procedures have inherent
limitations. However, they aim to make a very significant contribution
in this direction.

It) Four components of internal control procedures

a) Organisation and environment

Plaza's internal control procedures distinguish permanent control
from periodic control, which are independent but complementary.
Permanent control is the responsibility of all Group employees. It is
linked directly to the business sectors, functions and subsidiaries.

Managers of the business functions, country directors, aim to ensure
compliance with the Group's internal control procedures, whose
tasks are:

to ensure the methods chosen at Group level are coordinated and
implemented by their teams;

to design and adapt the reporting procedures on a regular basis,
giving the most appropriate indicators to obtain clear visibility of
their permanent control; and

ta regularly transmit this reporting to their superiors and indicate
problems and incoherences in order to enable appropriate
decisions to be taken regarding changes to the controls.

The powers of the Group companies’ legal representatives are limi-

ted and subject to controls. Functional departments provide expertise

to operational departments. Permanent control procedures require

several participants. The involvement of many players necessitates

tight coordination of actions and methods. At Group level, the

coordination of permanent control is carried out under the authority

of the head of accounting and CFO, whose tasks are:

* to ensure the design and implementation of actions to improve
permanent control in the Group’s business functions;

* to coordinate the choice of methodologies and tools; and

* to monitor the development of the procedures in the business
functions and subsidiaries.

b) Risk management

The Group is careful to anticipate and manage major risks likely to
affect the achievement of its goals and to compromise its compliance
with current laws and regulations. These risks are identified above

in this section. The identification and evaluation of risks is used as

a reference to determine procedures and controls which, in their
turn, influence the level of residual risk. The procedures provide a
framewaork for the activity, in a more precise way where risks have
been identified, and their application provides a control mechanism.
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c) Contral activities to meet these risks
The internal control and risk management system is based on two
levels of control as follows:

First level - First degree — Permanent control

The first level and first degree of control is exercised by every
employee as part of his or her job-related tasks with reference to
the applicable procedures. Control is ensured on an ongoing basis
by the initiation of a task by operating employees themselves or by
automatic systems for carrying out operations.

First level — Second degree — Permanent control

The second level is exercised by the management of the business
function. Controls are carried out in the framework of operatlng
procedures.

Second level -~ Permanent control

The second level of control is intended to ensure Ihat the first level
controls have been carried outand respected correctly It is under-
taken by separate functions, specially dedicated to pennanenl control.

Internal accounting control

A dedicated function within the Accounting Department is charged
with checking the smooth functioning of first level accounting
controls. See section below "In_lerna_l:'cd_r'lfrol procedures refating to
the preparation and processing of the dccouming and financlal
information”. :

d) Management and supervision of internal control s_)_'siams
Under the direction of the Management Board, the activities and
functions managers carry out the supervision of the internal control
system with the support of the permanent control coordination
function. The Audit :Cammittee meets at least twice per year.

Its work and conclusions are reported to the Management

Board. 'I"_he supervision is also supported by the comments and
recommendations of the statutory auditors and by any regulatory
supervision which may take place.

I1) Risk management and internal control bodies
The main bodies involved in managing the internal control system are:

a) Management Board

The Manag’ément Board has overall responsibility for the Group's

internal control systems. The Management Board is tasked w’ﬂmﬂc ATION
defining the general principles of the internal con Isﬁg OSES -

)

Da'te : Initials
Grant‘momt'on =+
Accountants en Adviseus b. 3
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b} Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is informed at least once a year of the status
of the Group's entire internal control system, any changes made to
the system and the findings of the work carried out by the various
participants working in the system.

¢) Functional management
Business unit management defines the orientation and procedures
and provides guidance to employees in their business unit.

d) Group employees

Operating supervisors and line managers are responsible for
controlling risks and are the principal actors in permanent control.
They exercise first level controls.

Internal control procedures relating
to the preparation and processing of the
accounting and financial information

1) Definition and objectives

The aim of accounting controls is to ensure adequata coverage of
the main accounting risks. They raly on understanding operational
processes and the way they are translated into the Cnmpany
accounts, and on defining the responsibilities of the individuals
responsible for accounting scopes and information system security.
Internal accounting controls aim to ensure: =

. t_hat published accountmg_ and financial information complies with.

accounting regulations; 2

* that the at:cuunting principles and instructions issued by the
Group are applied by all its subsadlary companies; and

s that the Inforrnatiun mstnhuted and used internally is sufficiently
reliable to contn_bu_le to processing accounting information.

Il) Management process for accounting and financial organisation

a) Accounting organisation

The production of accounting information and the application of the

controls |mpiemented to ensure the relaabnny of said information are

primarily the respunsmmty of the Cnmpanys Financial & Accounting

Department that submit information to the Group, and which

certify its compliance with the internal certification procedure. The

corporate and consolidated financial statements are prepared by the

Financial & Accounting Department, which reports directly to the

Management Board. The department is charged with:

* updating accounting rules in view of changes in accounting
regulations;

« defining the various levels of accounting control to be applied to
the financial statement preparation process;

* ensuring correct operation of the internal accounting control
environment within the Group, with particular reference to the
internal certification procedure described below;
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= preparing and updating the procedures, validation rules and
authorisation rules applying to the department; and

= monitoring the implementation of recommendations made by
external auditors.

b) Financial risk management

The management of financial risks, and in particular the financial
structure of the Group, its financing needs and interest rate and
exchange rate risk management procedures, is provided by the Fi-
nancial & Accounting Department, which reports directly to the
Management Board. At the end of each year, the Board validates

the provisional financing plan for the following year, which sets out
the broad outlines in terms of the balance and choice of resources,
as well as interest rate and exchange rate hedges. During the year,
key financial transaction decisions are submitted individually for
approval by the Board and Audit Committee, which also receives a
summary of these transactions once they have been completed. The
processing and centralisation of cash flows, together with interest
rate and exchange rate hedging, are the responsibility of the Financi-

.aI & Accountmg Deparlrnent which keeps a record of commitments

and ensures that they are reflected in the accounting system

11} Processes contributing to the preparahun of accounting

and financial information -
a}_pperallunal processes used to generate accounting information
Plaza's financial statements are prepared centrally at Plaza's
corporate headquarters. The country departments are responsible
for collecting information from the local bookkeepers and applying

a series of appropriate controls to their job functions, as defined in
the corresponding procedures. The Accounting Department has set
up a system of internal collection and verification of country data and
controls carried out. This system of control covers all Group entities.

b) Processes used to prepare the corporate and consolidated
financial statements

The financial statements for the entire scope of consolidation are
consolidated by the Accounting Department. At the end of each year,
the Management Board validates the provisional financing plan for

the following year, which sets out the broad outlines in terms of the

balance and choice of resources, as well as interest rate hedges. During
the year, key financial transaction decisions are submitted individually
for approval. The processing and centralisation of cash fiows, together
with interest rate and exchange rate hedging, are the respunsibilny of
the Investment Committee, which keeps a record of cnmmrtrnems and

ensures that they are reflected in the acco tm%@'ﬁifgh]\mﬂ(ﬁl {ON

PURPOSES
c) The Audit Committee

The clarity of financial information and thefrel ng\“m‘)
accounting principles used are monitored b yd pmmmee B
(whose role has already been specified). Initials

Grant Thornion
Accountants en Adviseurs BY.
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Remuneration report

Remuneration Committee

As stated in the Corporate governance report on pages 48 to 53 of
this document, the Remuneration Committee meets at least twice
each financial year to prepare, among other matters, the decision
of the Board relating to the remuneration of directors and any
share incentive plans. It is also responsible for preparing an annual
report on the Company’s remuneration policies and for giving full
consideration in all its deliberations to the principles set out in the
Combined Code.

Under Dutch corporate law and the Arlicles of the Company, a General
Meeting of Shareholders must determine the principal guidelines
governing the remuneration both of executive and non-executive
directors. In addition, such a meeting also has to approve the granting
to them of options and share incentive plans.

The Board may only determine the remuneration of directors within
such guidelines, and no director or manager may be involved in any
decisions relating to his or her own remuneration.

Remuneration policy

Plaza Centers' remuneration policy is designed to attract,

motivate and retain the high-calibre individuals who will enable the
Company ta serve the best interests of shareholders over the long
term, through delivering a high level of corporate performance.
Remuneration packages are aimed at balancing both short term and
long term rewards, as well as performance and non-performance

related pay.

The Remuneration Committee reviews base salaries annually.
Increases for all employees are recommended by reference to cost
of living, responsibilities and market rates, and are performed at the

same time of year.

The Remuneration Committee believes that senior management's
total remuneration should aim to recognise his or her worth on
the open market and to this end pays base salaries in line with the
market median supplemented by a performance-related element
with the capacity to provide more than 50% of total potential

remuneration.

Salary and fees

Executive directors

€000

Share Total remuneration

option pian’ for the year 2015
€'000 €000

Mr. Nadav Livni® 67 - 67
Subtotal 67 - Wy
Nun:ékacutlve dlreﬁlurs . .
Mr. Sarig Shalhav 67 - 67
Mr. Ron Hadassi? 180 - 180
Mr. David Dekel 67 - 67
Mr. Shiomi Kelsi? 67 - 67
Mr. Yoav Kfir® 67 67
Mr. Marco Wichers 67 - 67
Subtotal 55 . : 515
Total — All directors 582 - 582
There were no performance related remuneration in 2015 FOR IESEII;IEISCE?“ON

1 Accounting non-cash expenses recorded In the Company’s consolidated income statement in connection with the share option plan.

1
E B) GrantTho
2 M. Hadassi serves also as the chalrman of the Board. i @
3 Unti December 2015 | M [ Jo A
rant ;

Date Initials

Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs BV,
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Service arrangements Bonuses

The directors have specific terms of reference. Their letters of The Company has the authority t_a_gward.-ﬂ'_i;s_cret_iana__ry bu‘hUs_jeé for f h‘
appointment state an initial 12-month period, terminable by either senior executives and employees tp to-ceftain level based on genemﬁl'm P
party on three months’ written notice. Save for payment during achievements. - ! i e = o
respective notice periods, these agreements do not provide for = : ’ i 5 Eie
payment on termination. = ; L i i oaaend
The shareholder returns performance 2015 | e g

®) ;

dan Feb 2 Apr My Jun P

*  Source: Bloomberg, as of 31 December 2015, Past performance ks not an indication of future refumns, > : : BBIEELE 1 o
: B ; En = : } 5 Lo 3 m

Grant Thornton
Accountants en Advis
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Share options Options will vest in three equal annual portions and have a P
j : 3 contractual life of fifteen and ten years following grant date for first
The Company adopted its share option schemes (“first ESOP") ESOP and second ESOP, respectively. In the course of 2014,

on 26 October 2006 (which was amended on 25 November 2008, no options were granted under ESOP. For the exercise and forfeit of
22 November 2011 and 20 November 2012) and on 22 November options refer to the table below.

2011 ("second ESOP") (refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial : : - ;

slatements) the terms and conditions of which (except for the For further detailed information about share option schemes refer to
exercise price) are regulated by the share option schemes. note 20 in the consolidated financial statements.

Number  Number exercisable Exercise Remaining

of options granted as at 31 December, price of maturity

and unexercised 2014 and 2015 options £ (years)

Mr. Mordechay Zisser 3,907,895 3,907,895 0.43 6.82
Mr. Ran Shtarkman 7,089,151 7,089,151 0.43 6.82 '

Mr. Shiman Yitzchaki 1,794,361 1,794,361 0,43 6.82

Mr. Marius van Eibergen Santhagens - - 2 2
Mr. Sarig Shalhav 5 - i i
Mr. Ron Hadassi 4 - 2 4
Mr. David Dekel - = . o
Mr. Shlomi Kelsi - x z :
Mr. Yoav Kfir - - 2 =
Mr. Nadav Livni - 7 & =
Mr. Marco Wichers - 3 : -

Number of options
as at 31 December
2015

Total pool 47,834,586
Granted 47,195,174
Exercised 8,420,598
Forfeited (14,977,203)
Left for future grant 15,616,615

Amsterdam, 18 May 2016

The Board of Directors:

Ron Hadassi Marco Wichers Nadav Livni Sarig Shalhav . David Dekel :

i fomDENnHCA“ON ___ {

RPOS‘ES _
rantTh'““
I;? " ln-.l'.als
; hmn‘lm‘
hccoun?l::l : AdViss um?-“-
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Statement
of the directors

The responsibilities of the directors are determined by applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union.

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the
annual financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Netherlands law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give, according to generally
acceplable standards, a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
companies that are included in its consolidated accounts for that
period,

Netherlands law requires the directors to prepare an annual report
that gives a true and fair view of the position as per the balance sheet
date, the course of business during the past financial year of the

: Compd_ny and its affiliated companies included in the annual financial
statements, and that the annual report contains a proper description
of the principal risks the company faces.

Directors are required io abide by certain guidelines in undertaking
these tasks

The direcinrs need to select appropriate accounting policies and
afpply them consistently in their reports. They must state whether
“they have followed applicable accounting standards, disclosing and
explaining any material departures in the financial statements.

}\ny judgments and estimates that directors make must be both
‘reasonable and prudent. The directors must also prepare financial
statements on a “going concern” basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above

requirements in preparing the financial statements.

Thmughuut the financial year, the directors are respansible for
: keeplng proper accounting records which disclose at any time and
with reasonable accuracy the financial pasition of the Company. They
are also responsible for ensuring that these statements comply with
o eippli{:ahle company law.

In addition, they are responsible for internal cantrol systems

lhat help identify and address the commercial risks of being in
husmess and so safeguard the assets of the Company. They are
arsu respnnsible for taking reasonable steps to enable the detection
~ and pr_evemrun of fra__ud and other irregularities.

The Company’s website may be accessed in many countries, which
have different 'Iaqaf requirements. The directors are responsible for

maintaining the accuracy of corporate and financial information on
the website, where a failure to update or amend information may
cause inappropriate decision making.

On the basis of the above and in accordance with Best Practice
Provision 11.1.4. of the Netherlands Corporate Governance Gode,
the directors confirm that internal controls over financial reporting
within the Gompany provide a reasonable level of assurance that the
financial reporting does not contain any material inaccuracies, and
confirm that these controls functioned properly in the year under
review and that there are no indications that they will not continue
to do so.

The financial statements fairly represent the Company’s financial
condition and the results of the Company's operations and provide
the required disclosures.

It should be noted that the above does not imply that these
systems and procedures provide absolute assurance as to the
realisation of operational and strategic business objectives, or that
they can prevent all misstatements, inaccuracies, errors, fraud and
non-compliance with legislation, rules and regulations.

In view of all of the above, hereby following the requirements of
Article 5:25¢ Paragraph 2 under c. of the Netherlands Act on the
Financial Supervision (Wet op het financieel toezicht), the directors
hereby confirm that (i) the annual financial statements 2015, as
included herein, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and its affiliated
companies that are included in the consolidated financial statements;
and (ii) the annual report includes a fair review of the position at the
balance sheet date and the development and performance of the bu-
siness of the Company and its affiliated companies that are included
in the consolidated annual financial statements and that the principal
risks and uncertainties that the company faces are described.

The Board of Managing Directors

Ron Hadassi David Dekel
Non-executive Director, Independent Non-executive
Chairman Director

Nadav Livni Marco Habib Wichers

Executive Director

Ind en?ﬁ BERIARIORTION
Diregtor, AIMBRRPOSES

Sarig Shalhav Thom
Independent Non-executive rant @
Director M’ o
ite 18 MAPUAE
Grant Thornton o
Accountants en Advi
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December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Note €'000 €'000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4 15,659 33,363
Restricted bank deposits 5 4774 6,886
Held for trading financial assets - 1,434
Trade receivables B 1,654 2,719
Other accounts receivable 7a 1,350 2,963
Prepayments 7b 196 767
Total current assets 23,633 48,132
Trading properties B 317,758 370,761
Equity accounted investees 10 40,608 36,108
Loan to equity accounted investee 10 4,298 6,121
Property and equipment 9 2,480 4,029
Related parties receivables 29(h) 2,828 &
Deferred taxes 17 406 921
Other non-current assets . 25
Total non-current assels 368,378 417,965
Total assels 392,011 466,097
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Interest bearing loans from banks 12 31,891 37,885
Debentures at amortized cost 2(c),16 79,564 -
Trade payables 13 2,223 1,893
Related parties liabilities 14 109 1,161
Derivatives 1 436 430
Other Hiabilities 15 7,045 13,175
Total current labilities 121,268 54,544
Interest bearing loans from banks 12 70,621 112,962
Debentures at amortized cost 16 102,025 162,862
Provisions B 14,911 15,507
Derivatives 1 318 559
Total non-current liahilitles 187,875 291,980
Share capital i8 6,856 6,856
Translation reserve 18 (27.418) (36,699)
Capital reserve due to transaction with Non-contralling interests (20,7086) (20,706)
Other reserves 18 35,376 35,340
Share premium 18 282,596 282,596
Retained losses (194,602) (148,486)
Equity atiribulable to equity holders of the Company 82,102 118,901
Non-controlling interests 766 672
Total equity 82,868 119,573
Total equity and liabilities 392,011 466,097
May 18, 2016 Roy Linden David Dekel N
Date of approval of the Chief Financial i Duﬁi}ﬂmmg&“ﬁ%
financial statements Officer | Audit Compi/RPOSES
i on
The notes on pages 75 ~ 134 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. i ﬁ GrantThornX
’ Initials
Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs BV.
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Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Note €'000 €'000
Continuing operations
Revenue from disposal of trading property 29(a) 34,684 38,600
Rental income 21(a) 18,676 22112
Revenues from entertainment centers 21(b) 728 1,713
Total revenues 54,088 62,425
Cost of trading property disposed 29(a) (34,684) {38,600)
Cost of operations 22(a) (6,481) (8,491)
Cost of operations - entertainment centers 22(b) (1,019) (2,169)
Loss from disposal of trading property SPY 29(a) (8,802) S
Gross profit 3,102 13,165
Loss from disposal of trading property plots - (573)
Gain from sale of leasehold rights 29(i) 2,589 -
Write-down of trading properties 8 (20,322) (87,489)
Uplift (write-down) of equity-accounted investees, net 10 939 {1,687)
Loss from disposal of equity accounted investees (holding undeveloped trading properties) - (4,048)
Share in results of equity-accounted investees, net of tax 10 1,043 1,641
Administrative expenses, excluding restructuring costs 23a (6,999) (7,434)
Restructuring costs 23b . (2,388)
Other income 24 7,307 2,484
Other expenses 24 (1,851) (2,507)
Loss from operaling activities {14,192) (88,836)
Gain from restructuring plan 16 - 3,443
Finance income 25 14,292 1,263
Finance costs 25 (45,195) (36,839)
Net finance costs (30,903} {35,576)
Loss before income tax (45,095) (120,969)
Tax benefit (income tax expense) 26 (1,021) 1,282
Loss for the year (46,116) (119,687)
Loss atiributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (46,116) (119,687)
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted loss per share (in EURD) 19 (0.07) (0.39)
The notes on pages 75— 134 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. H FOR ]DENT]HCAT'ION
PURPOSES
mntThomiOT'
[{, ...... ]s
Dale lntua
Gram T‘I'lorntnn "
Acce tants en A
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Year ended Year endad

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
€'000 €'000
Loss for the year (46,116) (119,687)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that are or may be reclassified 1o profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences - foreign operations (trading properties) - reclassified to profit or loss 6,516 -
Foreign currency translation differences - foreign operations (Equity accounted investees) 1,738 2,740
Foreign currency translation differences - foreign operations (trading properties) 1121 1,278
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of income tax 9,375 4,018
Total comprehensive loss for the year (36,741) (115,669)
Total comprehensive income (loss) atiributable to:
Equity holders of the Company: (36,835) (115,735)
Non-controlling interests 94 66
Total comprehensive loss for the year (36,741) (115,669)
The notes on pages 75 — 134 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
| FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES
p f@ Ziantmomm
é’;m Sacee Initials
Grant Thornton
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Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

Capltal
reserve from
acquisition of
non-contrelling
Share Interests
based without Retained Non-
Share Share payment  Translation a change earnings controlling
capilal premium reserves reserve in control (losses) Total Interests Total
€'000 €000 €'000 €000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Balance al December 31, 2013 2,972 261,773 35,133 (40,651) (20,706) (28,799) 209,722 606 210,328
Right issuance (refer to note 18) 3,884 20,823 - - - - 24,707 - 24,707
Share based payment
(refer to note 20) - - 207 - - - 207 - 207
Comprehensive income for the year
Net loss for the year - - - - - (119,687) (119,687) - (119,687)
Foreign currency translation
differences - - - 3,952 - - 3,952 66 4,018
Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - 3,952 - (119,687)  (115,735) 66  (115,669)
Balance at December 31, 2014 6,856 282,596 35,340 (36,699) (20,706) (148,486) 118,301 672 118,573
Share based payment
(refer to note 20) . - 36 - - - 36 - 36
Comprehansive income for the year
Net loss for the year - - - - - (46,116) (46,116) - (46,116)
Foreign currency transiation
differences - = = 9,281 - - 9,281 94 9,375
Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - 9,261 - (46,116) (36,835) 94 (36,741)
Balance at December 31, 2015 6,856 282,596 35,376 (27,418) (20,706)  (194,602) 82,102 766 82,868
The notes on pages 75~ 134 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
" FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES
GrantThorntors
icfie. LL-
Date Iniial
Grant Thornton
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Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Note €'000 Restated* €'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year (46,116) (119.687)
Adjustments necessary fo reflect cash flows used in operating activities:
Depreciation and impairment of property and equipment 9 200 982
Net finance costs 25 30,903 35,576
Equity-settled share-based payment transaction 36 207
Gain from restructuring plan 16 = (3,443)
Loss on sale of property and equipment - 232
Share of ain of equity-accounted investees, net of tax 10 {1,043) {1,641)
Income tax expense (tax benefit) 26 1,021 (1,282)
Sublatal (14,999) (89,056)
Changes in:
Trade receivahles 644 222
Other accounts receivable (2,810) 2,566
Trading properties 8 36,640 106,176
Equity Accounted Investees 105 5122
Trade payables 346 (64)
Other liabilities, related parties liabilities and provisions (5.680) 3,964
Subltotal 29,245 117,986
Interest received 290 93
Interest paid (17,053} (20,664)
Taxes paid (118) (18)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (2,635) 8,341
Cash from Invasting activities
Purchase of properly and equipment 9 - {12)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 29(d) 1,190 1,375
Sale of held for trading marketable debt securities 2,227
Purchase of held for trading marketable debt securities (825) -
Net cash provided by invesling activities 2,592 1,363
The notes on pages 75 - 134 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
' FOR IDENTIFICATION
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Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Note €000 €'000
Cash from financing activities
Proceeds (payments) from hedging activities through sale of options 11 (373) 313
Changes in restricted cash 1,945 (2,019)
Proceeds from right issuance, net of right issuance costs 18 - 18,836
Repayment of debentures 16 (6,585) (12,057)
Repayment of interest bearing loans from banks 29(c) (12,921) (7,527}
Net cash used in financing activities (17,934) (2,454)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (17,977) 7,250
Effect of movement in exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 273 (44)
Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1st 33,363 26,157
Cash and cash equivalents as al December 31st 15,659 33,363
The notes on pages 75 - 134 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
FOR IDENTIFICATION
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NOTE 1 - PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND OWNERSHIP

Plaza Genters N.V. (“the Group” or “the Company”) was incorporated and is registered in the Netherfands. The Company's registered office is at Prins Hendrikkade
48-8, 1012 AC, Amsterdam, the Netherlands. The Company conducts its activities in the field of establishing, operating and selling of shopping and entertainment
centers, as well as other mixed-use projects (retail, office, residential) in Central and Eastern Europe (starting 1996) and India (from 2006).

The consolidated financial statements for each of the periods presented comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group") and the
Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of the London Stock Exchange (“LSE"), the Warsaw Stock Exchange (“WSE") and, starting November 2014, on the Tel
Aviv Stock Exchange (“TASE”).

The Company's immediate parent company is Elbit Uitrasound (Luxembourg) B.V. / S.a rf. (“EUL"), which holds 44.9% of the Company’s shares, as at the end of

the reporting period (December 31, 2014 - 44.9%). The Company regards Elbit Imaging Limited (“E") as the ultimate parent company (refer to note 30 for more
details). For the list of the Group entities, refer to note 35.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PREPARATION

2. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (,IFRS"), as adopted by the European
Union {“EU”).

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on May 18, 2016.
b. Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in EURO (*EUR"), which is the Company’s functional currency. Al financial information presented in EUR
has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

¢. Financial position of the Company

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the Group will be able to meet the mandatory repayment
terms of the banking facilities and debentures, as disclosed in notes 12 and 16.

Following the closing of the Company's restructuring plan (as mentioned in note 29(e), “the Plan” in this note), the Company’s consolidated financial statements
include fiabilities to hondholder's in the aggregate principal amount of EUR 203 million.

The following table sets forth the cash flow forecast of the Company until mid-2017 in order to achieve the abovementioned repayments, as they fall due.

According to the Plan, if until December 1, 2016 the Company manages to repay its principal of debentures in the amount of NIS 434 million (EUR 102 miflion),
then the remaining principal payments shall be deferred for an additional year (“the Deferral”). Since the Plan entered into effect, until December 31, 2015, the
Company has repaid circa NIS 89 million (EUR 19 million) out of the debentures. The remaining NIS 345 million (EUR 81 million) of the bonds principal (through
selling of its assets), together with the interest of approximately EUR 13 million are still to be paid up to December 1, 2016, if the Company is to achieve the
abovementioned condition in the Plan.

Since parts of series B debentures are held in treasury (refer to note 29(1)), the total required net principal repayment in 2016 in order to achieve the Deferral is
NIS 338 millian (EUR 80 millicn). As the Company’s primary objective is to obtain the Deferral, it has therefore reclassified this minimum net amount to current.
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The scenario below reflects the Company’s approved business plan until June 30, 2017:
Expected cash flow (in MEUR)
In the year ending In the six months ending

December 31, 2016 June 30, 2017
Opening balance of consolidated cash' 20 37
Sources of cash during the period
Net proceeds from disposal of operating shopping centers? a8
Proceeds from disposal of plots held® 54 15
Net operating income from shopping centers? 14 1
Total sources expected 186 53
Hems added
Principal repayment of debentures, net? (108) (1)
Interest repayment of debentures, net (13) (3)
Investment in projects under construction® (15) (1)
Repayment of bank facilities in subsidiaries (principal +interest) (7) (1)
General and administrative expenses (6) (3)
Total uses expected (149) (19)
Closing balance of consolidated cash’ 37 34

——

Opening balance - as appeared in this consolidated statement of financial position, including restricted cash (which will be released upan the disposal of the operating shopping centers).

(53

2016 - Expected net payment from the selling of four shopping centers (Riga, Liberec, Suwakki and Torun).

w

2016 - The Gompany expects extensive disposal of it plots held in CEE and in India. Main 2016 disposal are expected in India and Serbia. 2017 - Main disposal is due to India.

o

As the operating shopping centers are to be disposed of in 2016, in 2017 Net Operating Income is generated from the Belgrade Plaza (Visnijcka) shopping center to be opened in the first
half of 2017.

w

2016 - This reflects the gross amount of EUR 110 million to be paid based on forecast disposal proceeds, net of the expected repayment on treasury bonds held in the amount of EUR 2
million.

[

2016 — Main investment in Belgrade Plaza (Visnijcka project) and in Timisoara project (Romania).

-

2016 - Immaterial restricted cash amounts. 2017 - Including restricted cash in Visnjicka of EUR 3 million.

It should be noted, that the projected cash flow is based on the Company’s forward-looking plans, assumptions, estimations, predictions and evaluations which
rely on the information known to the Company at the time of the approval of these financial statements (collectively, the “Assumptions”).

The materialization, occurrence, consummation and execution of the events and transactions and of the Assumptions on which the projected cash flow is based,
including with respect to the proceeds and timing thereof, although probable, are not certain and are subject to factors beyond the Company's control as well as
to the consents and approvals of third parties and certain risks factors. Therefore, delays in the realization of the Company's assets and investments or realization
at lower price than expected by the Company’s, as well as any other deviation from the Company’s Assumptions, could have an adverse effect on the Company's
cash flow and the Company’s ability to service its indebtedness in a timely manner.

if the Company is unable to repay cumulative NIS 434 million (EUR 108 million} by December 1, 2018, then the minimum required principal repayment due
December 31, 2016 is NIS 57 million (EUR 13.5 million) (refer to Note 16), plus 75% of the net proceeds from sales of trading properties, which will be paid
through the net cash generated out of the disposal program summarized above

d. Invesimeni property vs. trading property classification FOR QDENT{HCATION %
et s oroperts . . , PURPOSES 4
The Gompany has designated its properties into three types (completed trading property projects, plots scheduled for construction and plots under planning ’
stage). In respect of its completed trading property projects, and as written above, the Group has not changed its business mode! and is {Bsking Dhymstorn ’
Therefore it is clear from the Company’s perspective that these completed properties are trading properties, rather than investment pr?p{e sj k é g {:’
i‘j‘a{ét [ Initials
Grant Thomton
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In respect of plots under planning stage held, which are not intended to be constructed in the near future, the Company is actively looking for buyers and does
not hold the plots passively with the intention to gain from a potential value increase. Plots scheduled for construction are intended to be developed and sold
as a completed project in the normal course of business once circumstances allow. Therefore management also believe that these are appropriately classified as
trading properties.

&. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information
about other critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the following notes:

» Note 8 ~ Suspension of borrowing costs capitalisation

* Note 8 - Classification of trading properties as current vs. non-current
* Note 2(d) - Trading property vs. Investment property

* Note 10 - Classification of the joint arrangement

*+ Note 16 ~ Measurement of fair value of new debenture series

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are
included in the following notes:

* Notes 8 - Key assumptions used in determining the net realisable value of trading properties

= Note 8, 28 ~ Provisions and contingencies

* Note 20 - Measurement of share-based payments

* Note 26 - Recognition of deferred tax assets and availability of future taxable profits against which carry-forward tax loss can be used

Functional currency

The EUR is the functional currency for Group companies (with the exception of Indian companies - in which the functional currency is the Indian Rupee ~ INR)
since it is the currency of the economic environment in which the Group operates. This is because the EUR (and in India the INR) is the main currency in which
management, determines its pricing with tenants, potential buyers and suppliers, determine its financing activities and budgets and assesses its currency
8Xposures.

Operating cycle determination

The Normal Operating Cycle (“NOC”) of the Group is driven by its business mode! to buy, develop and sell, primarily shopping centers, and comprises the
estimated amount of time required to complete the process from the acquisition of undeveloped land through its development, preparation for sale and ultimate
disposal. Based on the Group's experience, mainly from the period from 1996-2008, this periad of time was three to five years (and in respect of large scale,
multi-phase/mixed-use projects, up to sight years). For example, for completed shopping centres, these steps include achieving a stabilized tenants list, improving
the tenant mix, increasing occupancy rates, completion of certain tenant improvements and finding the qualified buyers. For plots, this includes obtaining permits,
finance and construction.

The Company maintains its existing business modsl; however following the financial crisis, the level of uncertainty of the actual amount of time needed to
complete alf steps in the process has become much longer than what the Company believes is a normal level, Over the period 2009 — 2012, the Company has had
difficulty selling completed properties at prices refiecting management’s view of reasonable estimated values, as well as experienced a lack of ayg;:g:@mﬁf gruAﬂ ON
development of plots. The return to what management considers more normal conditions, primarily in the CEF markets where it has pmpertie; %
than expected. PURPOSES
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In view of the above uncertainties and abnormalities, the Company has taken in 2013 (and reassured this position in both 2014 and 2015) a gbsitir o ran 3
reclassifying its entire trading properties ta long term. iij 5 ! m
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NOTE 3 - MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset ora liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as possible. The Company's finance department reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes, is used to measure fair values, then the finance
department assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties ta support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the
level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the

inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

* Level 2: inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices)

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liahility that are not based on observable market data (unobservabie inputs)

¢ Note 11 - Derivatives
¢ Note 20 - Employee share option plan
* Note 27 - Financial instruments

NOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Interest rate as of December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Bank deposits and cash denominated in December 31, 2015 €000 €000
EUR - bank balances 6,595 26,954
Romanian Lei (RON) Mainly 0.4% 2,739 2,203
United States Dollar (USD) - bank balances 2,089 505
New Israeli Shekel (NIS) 0% 2,017 554
Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1,576 2,248
Other currencies 663 899
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position 15,659 33,363
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 27.
NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Interest rate as of December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

December 31, 2015 €000 €000

Short-term restricted bank deposits
InEUR See below! 3,972 5,232
In USD 298 1,037
In other currencies (2015 - PLN) See below! 504 617
Total short-term 4,774 6,886

1 As of December 31, 2015, FUR 4.5 million is restricted mainly in respect of bank facilities agreements signed to finance

mainty overnight rates.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 27,

PLAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL REPORT 2015 78

projects in poland. These amounts carry an ann%aﬁ]%rﬁﬁtgﬁt?ﬁhcﬁném
PURPOSES

[GrantThcmtor{
V4 =

)

seflubsenca &

inftials

Grant Thornion )
Accountants en Adviseurs B Y.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




NOTE 6 - TRADE RECEIVABLES

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

€000 €000
Trade receivables 3,064 4,255
Less — Allowance for doubtful debts (1,410) (1,536)
Total 1,654 2,719
NOTE 7 - OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES
a. Other receivables December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

€000 €000
VAT and tax receivables 1,061 2,502
Others 289 461
Total 1,350 2,963

Ir. Prepayments and advances

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

€000 €000
Advance payments to suppliers 137 275
Prepaid expenses 59 492
Total 196 767
NOTE 8 - TRADING PROPERTIES
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
€000 €000
Balance as at 1 January 370,761 495174
Acquisition and construction costs! 6,649 7,520
Write-down of trading properties, net? (20,322) (87.,489)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 4,756 3,713
Trading properties disposed (refer to note 28(a) and 29(b)) (44,086) (48,157)
Balance as at 31 December 317,758 370,761
Completed trading properties (operating shopping centers) 129,483 170,189
Plots scheduled for construction®s 161,183 164,930
Plots under planning stage 27,092 35,642
Total 317,758

1. 2015 - Including EUR 6 million due to construction activities in Serbia and Romania.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. Breakdown of write -down (uplift) of trading properties;

The year ended The year eaded

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Project name (location) €000 €000
Koregaon Park (Pune, India) 1,540 10,059
Helios Plaza (Athens, Greece) 450 10,801
Liberec (Liberec, Czech Republic) 6,225 2,080
Belgrade Plaza Visnjicka (Belgrade, Serbia) (5,601} 175
Lodz Plaza (Lodz, Poland) 2,225 828
Lodz residential (Lodz, Poland) 2,133 664
Casa radio (Bucharest, Romania) 8,500 33,583
Zgorzelec (Zgorzelec, Poland) 1,466 3,868
Constanta (Constanta, Romania) 400 3,813
Arena Plaza extension (Budapest, Hungary) 1,111 -
Krusevac (Krusevac, Serbia) 800 -
Giug (Ciuc, Romania) - 3,853
Kragujevac (Kragujevac, Serhia) - 3,395
Timisoara (Timiseara, Romania) 261 2,027
lasi (lasi, Romania) - 4,280
Belgrade Plaza (Belgrade, Serbia) - 2,500
Kielce (Kielce, Poland) 170 (323)
Other, aggregated 642 5,985
Total 20,322 87,489

The 2015 write downs were caused mainly by the fotlowing factors:

* There were significant decreases in Net Realizable Values of certain projects below the carrying amount due to deteriorating market condition in certain countries in which the Group

operates,

Moreover, affecting the valuations (in respect of plots under planning stage) are delays in the and ement of construction of projects by the Company, increase in
the risks inh in the Company’s devel ts projects which cause an increase in the discounts rate and the exit yields of the undeveloped projects. In certain cases, changes
were performed according to schemes of projects (e.g Casa radio, below mentioned) which triggered additional significant impairments.

Koregaon Park write-down (refer to note 29(a)) was performed due to delays in executing a sale transaction of the shopping center.

In case of Liberec Plaza in Czech Republic, write-down was recorded as a result of a decrease in the NOI of the shopping center (mainly due to an increase of the non-recoverable
expenses) and an increase of 0.5% in the exit yield compared to fast year,

In the case of Belgrade Plaza (Visnjicka) project an appreciation was performed as the development of the project has already started, and the project is expected to start generating
income within 15 manths following year-end.

In the case of Casa Radio project in Romania write-down was performed due to a significant change in the estimated date of construction commencement of the project {construction
commencement is now scheduled to mid-2018), triggered mainly by permitting issues as described in the note below.

4. Including carrying amount of Gasa Radio and Timisoara projests in Romania, and also the Belgrade Plaza (Visnjicka) and Belgrade Plaza (both in Serbia).
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5. Casa Radio note

a) General

In 2006 the Company entered into an agreement according to which it acquired 75% interest in a company (“Project SPV") which under a Public-Private Partnership
agreement (“PPP") with the Government of Romania is to develop the Casa radio site in central Bucharest (“Project”). After signing the PPP agreement, the Company
holds indirectly 75% of the shares in the Project SPV, the remaining 25% are held by the Romanian authorities (15%) and another third party (10%).

As part of the PPP, the Project SPV was granted with development and exploitation rights in relation to the site for a period of 49 years, starting December 2006. As
part of its obligations under the PPP, the Project SPV has committed to construct a Public Authority Building (*PAB”) measuring approximately 11.000 square meters
for the Romanian Government at its own cost.

Large scale demolition, design and foundation works were performed on the construction site which amounted to circa EUR 85 million until 2010, when current
construction and development were put on hold due to lack of progress in the renegotiation of the PPP Contract with the Authorities (refer to point ¢ below) and the
Global financial crisis. These circumstances (and mainly the avoidance of the Romanian Authorities to deal with the issues specified below) caused the Project SPV to
not meet the development timeline of the Project, as specified in the PPP. However, the Company is in the opinion that it has sufficient justifications for the delays in
this timefine, as generally described below.

b} Olitaining of the Detailed Urhan Plan (“PUD") permit

The Project SPV obtained the PUD related to this project in September 2012. Furthermore, on 13 December 2012, the Court took note of the waiver of the claim
submitied by certain plaintiffs and rejected the litigation aiming to cancel the approval of the Zonal Urban Plan (“PUZ"} related to the Project. The court decision is
irrevocable.

As the PUD is based on the PUZ, the risk that the PUD would be cancelled as a result of the cancellation of the PUZ was removed following the date when the PUZ
was cleared in court on December 13, 2012.

¢} Discussions with Buthorities on construction time 1able deferral

As a result of point b above, following the Court decision, the Project SPV was required to submit a request for building permits within 60 days from the approval
date of the PUZ/PUD and commence development of its project within 60 days after obtaining the building permit.

However, due to substantial differences between the approved PUD and stipuiations in the PPP Contract as well as changes in the EU directives concerning
buildings used by Public Authorities, and in order to ensure a construction process that will be adjusted to current market conditions, the Project SPV started
preliminary discussions with the Romanian Authorities (which are both shareholders of the Project SPV and a parly to the PPP) regarding the future development
of the project.

The Project SPV also officially notified the Romanian Authorities its wish to renegotiate the existing PPP contract on items such as time table, structure and
milestones {e.g., the construction of the Public Authority Building (“PAB”), whose' estimated costs are provisioned for in these financial statement - refer to
paragraph e below). The Company estimates that aithough there is no formai obligation from the Romanian Authorities to renegotiate the PPP agreement, such
obligation is expressly provided for the situation when extraordinary economic circumstances arise.

d} Co-operation with the Romanian Authorities regarding potential irregularities

The Board and Management have become aware of certain issues with respect to certain agreements that were executed in the past in connection with the Pro-
ject. In order to address this matter, the Board has appointed the chairman of the Audit Committee to investigate the matters internally and have also appointed
independent law firms to perform an independent review of the matters raised.

The Company has approached and is co-operating fully with the relevant Romanian Authorities regarding the matters that have come to its attention and it has
submitted its findings to the Romanian Authorities. As this process is still on-going, the Company in unable to comment on any details related to this matter.
Management is currently unable to estimate (based on legal advice received) any impact on the carrying value of the Project potentially resulting from this matter.

e} Provision in respect of PAB

As mentioned in point a above, when the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 75% interest in the Project SPV it assumed a commitment to construct . .
the PAB at its own costs for the benefit of the Romanian Government. Consequently, the Company had recorded a provision in the amount of EUR?@R@B‘?@?!CA“G&

respect of the construction of the PAB. . ?URPGSES
The Company utilized the amount of EUR 1.5 million out of this provision, and in 2015 a reduction in the provision in the amount of EUR 0.6 hill ) ,@g@gg’f Z r;’
other income) was performed in order to reflect updated budget changes in respect of the PAB. H 00 g é ..... [ ,,,,,
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Management believes that the current level of provision is an appropriate estimation in the current circumstances. Upon reaching concrete agreements with
Authorities, the Gompany will be able to further update the provision.

f} The circumstances described in subsection a through e above might lead to future claims, penalties, sanctions and/or, in extreme circumstances, termination
of the PPP and annulment of the Gompany’s rights in the Project by the Authorities. If the Casa Radio project will not proceed, then this will have a significant
negative impact on the carrying value of the Project.

6. Security over trading properties

As of December 31, 2015, a total carrying amount of EUR 123 million (December 31, 2014 ~ EUR 170 million) which represents mainly operating shopping
centres is pledged against secured bank loans of approximately EUR 103 million.

7. Writedown of trading properties

Trading properties are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Determining net realizable value is inherently subjective as it requires estimates of
future events and takes into account special assumptions in the valuations, many of which are difficult to predict.

Actual results could be significantly different than the Gompany’s estimates and could have a material effect on the Company's financial results. Trading Properties
accumulated write-downs from cost as of December 31, 2015, amounted to EUR 230 million or 42% percent of outstanding trading properties original cast
(December 31, 2014 — EUR 274 million or 42% of gross trading property balance). These valuations become increasingly difficult as they relate to estimates and
assumptions for projects in the preliminary stage of development.

Management is responsible for determining the net realizable value of the Group’s Trading Properties. In determining net realizable value of the vast majority of
Trading Properties, management utilizes the services of an independent third party recognized as a speciafist in valuation of properties (As at December 31, 2015,
98% of the value of trading properties was based on valuations done by the independent third party valuation service (2014 - 98%).

The remaining properties were valued internally. On an annual basis (and in certain cases during the year), the Company reviews the valuation methodologies
utilized by the independent third party valuator service for each property. The main features included in each valuation are:

a} Completed trading properties (operating shopping centers)

The Net Realizable Valug of operating shopping centers reflects rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income from future leases in the
light of current market conditions.

The Net Realizable Value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the property. The Group uses professional
appraisers for determining the Net Realizable Value of the operating shopping centers. Independent valuation reports are preparad by Cushman & Wakefield by
using discounted cash flow valuation technigues. The Group uses assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting date.

The principal assumptions underlying management's estimation of Net Realizable Values are those related to the receipt of contractual rentals, expected future
market rentals, void periods, maintenance requirements and appropriate discount rates. These valuations are regularly compared to actual market vield data and
actual transactions made by the Group and those reported by the market, if available. Expected future rentals are determined on the basis of current market rentals
for similar properties in the same location and condition.

b} Incomplete trading properties (undeveloped plots of fands)

The net realizable value in case of an undevefoped project is determined by either:

* comparison with the sale price of land for comparable development ; or

* Assessment of the value of the project as completed and deduction of the costs of development (including developer’s profit and financing costs), and applying
an estimated discount rate, to arrive at the underlying land value. This is known as the residual method.

b1 - Comparative method

Valuation by comparison is essentially objective in that it is based on an analysis of the price achieved for sites with broadly similar development }h@ﬁg\ %ﬁﬁﬁ{:jﬁ@&
Valuation by comparison is generally used if evidence of actual sales can be found and analysed on a common unit basis, such as site area,ngel p %WGSE%
habitable room. ; -

Where comparable development cannot be identified in the immediate area of the subject site or when sales information is not clearly availabl% th; : Iy

Grant Thomi
‘ 0@%
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* Adjustment due to the time of the transaction. Market conditions at the time of the sales transaction of a comparable property may differ from those on the
valuation date of the property being valued. Factors that impact market conditions include rapidly appreciating or depreciating property values, changes in tax
laws, building restrictions or moratoriums, fluctuations in supply and demand, or any combination or forces working in concert to alter market conditions from
one date to another.

¢ Adjustment due to asking price and condition of payment. The special motivations of the parties to the transaction in many situations can affect the prices
paid and even render some transactions as non-market. Examples of special conditions of sale include a higher price paid by a buyer because the parcel has
synergistic, or marriage value; a lower price paid because a seller was in a hurry to conclude the sale; a financial, business, or family refationship between
the parties involved in the transaction, unusual tax considerations; lack of exposure of the property in the (open) market; or the prospect of lengthy litigation
proceedings.

* Adjustment because of size, shape and surface area. Where the physical characteristics of a comparable property vary from those of the subject property, each
of the differences is considered, and the adjustment is made for the impact of each of these differances on value.

* Adjustment because of location. The locations of the comparable sale properties and the subject property are compared to ascertain whether location and
the immediate environment are influencing the prices paid. The better location a property is located in the more it is worth per square meter; and conversely
the worse location a property is in the less it is worth per square meter. An adjustment is made to reflect such differences based on the valuers’ professional
experience. Extreme location differences may indicate that a transaction is not truly comparable and are disqualified.

b2 - Residual method

The residual method, in contrast, relies on an approach that is a combination of comparison and cost and it requires making a number of assumptions — any of
which can affect the outcome in varying degrees. Having established the development potential a residual valuation can be expressed as a simple equation: (value
of completed development) — (development costs + developers profit + financing cost) = land value. Each element of this equation is discussed in the following
paragraphs.

8. Value of completed development

The value of the completed development is the market value of the proposed development assessed on the special assumption that the development is complete
as at the date of valuation in the market conditions prevailing at that date.

9. Development costs
The development costs include planning and design costs, construction costs, site refated costs, holding costs, finance costs and contingencies.

Some larger schemes such as Casa Radio in Romania and Bangalore in India are phased over time. Is such case the phasing is reflected in the cash flows as
deferral of some of costs to a date when it might be reasonable to expect them to be incurred. Similarly, not all proceeds occur simultanecusly.

10. Developer's profit

The nature of the development determines the selection of the profit margin, or rate of return and the percentage to be adopted varies for each case.
The developers profit is expressed as a percentage of the cost of the completed development.

All of the trading properties were valued using the Residual technique (or the Discounted Cash Flows technique for operating shopping centres) except the one
project in a value of EUR 10.7 million. In 2014: the same with the exception of one project with a total amount of EUR 0.8 million using the comparative method.

All the trading properties carrying amounts equals their net realizable values with the exception of Torun and Suwalki in Poland (2014: Torun and Suwalki in
Poland and Arena extension in Hungary), where the carrying amount reflects the cost.

FOR IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES

Grant Thamt_m
Accountants en Advisaurs 8.9,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PLAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL REPORT 2015




11. Significant estimates

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring the net realizable values of trading properties, including those held by
joint ventures which are recorded as equity accounted investees:

Group of assels

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Inter-relationship between key
unobservable inputs and fair value
measurement

Operating shopping centers —
Poland

Plots in GEE
{except Casaradio)

Discounted cash flows: The valuation
modef considers the present value

of the net cash flows expected to be
generated by the shopping centers. The
cash flow projections include specific
estimates for 10 years. The expected
net cash flows are discounted using a
risk-adjusted discount rate.

Residual method: The valuation

model considers the net present value
(based on an NPV factor) based on
the estimated value of the project
upon completion less the estimated
development cost including a
provision for the profit for the potential
development.

» Estimated rental prices per SOM
(EUR 3-47.0, weighted average
EUR 10.5).

« Estimated exit yield is between
7.15% and 9.

* Discount rate is between 8.85%
t011.1%

* Based on 100% occupancy rate to be
achieved within 2 years.

» Estimated weighted average rental
prices per SQM is between EUR 6,00
to EUR 30.00.

» The Estimated Exit Yield for the

projects are between 7.75% and 11%.

+ The construction cost of the projects
are between 275 EUR/sqm to 1,200
EUR /sqm for the malls.

« The development finance rate is
between 5.00% to 10%

* The occupancy rate of the projects at
opening are estimated at 95%.

* Developers profit — 17%-25%.

The estimated fair value would increase

(decrease) if:

« the estimated rental prices per sqm were
higher (lower);

» the estimated yield rates were lower
(higher);

» the estimated discount rates were lower
(higher);

+ The oceupancy of the mall was higher
(lower).

The estimated fair value would increase

(decrease) if:

« the estimated rental prices per sqm were
higher (lower);

« the estimated yield rates were lower
(higher);

« the estimated discount rates were lower
(higher);

» the construction cost of the project were
lower (higher);

= the developer's profit provision for the
project were fower (higher);

« the development finance provision for
the project were lower (higher);

« the estimated completion of the project
were shorter (longer);

« the occupancy of the mall were higher
(lower);

« the land prices for comparable
transactions on the market would he
higher (lower);

« the characteristics of the project would
be changed.
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Group of assets

Valuation technigue

Significant unobservable inputs

Inter-refationship between key
unohservable inputs and fair value
measurement

Casa Radio

Bangalore and Chennai
(Joint Ventures)

Residual method: The valuation

model considers the net present value
(based on an NPV factor) based on
the estimated value of the project
upon completion less the estimated
development cost including a
provision for the profit for the potential
development.

Bangalore - Residual method was
used as well as follows: The valuation
model considers the net present value
(based on an NPV factor} based on
the estimated value of the project
upon completion less the estimated
development cost including a
provision for the profit for the potential
development Chennai - Comperable.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

« Estimated weighted average rental
prices per SOM is EUR 27.00 for the
mall and EUR 16.50 for offices.

* The estimated Exit Yield is 7.50%
for the mall and 8.00% for the office
component.

* The construction cost of the project is
850 EUR/sqm for the mall; 1000 EUR/
sqm for the offices; 500 EUR/sgm for
the parking.

* The development finance rate is
7.50%.

» The occupancy rate of the project at
opening is estimated at 95%.

» The scheme would compose the
following components: (i} retail; {ii)
offices.

« Developers profit — 20%.

For residual approach:

« The sales price/sqm for the
development is between INR 100,000
and INR 138,000 subject to the size,
location and the quality of the asset
class.

* The construction cost per sqm for the
development is INR 34,000 to INR
41,000 subject to focation and the
quality of the asset class.

* Developers profit - 20%.

The estimated fair value would increase

(decrease] if:

» the estimated rental prices per sqm were
higher (lower);

« the estimated yield rates were lower
(higher);

« the construction cost of the project were
lower (higher);

» the developer's profit provision for the
project were lower (higher);

« the development finance provision for
the project were lower (higher);

« the estimated complgtion of the project
were shorter (longer);

» the occupancy of the mall were higher
(lower);

« the characteristics of the project would
be changed.

The estimated residual fair value would

increase (decrease) if;

« the estimated sales prices per sqm were
higher (lower);

» the estimated construction cost were
lower (higher);

» the development finance provision for
the project were lower (higher);

« the estimated completion of the project
were shorier (longer);

= the characteristics of the project would
be changed;

« the developer’s profit provision for the
project were lower (higher).
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The following table provides sensitivity analysis on value of certain projects (in thousands of EUR), assuming the following changes in key inputs used in

valuations:
Operating Property Exit Yield
-50bps -25hps 0 +25hps +50bps
Polish operating
shopping centers 164,050 158,350 153,025 148,100 143,425
Increase in exit yields Delay in construction
(base points) commencement day (months)
1] +15hps +25bps +40hps +50bps 0 +6 +12 +18 +24
Belgrade Plaza
visnjicka 29,630 28,480 27,730 26,650 25,490 29,630 28,450 27,310 26,220 25,170
Belgrade Plaza
(MUP) 13,630 12,090 11,100 9,660 8,740 13,630 12,880 12,160 11,480 10,830
Timisoara Plaza 9,410 8,710 8,250 7,580 7,150 9,410 9,050 8,690 8,360 8,030
Casa Radio 108,590 101,410 96,780 90,040 85,680 108,590 104,730 101,010 97,430 93,970
Construction costs Rental income
for ail phases for all the phases

-10% -5% 0 +10% +5% -10% -5% 0 +10% +5%
Belgrade Plaza
visnjicka 32,680 31,160 29,630 28,100 26,580 23,530 26,580 29,630 32,680 35,730
Belgrade Plaza
{(MUP) 20,020 16,820 13,630 10,430 7,230 5,870 9,750 13,630 17,510 21,390
Timisoara Plaza 13,060 11,240 9,410 7,590 5,760 4,720 7,060 9,410 11,760 14,110
Casa Radio 135,010 121,800 108,590 95,380 82,170 71,310 89,950 108,590 127,230 145,870
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12. Summary table for main projects status:

Planned Carrying Carrying
Gross amount amount
Purchase  Holding Lettable December31, December 31,
Project Location year Rale (%)  Nature of rights Permit status Area (sqm) 2015 (MEUR) 2014 (MEUR)
Suwalki Plaza Poland 2006 100 Ownership Operating shopping center 20,000 39.7 39.2
(starting Q2 2010)
Zgorzelec Plaza Poland 2006 100 Ownership Operating shopping center 13,000 12.1 13.5
(starting Q1 2010)
Torun Plaza Poland 2007 100 Ownership Operating shopping center 40,000 68.1 68.0
(starting Q4 2011)
Lodz residential Poland 2001 100 Ownership/ Planning permit valid 24,700 2.1 48
Perpetual usufruct
Lodz Plaza Poland 2009 100 Perpetual usufruct Planning permit pending 35,000 5.5 7.4
Kielce Plaza Poland 2008 100  Perpstual usufruct Planning permit valid 33,000 3.3 3.5
Leszno Plaza Poland 2008 100 Perpetual usufruct Planning permit valid 16,000 0.8 0.8
Liberec Plaza Czech Republic 2006 100 Ownership Operating shopping center 17,000 9.6 157
(starting Q1 2009)
Koregaon Park India 2006 100 Ownership Operating shopping center 41,000 Sold 33.8
(starting Q1 2012)
Casa Radio Romania 2007 75  leased for49years  Detailed Zoning Plan 467,000 108.6 116.1
(“PUD"} valid
lasi Plaza Romania 2007 100  Ownership Zoning Plan (“PUZ") valid 58,000 Sold 7.3
Slatina Plaza Romania 2007 100 Ownership Detailed Zoning Plan 17,000 0.6 11
(“PUD") valid
Timisoara Plaza Romania 2007 100 Ownership Zoning Plan (“PUZ") valid 40,000 94 8.9
Constanta Plaza Romania 2009 100 Ownership Existing building 18,000 2.2 25
Miercurea Giuc Plaza Romania 2007 100 Ownership No valid permit 14,000 2.0 2.0
(Building Permit expired)
Belgrade Plaza visnjicka Serbia 2007 100 Ownership Building Permit obtained 32,000 296 18.9
Belgrade Plaza Serbia 2007 100 Ownership Approval of DRP pending  63,000** 135 13.7
Shumen Plaza Bulgaria 2007 100 Ownership Planning permit valid 20,000 0.8 1.0
Arena Plaza Extension  Hungary 2005 100 Land use rights - 40,000 2.5 34
Piragus Plaza Greece 2002 100 Ownership - 38,270 4.0 44
Other small plots, grouped 34 4.8
Totai 317.8 370.8

* Gross area of the plot

" GBA (sqm)
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NOTE 9 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Fixtures
huildings Equipment and fitlings Airplane Total
€000 €'000 €000 €000 €000
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2014 7,181 3,542 1,397 4,737 16,8572
Additions - 12 - - 12
Disposals - (208) - (4,737) (4,945)
Exchange rate effect - 54 - - 54
Balance at December 31, 2014 7,181 3,400 1,397 - 11,978
Additions - 31 - - 31
Reclassification - 202 (202) - -
Disposals* (3,079) (308) - - (3,385)
Balance at December 31, 2015 4,102 3,327 1,195 - 8,624
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2014 2,776 3,220 1,071 3,270 10,337
Depreciation 85 197 - - 282
Impairment** 700 - - - 700
Disposals - (66) - (3,270) (3,336)
Exchange rate effect - (34) - - (34)
Balance at December 31, 2014 3,561 3,317 1,0M - 7,949
Depreciation 170 30 - - 200
Disposals* (1,881) (124) - - (2,005)
Balance at December 31, 2015 1,850 3,223 1,071 - 6,144
Net carrying amounts
At December 31, 2015 2,252 104 124 - 2,480
At December 31, 2014 3,620 83 326 - 4,029
At January 1, 2014 4,405 322 326 1,467 6,520
* Disposal of Palazze duCale building in Romania - refer to note 29 {d).
** 2014 depreciation ~ includes impairment of EUR 0.7 million dus to office building in Romania.
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NOTE 10 - EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

The Group has the following interest (directly and indirectly) in the below joint ventures (the Group has no investment in associates), as at December 31, 2015
and 2014:

Interest of hoiding Interest of holding
(percentage) as at {percentage) as at
Company name Country Activity December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Eibit Plaza USA Hi LP USA Inactive 50% 50%
Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holdings Lid. (“EPI"}* Cyprus Mixed-use 47.5% 47.5%
large scale projects
Elbit Kochin Ltd. Cyprus Inactive 40% 40%
SIA Diksna (“Diksna”) Latvia  Operating shopping center 50% 50%

None of the joint ventures are publicly listed.

* Though EP! is 47.5% held by the Company, the Company is accounted for 50% of the results, as the third party holding 5% in EPLis deemed not to participate in accumulated losses,
hence Ei and the Company, the holders of the remaining 95% each account for 50% of the results of EP).

The movement in equity accounted investees (in aggregation) was as follows:

2015 2014
€000 €000
Balance as at 1 January 42,229 40,141
Investments in (repayment from) equity-accounted investees, net (1,043) 463
Share in results of equity-accounted investees, net of tax 1,043 1,641
Uplift (write-down) of Equity-accounted investees’ 939 (1,687)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 1,738 2,740
Equity-accounted investees disposed - (1,069)
Balance as at 31 December? 44,906 42,229
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1 Breakdown of the Group's share of write-downs (reversals of write-downs) of trading properties projects held by equity accounted investees is as follows:

The year ended The year ended

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Project name (holding company name) €000 €000
Bangalore (held by EPI) 557
Ghennai (held by EPH - {2,463)
Riga Plaza (held by Diksna) 939 420
Elbit Kochin Ltd. - (201)
Total 939 (1,687)

2 As of December 31, 2015, the loan to equity accounted investee Diksna totalied circa EUR 4.3 miflion bearing interest of 3 months EURIBOR +2.5% per annum (December 31, 2014 -
EUR 6.1 milfion). Other investment in equity accounted investees is through certain equity instruments to cover negative equity position considered part of the Group's net investment in

the investees.

Material joint veniures

Within the joint ventures, two joint ventures were deemed as material, and these are EPI (due to holding of major schemes in Bangalore and Chennai) and Diksna
(bsing the only active shopping center held through a joint venture). The summarized financial information of the material joint ventures is as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014
EPI Diksna EPi Diksna
€'0000 €'000 €000 €000
Current assets* 338 2,408 3,168 2,696
Trading properties -non current 51,661 93,400 48,475 90,000
Other current liabilities (187) (1,930) (709) (2,414)
Interest bearing loans from banks - (55,990) - (56,884)
Group loan to Diksna - (8,596) - (12,242)
Net assets (100%) 51,812 29,292 50,934 21,156
Group share of net asset {(50%)** 25,906 14,646 25,467 10,578
Carrying amount of interest in joint venture 25,906 14,646 25,467 10,578
* Including cash and cash equivalents in Diksna the amount of EUR 0.4 miltion (2014 - EUR 0.8 million).
“* Refer to remark on EPI helding rate.
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The year ended The year ended The year ended The year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014
EPI Diksna EPI Diksna
€'000 €'0000 €000 €'000
Revenue - 11,762 - 11,244
Cost of operations - (4,412) - (4,291)
Interest expenses - (1,908) - (2,018)
Uplift (write-downs) - 1,878 (3,812) 840
Total net profit (loss) and comprehensive income (100%) (3,510) 7,320 (4,730) 5,092
Group share of profit (loss) and comprehensive income (50%) (1,755) 3,660 (2,365) 2,546
Interest income on Diksna loan - 77 - 82
Total results from invesiees (1,755) 3,737 (2,365) 2,628
Immaterial joint ventures information
With the exception of EP| and Diksna, all other December 31, 2015 and 2014 outstanding joint ventures were considered immaterial.
The aggregation of the information in respect of these immaterial joint ventures was as follows (the Group’s part):
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
€000 €000
Current assets 56 63
Carrying amount of interest in joint venture 56 63
The year ended The year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
€000 €000
Revenues - 23
Write-downs {refer to impairment table above) - (201)
Loss and comprehensive income - (309)
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NOTE 11 - DERIVATIVES

The table below summarizes the results of the 2015 and 2014 derivatives activity (none of the abovementioned activities qualified for hedge accounting}, as well
as the outstanding derivatives as of December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Derivative type Nominal Fair value of Gain Fair value of Gain Maturity
amount as of derivatives at (loss) derivatives at {loss) date of
December 31, December 31, in December 31, in derivative
2015 2015 2015 2014 2014

Currency options? N/A N/A (586) (95) 217 N/A

Interest Rate

Swap {"IRS") 12 N/A N/A N/A N/A 220 N/A

IRS 28 N/A N/A N/A N/A 20 N/A

IRS 3¢ EUR 35.5 million (754) - (894) (689) December 2017

Total (754} (586) (989) (232)

in NIS. The Company ceased using this strategy effective October 2015

(&4

[

N

Regarding pledges in respect of derivative activity refer to note 28(d)(2)

Fair value measurement

Selling options strategy (by writing call and put currency option) in order to manage its foreign currency risk (EUR-NIS) inherent in its long term debentures series A and series B issued

In respect of Suwalki project loan. The project company paid EUR fixed interest rate of 2,13% and receives three months EURIBOR on a guarterly basis, until June 30, 2014
In respect of Kragujevac project loan. The project company paid EUR fixed interest rate of 1.85% and receives three months EURIBOR on a quartetly basis, until December 31, 2014,

In respect of Torun project loan. The project company pays fixed interest rate of 1% and receives three months EURIBOR on a quarterly hasis, untit December 31, 2017.

Fair values of the SWAP may be determined in whole or in part using valuation technigues based on assumptions that are not supported by prices from current
market transactions or observable market data, where current prices or observable market data are not available.

Factors such as bid-offer spread, credit profile, collateral requirements and model uncertainty are taken into account, as appropriate, when fair values are
calculated using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques incorporate assumptions that other market participants would use in their valuations, including
assumptions about interest rate yield curves, and middle exchange rates, as determined by relevant central banks at each cut-off dates.
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NOTE 12 - INTEREST BEARING LOANS FROM BANKS

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost. For more
information about the Group’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risk, refer to note 27. All interest bearing loans from banks are secured.

Breakdown, terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2015 2014

Year of Carrying amoung

Nominal interest rate Currency maturity €'000 €000

Torun project secured bank loan'¢ 3M EURIBOR+3% EUR 2017 45,516 46,735
Liberec project secured bank loan? EUR 2018 - 20,468
Suwalki project secured bank loan® 3M EURIBOR+1.65% EUR 2020 27,571 29,886
Zgaorzelec project secured bank loan? 3M EURIBOR+2.75% EUR 2014 21,225 21,993
Koregaon Park project secured bank loan® INR 2021 - 22,065
Valley View (bas) project secured bank loan® 3M EURIBOR+5.5% EUR 2014 8,200 9,700
Total interest hearing liabilities 102,512 150,847

-

IRS on bank loans - refer to note 11,

%]

Refer to note 29(c) for the purchase of the loan.

[

Zgorzeles loan ~ mostly non-recourse loan {except a component of 2 EUR 1.2 million which is recourse). The loan has expired during 2014 - the Gompany is negotiating with the

financing bank on signing new facitity. The Company has also pledged its plot in Leszno, Poland (valued at EUR 0.8 million, refer also to note 10} in favour of the financing bank. In March
2016 the Company received a debt repayment call for the outstanding loan balance and the accrued interest due to it {refer also to note 15) in a tetal amount of EUR 22.9 million, and
currently reclassifies the loan as short termed. If the bank would exercise its rights and take over the asset {valued at EUR 12 million. refer alsc to note 10}, the management expects the
procedure o result in an accounting gain of circa EUR 9 million. Management believes that the company still controls the Polish SPV and therefore continues to consolidate it.

N

en

Koregaon Park foan ~ refer to note 29(a) regarding the sold project.

TeCOUrse on interest payments (not principal) and was reclassified as short term

[=2]

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2015 - Including EUR 2.7 of current maturities of long term loans,

The outstanding loan as of December 31, 2015 has expired, and the Company is currently negotiates with the financing bank new terms and conditions for the loan. The loan is with
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Covenants on loan

The below table summarise the main covenants (Loan to Value (“LTV") and Debt Service Coverage Ratio (“DSCR™)) on group loans:

Contractual Contractual
Bank facility Aclual LTV LV Actval DSCR DSCR
Torun project secured bank loan 47% 70% 1.93 1.25
Suwalki project secured bank loan 64% 70% 1.76 1.20
Zgorzelec project secured bank loan' N/A N/A N/A N/A
1 The Zgorzelec loan has expired, without new covenants established: therefore no DSCR and LTV comparative figures are available.
NOTE 13 - TRADE PAYABLES
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Currency €000 €000
Construction related payables 776 .
Other trade payables Mainly in PLN, EUR 1,447 1,893
Total 2,223 1,893
NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTIES PAYABLES
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Currency €000 €000
El Group- ultimate parent company ~ expenses recharged EUR, USD 76 457
Other related parties in El Group EUR 33 704
Total 109 1,161

For payments {including share based payments) to related parties refer to note 30. In respect of the related party receivables refer to note 29(h).
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NOTE 15 - OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Shorl-term Currency €000 €000
Advanced payment in respect of selling of trading property INR, RON - 5,868
Obligations to tenants EUR 1,385 2,401
Accrued bank interest! Mainly EUR 2,807 2,265
Obligation in respect of plot purchase Mainly EUR 1,380 1,380
Government institutions and fees 974 529
Loan from non-controlling interest EUR - 215
Salaries and related expenses 264 180
Accrued expenses and commissions 44 50
Other 191 287
Total 7,045 13,175

1 Mainly due to bank facilities in Zgorzelec (EUR 1.5 milfion) and valley view BAS (EUR 1.2 million} which are currently in default (refer also to note 12).

NOTE 16 - DEBENTURES AT AMORTISED COST

New debentures fallowing the conclusion of the restructuring plan in 2014

In 2014, in view of the significant change in the terms of the Debentures, the Company de-recognized all of its outstanding debentures, and recognized new
debentures at fair value (with subsequent measurement at amortized cost) determined based on the market quote at the end of the trade date of December 10,
2014.

Table 1

Following the above, a value of EUR 170.2 million was deemed to be the fair value of the principal of new debentures upon restructuring date
(December 10, 2014).
Quote deemed as fair

Principal fair value Effective Value of Debeniure
Short-term determined interest rate {in NIS or PLN cents)
Series A Debentures* 54,119 12.6% 112
Series B Debentures* 101,476 15.2% 105.34
Polish Debentures** 14,562 13.8% 96.5
Total 170,157

* In respect of Israeli bonds, market quote of December 10, 2014 was inclusive of accrued interest due to the year 2014, therefore, and in order to reach a ¢lean quote of the principal,
accrued interest in the amount of EUR 3.5 miion and EUR 7.9 million had to be deducted from the fair value derived from the quote of debentures A, and B, respectively.

“* See below in respect of general information on Polish bonds. Fair value of Polish debentures (untraded) was determined using the known effective interest rates determined for Israeli
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Gain from de-recognition and re-recognition (restructuring plan gain)

Table 2

As aresult of the above, the Company recorded a gain of EUR 3.4 million from eliminating the old debentures and recording of the new debentures. The gain is
calculated as follows:

Carrying amount recognised
(de-recognised) €'000

Items de-recognised

Total Israeli debentures at fair value through profit or loss (refer to note 16) (116,671)
Total Israeli debentures at amortised costs (refer to table 1 above) (55,175)
Total Polish debentures (14,425)
Otd accrued interest due debentures at amortised cost as of December 10, 2014 (6,097)
Total amounts de-recognised (192,368)
Hems added

Fair valug of new bonds (refer to table 2 above) 170,157
New accrued interest due debentures at amortised cost as of December 10, 2014 12,614
Value of new shares issued to bondholders (share premium — refer to note 19) 6,154
Total amounts recognised 188,925
Gain recorded at December 10, 2014 3,443

As part of the restructuring plan (refer to note 29(e)), and as interest due up and untif December 31, 2013 was added to the principal of the debentures, an
additional NIS 5.5 million par value debentures series A and net NIS 13.3 million par value debentures series B were issued. Also additional PLN 2.8 million were
added to the original principal.

Table 3

Following the additional issuance, the total par value and adjusted par value (in EUR thousands) outstanding were as follows:

Par Value Adjusted par value Fair value determined Discount Created*

€000 €000 €000 €000

Series A Debentures 51,447 62,108 54,119 7,989
Series B Debentures (Net of treasury honds) 103,813 121,535 101,476 20,059
Paolish Bonds 15,090 15,090 14,562 528
Total 198,733 170,157 28,576

* The discount created is recognized as finance cost across the remaining maturity of the debentures, using the effective interest rate method, subject to asset disposals,

Following the disposal of several assets by the Company in 2015 (refer to notes 29(b) and 29(d)), the Company made principal repayment to Bondholders a total
amount of EUR 6.6 million (2014 - EUR 12.1 million due to 2014 disposals), representing 75% of the total proceeds obtained from asset disposal fgé% TiFIFATlON
Koregaon Park disposal (refer to note (29(a)}. The table below describes the movement in the carrying amount of the debentures between Decembe 1;

December 31, 2015: SES é
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Fairvalue Amortization  Repayment Forex Carrying Amortization  Repayment Forex Carrying

Asat  of discount of and Amountasat  of discount of and Amount as at

December 10, in principal inflation December 31. in principal inflation December 31.

2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2015 205 2015 20152

€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000

Series A Debentures 54,119 216 (2,615) 1,537 53,257 1,923 (1,428) 5,320 59,072
Series B Debentures

(net of treasury bonds held) 101,476 488 (8,406) 2,820 96,378 8,399 (4,588) 9,371 109,560

Polish Debentures 14,562 55 (1,036) (354) 13,227 294 (569) 5 12,957

Total 170,157 759 (12,057) 4,003 162,862 10,616 (6,585) 14,696 181,589

1 Garrying amount (net of treasury bonds) as at December 31, 2015 is composed of EUR 203,047 thousand net debentures obligation and EUR 21,458 thousand of discount outstanding
(2014 - Carrying amount as at December 31, 2014 is composed of EUR 191,545 thousand net debentures obligation and EUR 28,683 thousand of discount outstanding).

2 Inview of the probable planned selling of the four shopping centres (refer to note 2(c), and see also below), the Company is planning te generate sufficient cash flow which will enable
it to repay by D ber 1, 2016 a¢ lative amount of NIS 434 million (EUR 102 miliion) of the Unsecured Debt, and by that the remaining principal payments shall be deferred for an
additional year. The Company has repaid circa NIS 88 million (EUR 19 million) during 2015 and therefore has reclassified accordingly EUR 79.6 million (EUR 81.3 million, less treasury
bonds expected repayment of EUR 1.6 million) of its unsecured debt as short term. Refer to note 2(c) for further information.

Debentures covenants are included in note 28 (b).

As a result of the restructuring plan, new interest rates and maturities were applied to the debentures as follows:

Interest rate Interest rate Principal final maturity Principal final maturity

Before After Before After*

Series A Debentures 4.5%+ CPI 6%+ CPI 2017 2019
Series B Debentures 5.4%+ GPI 6.9%+ CPI 2015 2018
Polish Debentures 4.5%+ 6M WIBOR %+ 6M WIBOR 2013 2017

* Principal repayments are subject to 75% mandatory prepayment (refer {0 notes 2(c) and 29(e)). Also, it untit December 1, 2016 the Company succeeds to repay NIS 434 mitiion (EUR
102 mitlion) of the Unsecured Debt, then the remaining principal payments shall be deferred for an additional year.

The below is a summary table of contractually required net principal repayments of all debentures, assuming the deferral of payment is obtained, and in
comparison when such deferral is not obtained. This table does not consider the impact of timing of disposals.

Principal repayment Principal repayment
Year falling due With Deferral €000 Without Deferral €'000
2016 79,564 13,220
2M7 - 101,475
2018 26,976 75,132
2019 82,409 13,220
2020 14,098 -
Total 203,047 203,047

FORDERTIFCATION
Both NIS series of debentures have credit rating of “iIBBB-* on a local Isragli scale with negative outlook as of the date of approval of these financial statements by EWQ%S

. ) ¢ rant Thorniton
Bonds issued in Poland , . =
In November 2010, the Company completed a bond offering to Polish institutional investors. The Company raised a total of PLN 60 million (@ifgteximately EUR 151@tAls

million). Following the completion of the restructuring plan (refer also to note 29(e)), the terms and conditions of the bonds were changed, as describetaiovearnion
Accountants en Adviseurs BV
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NOTE 17 - RECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred taxes recognized are attributable to the following items:

December 31, Recognised in December 31,

2014 profit or loss 2015 2015

Assets/(liabilities) 2014 €'000 €'000 €'000
Property, equipment and other assets 921 (515) 406
Debentures (7,334) 3,540 (3,794)
Tax value of loss carry-forwards recognized* 7,334 (3,540) 3,794
Deferred tax lability, net 921 (515) 406
December 31, Recognised in December 31,

2013 Profit or loss 2014 2014

Assets/(liabilities) 2014 €000 €'000 €000
Property, equipment and other assets (379) 1,300 921
Debentures (9,248) 1,914 (7,334)
Tax value of loss carry-forwards recognized* 9,248 (1,914) 7,334
Deferred tax liability, net (379) 1,300 921

* Due to tax josses created on the Company lavel,
Unrecognised deferred tax assels
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of tax fosses in a total amount of EUR 151,845 thousand (2014: EUR 135,580 thousand).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
Group can utilize the benefits there from. As of December 31, 2015 the expiry date status of tax losses to be carried forward is as follows:

Total tax losses carried forward 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 After 2020

167,021 6,541 7,521 10,308 18,352 10,951 113,384 113,384

Tax losses are mainly generated from operations in the Netherlands. Tax settlements may be subjected to inspections by tax authorities. Accordingly, the amounts
shown in the financial statements may change at a later date as a result of the final decision of the tax authorities,
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NOTE 18 - EQUITY

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Remarks Number of shares Number of shares

Authorised ordinary shares of par value EUR 0.01 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
issued and fully paid:

At the beginning of the year 685,560,275 297,186,138

Issuance of shares in respect of right issuance See below’ - 282,326,830

Issuance of shares to Bondholders See below? - 106,047,307

At the end of the year 685,560,275 685,560,275

-

Right issuance - as part of the implementation of the restructuring plan, certain shareholders participated in a right issuance process, following of which EUR 20 million were injected to
the Company, and the Company has issued a total of 282,326,830 shares to these shareholders for a share price 0.0675 EUR per share. The premium resulted from the share issuance in
a total amount of EUR 16.2 million was attributed to share premium. Legal, prospectus related, and other expenses associated with the issuance of shares in a total amount of EUR 1.6
million was also attributed to share premium. For more details on the right issuance process refer to note 29(e).

ro

Issuance of shares to Bondholders - as part of the implementation of the restructuring plan, a total of 106,047,307 shares were issued to the debentures holders, for which the
Bondholders have paid the par value of the shares. As a result of the above, a total deemed premium of EUR 6.2 million was contributed to the share premium of the entity, based on the
market value of the shares granted at the closing of the day of trading December 10, 2014,

As a result of the abovementioned two processes, the holding rate of Ef in the Company was reduced from 62.25% to 44.9%.
Share hased paymeni reserve

Other capital reserve is in respect of Employee Share Option Plans (“ESOP”) in the total amount of EUR 35,556 thousand as of December 31, 2015
(2014 ~ EUR 35,520 thousand).

Transiation reserve

The translation reserve comprises, as of December 31, 2015, all fareign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations in India. Refer to note 29(A) in respect of realization of foreign exchange differences due to transaction in India.

Restriction of dividend

The Company shall not make any dividend distributions, unless (i) at least 75% of the Unpaid Principal Balance of the Debentures (EUR 199 million) has been
repaid and the Coverage Ratio on the last Examination Date prior to such Distribution is not less than 150% following such Distribution, or (if) a Majority of the
Plan Creditors consents to the proposed Distribution.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, in the event an additional capital injection of at least EUR 20 million occurs, then after one year following the date of the additional

capital injection, no restrictions other than those under the applicable faw shall apply to dividend distributions in an aggregate amount of up to 50% of such
additional capital injection.
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NOTE 19 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share (“EPS”) at December 31, 2015 was based on the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of EUR 46,116 thousand
(2014: loss of EUR 119,687 thousand) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 685,560 thousand (2014; 309,955 thousand).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (for both EPS and EPS from continuing operations)

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
In thousands of shares with a EUR 0.01 par value €000 €000
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 685,560 297,186
Issuance of shares due to restructuring plan - 12,769
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 685,560 309,955

The calculation of diluted earnings per share from continuing operations for comparative figures is calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
In thousands of shares with a EUR 0.01 par value €'000 €000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 685,560 309,955
Effect of share options on issue - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 December 685,560 309,955

The average market value of the Company’s shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of share options was based on quoted market prices for the
period that the options were outstanding.

NOTE 20 - EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION PLAN

On October 26, 2006 the Gompany’s Board of Directors approved the grant of up to 33,834,586 non-negotiable options for the Company's ordinary shares to the
Company’s board members, employees in the company and other persons who provide services to the Company including employees of the Group ("Offerees”).

The options were granted to the Offerees for no consideration. Furthermore, 2nd ESOP plan was adopted on November 22, 2011 which is based on the terms of
the 1st ESOP as amended in accordance with the terms as referred to above, with a couple of amendments, the most imporiant of which is the total number of
options to be granted under the 2nd ESOP is fourteen million (14) and a cap of GBP 2. Exercise of the options is subject to the following mechanism:
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Number Contractual life

Grant date / employees entitled of options of options?
ESOP No.1?

Option grant to key management at October 27, 2006 13,218,073 15 years
Option grant to employees at October 27, 2006 1,858,589 15 years
Total granted in 2006 15,076,662 15 years
Total granted in 20072 1,016,156 15 years
Total granted in 20082 763,887 15 years
Total granted in 20092 391,668 15 years
Total granted in 20112 120,000 15 years
ESOP No.2®

Total granted in 20112 4,584,000 10 years
Total granted in 20122 860,000 10 years
Total granted in 20132 985,000 10 years
Total share options Granted 23,797,373

1 Following the 4th amendment of ESOP1, the contractual fife for stock options granted changed from 10 years to 15 years

2 Share options granted to key management: 2007 ~ 100,000 share options; 2008 — 260,000 share options; 2009 - 73,334 share options; 2011- 3,225,000 share options (ESOP No. 2%
2012 - 450,000 share options; 2013 ~ 150,000 share options.

3 Vesting conditions — three years of service

On the exercise date the Company shall allot, in respect of each option so exercised, shares equal to the difference between (A) the opening price of the Company's
shares on the LSE (or WSE under certain conditions) on the exercise date, provided that if the opening price exceeds GBP 3.24, the opening price shall be set at
GBP 3.24 (Except 2nd ESOP as stated above); less (B) the Exercise Price of the Options; and such difference (A minus B) will be divided by the opening price of
the Company’s Shares on the LSE (or WSE under certain conditions) on the exercise date:

Weighted average Number of Weighted average Number of

exercise price* 2015 options exercise price* 2014 options

GBP 2015 GBP 2014

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 0.43 24,442,373 0.43 25,061,138
Forfeited during the period - back to poot** 0.36 (645,000) 0.42 (618,765)
Outstanding at the end of the year 0.43 23,797,373 0.43 24,442,373
Exercisable at the end of the year 23,469,040 23,115,706

* The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 have an exercise price in the range of GBP 0.28 to GBP 0.54 (app. EUR 0.38 - EUR 0.74), and have weighted average remaining contractual
life of five years.

** The total accumulated share based payment costs due to aptions exercise and forfeiture were 13,284 thousand as of December 31, 2015 (December 31, 2014 - EUR 13,216 thousand,
December 31, 2013 ~ 13,073 thousand).

. . ) N o Rl ENTIFICATION
The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all outstanding options as of the end of the reporting period is 35,460,414' The u}gﬁégggalue of
the services received is measured based on a binomial lattice model.
7)) Grant Thornton
During 2015 the total employee costs for the share options granted was EUR 36 thousand (2014 - EUR 207 thousand). (ﬂ }, fl , ; .
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NOTE 21 - RENTAL INCOME

a. Shopping malls and plets

Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

€000 €000

Rental income from operating shopping centers’ 18,085 21,343
Other rental income? 591 769
Total 18,676 22,112

1 2015 - four operating shopping centers presented as part of trading properties, 2014 - five, following the sale of Koregacn shopping center in May 2015 (refer to note 29(a)).

2 2015 and 2014 - Small scale rental fees charged on plots held by the Group.

b. Entertainment centers

Revenue from operation of entertainment centers is attributed to a subsidiary of the Company known as “Fantasy Park” which provided gaming and entertainment
services in operating shopping centers, As of December 31, 2015, this subsidiary operate in one shopping centre held by the group (December 31, 2014~ in one

shopping center).

NOTE 22 - COST OF OPERATIONS

a. Shopping malls and plots

Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

€000 €000

Operating shapping centers’ 5,353 7.669
Other cost of operations? 1,128 822
Total 6,481 8,491

1 Refer to note 21 above.

2 2015 and 2014 - Attributed to small scale costs on plots held by the Group.

& Entertainment centers

Refer also to note 21 (b) above. The costs ars inclusive of management of the operation of the entertainment center, as well as utility, rent and spent material

associated with the operation of the entertainment center.
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NOTE 23 - ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND RESTRUCTURING COSTS

a. Administrative expenses, excluding restructuring costs

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
€000 €000
Salaries and related expenses* 3,842 3,594
Professional services 2,433 2,961
Offices and office rent 260 281
Travelling and accommodation 260 266
Depreciation and amortization 102 133
Others 102 199
Total 6,999 7,434
* 2015 - including retirement payments to two former CEO's in a total amount of EUR 0.5 million (refer to note 29(M),
i1, Restructuring costs
The Gompany incurred restructuring costs in 2014 as a result of the restructuring process completion during 2014 (refer to note 29(e)).
NOTE 24 - OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES
Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
€000 Restated* €000
Insurance indemnity payment — Koregaon Park Plaza - 2,287
Gain from equity accounted investee EP! ~ credit balances waiver 1,174 -
Waiver of advanced payments obtained from potential buyer in India 725 -
Changes in provision PAB (refer to note 8) 686 -
Kochi advanced payment (refer to note 29(h)) 4,653 -
Other income 69 197
Total other income 7,307 2,484
Impairments of other receivables and assets! (892) (1,014)
Loss from selling turbines, airplane and other? (631) (852)
Other expenses (328) (641)
Total other expenses {1,851} (2,507)
Other expense, net 5,456 (23)

1 2015 - Includes impairment of receivables associated with abandoned projects in a total amount of EUR 0.9 miflion.

2014 ~ Including impairment of Palazzo Du Calle office building in Romania in the amount of EUR 0.7 million.

2 2015 - Including loss from sefling Palazzo Du Calle office building (refer to note 29(d) — EUR 0.2 million.
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NOTE 25 - NET FINANCE COSTS

Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Recognised in profit or loss €'000 €000
Gain from settlement of bank debt (refer to note 29 (b) and {c)) 13,481 622
Finance income from hedging activities through sale of options - 217
Foreign currency gain on bank deposits and bank loans 366 202
Interest income on bank deposits 26 69
Finance income from held for trading financial assets 104 80
Interest from loans to related parties 315 73
Finance income 14,292 1,263
Interest expense on debentures (13,910) (4,566)
Amortization of discount* (9,720) (759)
Loss from early repayment of bonds (896) -
Interest expense on bank loans (5,102) (9,557)
Changes of fair value in debentures measured at fair value through profit or loss* * - (21,290)
Finance costs from hedging activities through currency options sale {586) -
Foreign currency losses on debentures (14,696) (469)
Other finance expenses (285) (198)
Finance costs {45,195) (36,839)
Net finance costs (30,903) (35,576)

* As the Gompany's primary objective is to obtain the Deferral, the amortization of the discount is taking into account the repayment in 2016 of the minimum net amount, as mentioned in

note 2(c).

** Gredit risk of the entity could not be reliably measure in 2014, as the Company started the year at a state of default in its payments, and no reliable cash flow projection could have been

measured.

NOTE 26 - INCOME TAXES

Amounts recognized in profit or loss Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
€000 €000
Current year tax expenses (506) (18}
Tax benefit (deferred tax expense) (refer to note 17) (515) 1,300
Total (1,021) 1,282
Deferred tax (expense) benefit Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2015 | FWWF@MEQN
com PURPOSEY

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (515) E G[ /Grant k {/

o 1 4 A1
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Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

% €000 €000

Dutch statutory income tax rate 25% 25%
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (45,095) (120,969)
Tax benefit at the Dutch statutory income tax rate 25% (11,274) (30,242)
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses (1,021) (981)
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (995) 6,356
Current year tax loss for which no deferred tax asset is provided' 12,775 18,695
Non-deductible expenses (exempt income) 1,536 4,890
Tax Expense (Tax benefit) 1,021 (1,282)

12015 and 2014 ~ Mainly due to write-down of Trading property not recognized for tax purposes.
The main tax laws imposed on the Group companies in their countries of residence:
The Netherlands

a. Companies resident in the Netherlands are subject to corporate income tax at the general rate of 25%. The first EUR 200,000 of profits is taxed at a rate of
20%. Tax losses may be carried back for one year and carried forward for nine years.

b. Under the participation exemption rules income, including dividends and capital gains, derived by Netherlands companies in respect of qualifying investments
in the nominal paid up share capital of resident or non-resident investee companies, is exempt from Netherlands corporate income tax provided the conditions
as set under these rules have been satisfied. Such conditions require, among others, a minimum percentage ownership interest in the investee company and
require the investee company to satisfy at least one of the following tests:

- Motive Test, the investee company is not held as passive investment;
- Tax Test, the investee company is taxed locally at an effective rate of at least 10% (calculated based on Dutch tax accounting standards);
- Asset Test, the investee company owns (directly and indirectly) less than 50% low taxed passive assets.

Poland

Companies resident in Poland are subject to corporate income tax at the general rate of 19%. (capital gains bears the same tax rate). Tax losses may be carried
forward for five years, with only 50% of the loss is deductible in each tax year. Withholding tax on Dividend is at a rate of 19%, subject to European Union
regulations or Double Tax Treaties outstanding.

Czech Republic

Companies resident in the Czech Republic are subject to corporate income tax at the general rate of 19% (possible exemption in certain cases). Tax losses may

be carried forward for five years, subject to certain limitations. Dividends and interest paid to non-residents are subject to 15% withholding tax unless the rate is
reduced under an applicable treaty. Dividend paid to EU member state is exempt upon fulfilling certain criteria. 4% transfer tax is levied on real estate transfers.

Latvia
CGompanies resident in Latvia are subject to corporate income tax at the general rate of 15%. (capital gains bears the same tax rate). Tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely (with exception for losses prior to 2008). There is no withholding tax on Dividend. F DENT!.HCAT(OZ\;
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NOTE 27 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
e Credit risk

*  Liquidity risk
*  Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing
risk, and the Group’s management of capital.

The Board of Directors has established a continuous process for identifying and managing the risks faced by the Group (on a consolidated basis), and confirms
that it is responsible for taking appropriate actions to address any weaknesses identified.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to moni-
tor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.

The Company’s Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

a. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group's financial instruments held in banks and from other receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group requires coflateral in the form of mainly deposit equal to three months of rent from tenants of shopping centers
(collected deposits from tenants totalled EUR 1.4 million and EUR 2.4 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively).

Cash and deposits and other financial assets.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk in respect to cash and deposits, including held for sale financial assets (debt instruments) by investing mostly in
deposits and other financial instruments with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least investment grade from international rating agencies. Given these
credit ratings, management does not expect any counterparty to fail to mest its obligations.

b Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. For detailed information refer to note 2(c).
¢. Market risk

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the Group will incur significant fluctuations in its profit or loss as a result of utilizing currencies other than the functional currency of
the respective Group company.

The Group is exposed to currency risk mainly on borrowings (debentures issued in Israel and in Poland) that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the respective Group companies. The currencies in which these transactions primarily are denominated are the NIS or PLN.

The Company ceased the using of currency options and forwards effective October 2015 in order to maintain liquidity. Regarding currency and rijsk hi@%%@ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂ(yﬁn@?\é
debentures refer also to note 11. ; ?UR?QSES
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Interest Rate Risk (including inflation)

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from short and long term borrowing (as well as debentures). Borrowings issued at variable interest rates expose the
Group to variability in cash flows. Borrowings issued at fixed interest rate (but are presented at their fair value) expose the Group to changes in fair value, if the in-
terest is changing. In certain cases, the Group uses IRS to minimize the exposure to interest risk by fixing the interest rate. Regarding interest rate risk hedging
of the debentures and bank facilities, refer to note 11. As the Israeli inflation risk is diminishing to a level that management befieves is acceptable (Israeli GPJ 2015
~1%; 2014 -0.2%), the Company stopped using hedging of CPI risk in 2012.

Sharehelders’ equity management

Refer to note 18 in respect of shareholders’ equity components in the restructuring plan. The Company’s Board of Directors is updated on any possible equity
issuance, in order to assure (among other things) that any changes in the shareholders’ equity (due to issuance of shares, options or any other equity instrument)
is to the benefit of both the Company’s bondholders and shareholders. Refer also to note 18 on Dividend policy.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The vast majority of financial assets are not passed due, and the management
believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 60 days are still collectible in full, based on historic payment behavior and extensive analysis
of customer credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount as Carrying amount as

at December 31, 2015 at December 31, 2014

Note Credit quality €'000 €'000

Cash and cash equivalents 4 Mainly Baa3 15,659 33,363
Restricted bank deposits ~ short term 5 Mainly BBB+ 4,774 6,886
Held for trading financial assets Mostly BB+ - 1,434
Trade receivables, net 6 N/A 1,654 2,719
Other accounts receivable 7 N/A 1,350 2,963
Loan to Diksna 10 N/A 4,298 6,121
Restricted bank deposits - fong term - 25
Total 27,735 53,511

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, all debtors without credit quality had a relationship of less than five years with the Group. At 31 December 2015, the aging of
trade and other receivables that were not impaired was as follows:

Carrying amount Carrying amount

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

€000 €000

Neither past due nor impaired 1,151 1,160
Past dus 1-90 days 578 1,130
Past due 91-120 days 1,275 3,392
Total 3,004 5,682
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The maximum exposure fo credit risk for the abovementioned table at the reporting date by type of debtor was as follows:

Carrying amount

Carrying amount

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

€'000 €'009

Banks and financial institutions 20,433 41,683
Tenants 1,654 2,718
Governmental institutions 1,061 2,502
L.0an to Diksna 4,298 6,121
Related parties and other 289 486
Total 27,135 53,511

Liquidity risk**+*

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Carrying  Contractual 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5  More than
December 31, 2015 amount  cash flows or less** months** years years 5 years
Derivative financial liabilities
IRS Derivatives 754 (790) (230) (227) (333) - -
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank foans 102,512 (107,644) (32,432) (2,822) (48,267) (24,123) -
Debentures issued 181,589 (238,347) (33,034) (60,472) (18,115) {116,667) (10,059)
Trade and other payables 9,268 (9,268) (9,268) - - - -
Related parties 109 (109) (109) - - - -
Total 293,478 (355,368) (74,843) (63,294) (66,382) {140,790) (10,059)
* Refer also to note 2(c) for more information. This note assumes the mini 1 contractual payments on the deb 5 to achieve the Deferral.

** Refer also to note 2(c) for more information on debentures issued. Out of the total remaining amount of EUR 44.6 million expected for the next six months, the Company expects
contractual cash flows due to secured bank loans in the amount of EUR 29.4 million and trade and other payables in the amount of EUR 5.4 million to be revolved.

*** As the Company’s primary objective is to obtain the Deferral, this liquidity risk note is taking into account the repayment in 2016 of the minimum net amount, as mentioned in note 2(c).

Carrying  Contractual 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5  More than
December 31, 2014 amount  cash flows or less** months** years years Syears
Derivative financial liahilities
IRS Derivatives 989 (1,053) (263) (163) (319) (308) -
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans 150,847 (173,058) (39,616) (5,697) (10,202) (86,362) (31,181)
Debentures issued 162,862 (238,451) (6,228) (6,602) (25.,466) (200,155) -
Trade and other payables 15,068 (15,068) (15,068) - - - -
Related parties 1,161 (1,161) (1,161} - - ?‘éR EDENQF?CAHOF@
Total 329,938 (427,738) (62,073) (12,299) (35,668) (286,517) P%P’QﬁES
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Currency risk

The Company’s main currency risk is in respect of its NIS denominated debentures. Following the discontinuance and full settlement of all currency options
effective October 2015, the Company is exposed to changes in EUR/NIS rate.

The following exchange rate of EUR/NIS applied during the year:

Reporting date Reporting date

Average rate Average rate Spot rate Spot rate

EUR 2015 2014 2015 2014
NiS 1 8.232 g.211 0.235 0.212

PLN denominated debentures — A change of 6 percent in EUR/PLN rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss by EUR 0.8 miltion,
as a result of having issued PLN linked bonds.

NIS denominated debentures ~ A change of 11 percent in EUR/NIS rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss by EUR 18.5 million
(2014: EUR 14.8 million), as a result of having issued NIS linked bonds.

This effect assumes that all other variables, in particular CPi index, remain constant,
Interest rate risk

Profile
As of the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Carrying amount Carrying amount
2015 2014
€000 €000
Fixed rate instrumenis
Financial assets 20,433 41,683
Variable rate instruments
Debentures (181,589) (162,862)
Other financial fiabilities (102,512} (150,847)
Total (284,101) (313,708)
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 53 basis points in Euribor interest rates (2014 - 5 basis points) at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2014.

Variable Interest rate effect (excluding debentures)

Profit or Loss Profit or Loss
Variable Interest rate effect (excluding debentures) Increase Decrease
December 31, 2015 (500) 500
December 31, 2014 (75) 75

NIS Debentures

Sensitivity analysis — effect of changes in Israeli CPI on carrying amount of NIS debentures

Achange of 3 percent in Israeli Consumer Price Index (“CPI) at the reporting date (and in 2014) would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Profit or loss effect Profit or loss effect

Carrying CPi CPi

For the year ended amount of increase increase
December 31, debentures effect effect
2015 168,632 (5,059) 5,059
2014 149,635 (4,489) 4,489

Fair values

Fair values measurement versus carrying amounts
In respect to the Company’s financial asset instruments not presented at fair value, being mostly short term market interest bearing liquid balances, the Company
believes that the carrying amount approximates fair value. In respect the Company’s financial instruments liabilities:

For the Israeli debentures presented at amortized cost, the fair value would be the market quote of the relevant Israeli debenture, had they been measured at fair
value.

Carrying Carrying Fair Fair

amaount ameount value value

2015 2014 2015 2014

Debentures at amortized cost - Polish bonds 12,957 13,227 11,569 12,699
Debentures A at amortized cost - Israeli bonds 59,072 53,257 50,172 47,148
Debentures B at amortized cost - Israeli bonds 109,560 96,378 91,614 92,666

In respect of most of other non-listed borrowings, the Group was not asked to raise interest rates or to bring forward maturities as a result of the restructuring
procedure, as most financing banks do not expect the restructuring procedure to have a material effect on the security the banks hold undemm\gﬁ;gﬁ;{gﬂpﬁﬁ -
) ; ) ) \ . ) FORIOE TION
and therefore the Company has a basis to believe that the fair value of non-listed borrowings approximates the carrying amount. PURPOSES
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Fair value Hierarchy

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does
not include fair value information for financial assets and financial fiabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair

value;

Carrying amount as

Carrying amount as

Fair value at December 31, 2015 at December 31, 2014
Note hierarchy €000 €000

Financial assets not measured at fair vaiue
Cash and cash equivalents 4 15,659 33,363
Restricted bank deposits ~ short term 5 4,774 6,886
Held for trading financial assets Level 1 - 1,434
Trade receivables, net 6 1,654 2,719
Other receivables 7a 1,350 2,963
Loan to Diksna 10 4,298 6,121
Restricted bank deposits - long term - 25
Total 21,735 53,511
Carrying amount as Carrying amount as
Fair value at December 31, 2015 at December 31, 2014
Note hierarchy €000 €000

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Interest bearing loans from banks 12 Level 2 102,513 150,847
Debentures at amortized cost 16 Level 2 181,589 162,862
Trade and other payables 9,268 15,068
Related parties 14 109 1,161
Total 293,479 329,938
Carrying amount as Carrying amount as
Fair value at December 31, 2015 at December 31, 2014
Note hierarchy €000 €000

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Derivatives 11 Level 3 754 989
Total 754 989
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NOTE 28 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

a. Contingent Habilities and commitments to related parties

—

- In October 2006, the Company and E! entered into an agreement, pursuant to which with effect from 1 January 2006 the Company will pay commissions to El
in respect of all and any outstanding corporate and first demand guarantess which have been issued by El in favour of the Company up to 0.5% of the amount
or value of the guarantee, per annum. As of the end of the reporting period the Group has no outstanding guarantees from El and no consideration was paid in
this respect.

B

. On November 28, 2014 the Company entered into an indemnity agreement with all of the Company’s newly appointed directors and on June 20, 2011 with
part of the Company’s senior management — the maximum indemnification amount to be granted hy the Company to the directors shall not exceed 25% of
the shareholders’ equity of the Company based on the shareholders’ equity set forth in the Company’s last consolidated financial statements prior to such
payment. No consideration was paid by the Company in this respect since the agreement was signed.

[

. The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability cover, presently at the maximum amount of USD 60 million for a term of 12 months commencing on
29 April 2015. Pursuant to the terms of this policy, all the Directors and senior manager are insured. The new policy does not exclude past public offerings and
covers the risk that may be incurred by the Directors through future public offerings of equity up to the amount of USD 50 million.

=

. Contingent fiabilities and Commitments fo others

—

. As part of the completion of the restructuring plan {refer also to note 29 (8)), the Group has taken the following commitments and collaterals towards the
creditors:

a. Reslrictions on issuance of additional debentures - The Company undertakes not to issue any additional debentures other than as expressly provided for
in the Restructuring Plan.

b. Restrictions on amendments to the terms of the debeniures ~ The CGompany shall not be entitled to amend the terms of the debentures, with the
exception of purely technical changes, unless such amendment is approved under the terms of the relevant series and the applicable law and the Company
also obtains the approval of the holders of all other series of debentures issued by the Gompany by ordinary majority.

c. Coverage Ratioc Covenant (“CRC”) - The CRC is a fraction calculation based on known Group valuations reports and consolidated financial information
available at each reporting period. Minimum CRC deemed to be complied with by the Group Is 118% in each reporting period. For the December 31, 2015
calculated GRC refer to note 29 (k). In the event that the CRC is lower than the Minimum CRC, then as from the first cut-off date on which a breach of the
CRC has been established and for as long as the breach is continuing, the Company shall not perform any of the following: (a) a sale, directly or indirectly,
of a Real Estate Asset (“REA") owned by the Company or a subsidiary, with the exception that it shall be permitted to transfer REA's in performance of an
obligation to do so that was entered into prior to the said cut-off date, (b) investments in new REAs; or (c) an investments that regards an existing project
of the Gompany or of a subsidiary, uniess it does not exceed a level of 20% of the construction cost of such project (as approved by the lending bank of
these projects) and the certain foan to cost ratio of the projects are met.

If a breach of the Minimum CRC has occurred and continued throughout a period comprising two consecutive quarterly reports following the first
quarterly/year end report on which such breach has been established, then such breach shall constitute an event of default under the trust deeds and Polish
debentures terms, and the group of (i) Series A Debentures holders, (ii) Series B Debentures holders, (iif) Polish Debentures holders, and (iv) guarantee
and other creditors shall, each as a separate group acting by majority vote, be entitled to declare by written notice to the Company that all or a part of their
respective (remaining) claims become immediately due and payable.

d. Minimum Cash Reserve Covenant (“MCRC") - The cash reserve of the Company has to be greater than the amount estimated by the Company’s
management required to pay all administrative and general expenses and interest payments to the debenture holders falling due in the following six
months, minus sums of proceeds from transactions that have already been signed (by the Company or a subsidiary) and closed and to the expectation of
the Gompany’s management have a high probability of being received during the following six months. MCRC is maintained as of December 31, 2015.

e. Negative Pledge on REA of the Company ~ The Company undertakes that until the debentures has been repaid in full, it shall not create any encumbrance
on any of the REA, held, directly or indirectly, by the Company except in the event that the encumbrance is created over the Company's interes§ Na, .. i
subsidiary as additional security for financial indebtedness (“FI”) incurred by such subsidiary which is secured by encumbrances smﬁ&%&%‘&éﬁi&@i‘
subsidiary. PURPOSES

f. Negative Pledge on the REA of Subsidiaries - The subsidiaries shall undertake that until the debentures have been repaid in full,
any encumbrance on any of REA except in the event that:

- inf
(i} the subsidiary creates an encumbrance over a REA owned by such subsidiary exclusively as security for new Fl incurred fof ¥ Burpose of purch% g\g,

investing in or developing such REA; Notwithstanding the aforesaid, subsidiaries shall be entitled to create an encumbrance on fand ﬁi@%ﬁﬁ?@ .
sccouniants 80 Advis
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Flincurred for the purpose of investing in and developing, but not for purchasing, an REA held by a different Group company (hereinafter: a “Cross
Pledge”), provided the total value of the lands owned by the Group charged with Gross Pledges after the commencement date of the plan does not
exceed EUR 35 million, calculated on the basis of book value (the “Sum of Cross Pledges”). When calculating the Sum of Cross Pledges, lands that
were charged with Cross Pledges created prior to the commencement date of the plan or created solely for the purpose of refinancing an existing Fi
shall be excluded. The Group did not have cross-default as of December 31, 2015,

(iiy The encumbrance is created over an asset as security for new Fl that replaces existing Fl and such asset was already encumbered prior to the
refinancing. Any excess net cash flow generated from such refinancing, shall be subject to the mandatory early prepayment of 75%.

(iif) The encumbrance is created over interests in a Subsidiary as additional security for Fl incurred by such subsidiary which is secured by encumbrances
on assets owned by that subsidiary as permitted by sub-section (i) above. The encumbrance is created as security for new Fi that is incurred for
purposes other than the purchase of and/or investment in and development of an REA, provided that at least 75% of the net cash flow generated from
such new Fl is used for mandatory early prepayment.

g. Limitations on incurring new Fi by the Company and the subsidiaries - The Company undertakes not to incur any new Fl (including by way of refinancing
an existing FI with new FI) until the outstanding debentures debt (as of November 30, 2014) have been repaid in full, except in any of the following events:

(i) the new Fl is incurred for the purpose of investing in the development of a REA, provided that: (a) the Loan To Cost (“LTC") Ratio of the investment
is not less than 50% (or 40% in special cases); (b) the new Fl is incurred by the subsidiary that owns the REA or, if the Fl is incurred by a different
subsidiary, any encumbrance created as security for such new Fl is permitted under the negative pledge stipulation above; and (c) following such
investment the consolidated cash is not less than the MCRG;

(if) The new Flis incurred by a subsidiary for the purpose of purchasing a new REA by such Subsidiary, provided that following such purchase the cash
reserve is not less than the MCRC.

(iif) At least 75% of the net cash flow resulting from the incurrence of new Fl is used for a 75% early prepayment of the debentures. Subject to the terms of
the plan, the Group may also refinance existing FI if this does not generate net cash flow,

h. No distribution policy ~ Refer to note 18 on Dividend Policy.
i 75% mandatory early repayment — Refer to note 29(e) and to other sections in this note.

j. Permitted Disposals ~ provisions with respect to the four shopping malis - the Company will be allowed to sefl the four shopping malls (Torun, Suwalki,
Kragujevac and Riga) or to perform refinancing for any of these (hereinafter: “Disposal Event”), subject to the cumulative net cash flow in the Disposal
Event in respect of these four shopping malls being no less than EUR 70 million, In case no Disposal Event occurs for the four shopping malls together,
the Company will be allowed to perform a special purpose Disposal Event only if after execution of the special purpose Disposal Event, the surplus value
of shopping malls not sold (according to the valuation deducting the specific debt to banks) is no less than EUR 70 million, deducting the net cash flows
received from previous Disposal Events and deducting the net cash flows from the special purpose Disposal Event.

. General commitments and warranties in respect of trading property disposals.

In the framework of the transactions for the sale of the Group's real estate assets, the Group has undertaken to indemnify the respective purchasers for any
losses and costs incurred in connection with the sale transactions. The indemnifications usually include: (i) Indemnifications in respect of completeness

of title on the assets and/or the shares sold (i.e that the assets and/or the shares sold are owned by the Group and are clean from any encumbrances and/
or mortgage and the like). Such indemnifications generally survived indefinitely and are capped to the purchase price in each respective transaction: and (i)
Indemnifications in respect of other representation and warranties included in the sales agreements {such as: development of the project, responsibility to
defects in the development project, tax matter and others).

Such indemnifications are limited in time (generally 3 years from signing a closing agreement) and are generally capped to 25% to 50% of the purchase price.
No indemnifications were provided by the Group till the date of the statement of financial position,

The Hungarian tax authorities have challenged the applied tax treatment in two of the entities previously sold in Hungary by the Company to Kiepierre in
the course of the Framework Agreement dated 30 July, 2004 (“Framework Agresment”). In respect of two of the former subsidiaries of the Company, the
tax authorities decision of reducing the tax base by and imposed a penalty in the sum of HUF 428.5 Million (circa EUR 1.4 million), were challenged by the

iously held entities at the competent courts. i :
previously entiti & competent courts FOR EDENﬂFECAﬂQN

Klepierre has submitted an indemnification request claiming that the tax assessed in the described procedures falls into the scope of the Frar%u?sfsr@SEﬁ
Agreement tax indemnification provisions and the Company in its respanse rejected such claims. Subsequently Klepierre has submitted 2 .
International Chamber of Commerce in Brussels for arbitration procedure. As of the reporting date the procedure is still undergoing, 16
on February 29, 2016, while the decision of the arbitrary court is expected in the third quarter of 2016. {
. . I A ) . I Date
The Company's management estimates that no significant costs will be borne thereby, in respect of these indemnifications. Grant Thormion v
secountants en Adviseurs BY.
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3. Tesco - The Company is liable to the buyer of its previously owned shopping center in the Czech Republic (“NOVO") - sold in June 2006 - in respect to one
of its tenants (“Tesco”). Tesco leased an area within the shopping center for a period of 30 years, with an option to extend the lease period for an additional
30 years, in consideration for EUR 6.9 million which was paid in advance. According to the lease agreement, the tenant has the right to terminate the lease
agreement subject o fulfilment of certain conditions as stipulated in the agreement. The Company’s management believes that it is not probable that this
commitment will result in any material amount being paid by the Company.

4. The Company is retaining a 100% holding in all its projects in Serbia after it was decided to discontinue the negotiations with a Serbian developer.
The Company has a contingent obligation to pay the developer in any case there is major progress in the projects. The total remaining potential obligation is
EUR 0.8 miltion.

5. Apart from point 4 above, the Company has contractual commitments in respect of its project in Serbia (Visnjicka) in a total amount of EUR 2 million in respect
of construction activities, to be paid during 2016 and 2017.

(2]

- Contingent liabilities due lo legal proceedings

The Company is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its business. Aithough the final outcome of each of these cases cannot he estimated at
this time, the Company’s management believes, that the chances these litigations will result in any outflow of resources to settle them is remote, and therefore
no provision or disclosure is required.

d. Securities, guarantees and liens under bank finance agresmenis with subsidiaries

1. Certain companies within the Group which are engaged in the purchase, construction or operation of shopping centres (“Project Companies”) have secured
their respective credit facilities (with withdrawn facility amounts totalling EUR 130 million, as of December 31, 2015) awarded by financing banks (for projects
in Poland and Latvia), by providing first or second ranking (fixed or floating) charges on property owned thereby, including right in and to real estate property
as well as the financed projects, on rights pertaining to certain contracts (including lease, operation and management agreements), on rights arising from
insurance policies, and the like. Shares of certain Project Companies were also pledged in favour of the financing banks.

In respect of a corporate guarantee for the fulfilment of its subsidiaries obligations under loan agreements, refer to note 12.

Shareholders loans as well as any other rights and/or interests of shareholders in and to the Project Companies were subordinated to the respective credit
facilities.

Payment to the shareholders is permitted (including the distribution of dividends but excluding management fees) subject to fulfilling certain preconditions.

Gertain loan agreements include an undertaking to fulfil certain financial and operational covenants throughout the duration of the credit, namely: complying
with “a minimum debt services cover ratio”, “loan outstanding amount” to secured assets value ratio, complying with certain restrictions on interest rates;
maintaining certain cash balances for current operations; maintaining equity to project cost ratio and net profit to current bank’s debt; occupancy percentage
and others. In respect of breach of covenants, refer to note 12.

The Project Companies undertook not to make any disposition in and to the secured assets, not to sell, transfer or lease any substantial part of their assets
without the prior consent of the financing bank.

In certain events the Project Gompanies undertook not to allow, without the prior consent of the financing bank:

(i) any changes in and to the holding structure of the Project Companies nor to allow for any change in their incorporation documents;

(if) execution of any significant activities, including issuance of shares, related party transactions and significant transactions not in the ordinary course of
business;

(iiiycertain changes to the scope of the project;

(iv)the assumption of certain liabilities by the Project Companies in favour of third parties;

(v) Receipt of loans by the Project Companies and/or the provision thereby of a guarantee to third parties; and the like.

2. Gommitment in respect of derivative transaction FOR gDENTIFiCﬁ\TIQI\%
oreagPRPOSES |

9
Within the framework of derivative transactions (refer to note 11), executed between the Group and commercial banks (the “Banks”), the Group agreed 't

provide the Banks with collaterals or cash deposits. i Zn’{}'.
Accordingly, and In respect of Torun IRS the project company also established a bail maortgage up to EUR 5.4 million encumbering the real esty ' ;E
Date

ouseus

Grant T?mm%_ars -
Aceountanis 80 Adviseurs B.V.
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NOTE 29 - SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

A. Selling of the SPV holding Keregaon park shopping center in Pune, India

On May 13, 2015, the Company signed an agreement to sell the SPV holding Koregaon Park Plaza, the retail, entertainment and office scheme located in
Pune, India for circa EUR 35 million (2,500 million INR). The net cash proceeds received (after repayment of the related bank loan, other liabilities and
transaction costs} from the sale totalled EUR 7.4 million (525 million INR). In fine with the Company stated restructuring plan, all the net cash proceeds
from the transaction were retained within the Company. The Company recorded a loss of EUR 6.5 million from this transaction due to realization of foreign
currency translation reserve accumulated relating to the SPV. An additional loss of EUR 2.3 million was recorded mainly due to the impairment of various
related receivables.

B. Selling of undeveloped plots in Bomania

On June 24, 2015, the Company reached an agreement to sell its 46,500 sqm development site in lasi, Romania in two separate transactions {one for the
sale of 37,334 sqm and the other for the sale of 9,166 sqm), for a gross consideration of EUR 7.3 million. There was neither bank debt secured against the
property, nor profit or loss recorded as a result of the transaction.

In May 2015, the Company concluded (through its 50.1% held subsidiary (“Plaza Bas”™)) the sale of a circa 17,000 sqm plot in Brasov, Romania for a total
consideration of EUR 330,000. No profit or loss resulted from this transaction.

In June 2015 the Company conciuded an additional sale (by Plaza Bas) of an SPV holding circa 1,200 sqm plot in Pioiesti, Romania for a total consideration
of EUR 240,000. The proceeds were used to repay an outstanding bank loan and no proceeds were obtained by the Group. A waiver was obtained for the
remaining of the unpaid bank foan facility in a total amount of EUR 1.4 million and the Company recorded accordingly a gain, included as finance income in
these reports.

In line with the Company’s stated restructuring plan, 75% of the net cash proceeds from the abovementioned transactions (where applicable) were distributed
to the Company’s bondholders as an early repayment in late September 2015.

C. Liberec Plaza - seftlement with financing bank

On September 29, 2015, one of the Company's wholly owned subsidiaries won a tender to buy the bank loan to the wholly owned SPV of Liberec Plaza
shopping and entertainment centre in the Czech Republic.

A EUR 20.4 miflion bank facility was provided by two commercial banks to which the Company agreed to pay and paid an amount of EUR 8.5 million, reflecting
a discount of 58%. The Company recorded a EUR 11.9 million profit on the discount in these financial statements, included as finance income.

B. Sale of an office building in Bomania

In September 2015, the Company sold Palazzo Ducale, its wholly owned office building of 823 sqm GLA in Bucharest, Romania, for circa EUR 1.1 million, and
recorded a small impairment of EUR 0.2 mitlion.

In fine with the Company stated restructuring plan, 75% of the net cash proceeds from the abovementioned transaction were distributed to the Company’s
bondholders as an early repayment in late September 2015.

E. Restrucluring plan

On November 14, 2013, the Company announced that its board of directors concluded that the Company would withhold payment on the upcoming
maturities of its bands and approach its creditors with a restructuring plan. The restructuring plan was approved on June 26, 2014 by the vast majority of the
creditors, and subsequently approved by the Court on July 9, 2014, becoming an irrevocable decision on July 21, 2014. The Company announced publication
of a prospectus in respect of a Rights offering on October 16, 2014. The Shareholders approved the Rights offering on November 28, 2014 followed by a
capital injection of EUR 20 million by existing shareholders of the Company on that date. All conditions precedent of the restructuring plan were fulfilled until

November 30, 2014. FOR SDENT Cﬁ{f OM

Actual first payment of both principal and interest to Debentures occurred on January 7, 2015, with the Company transferring all funds al ready effectlve
December 23, 2014 to governing authorities. Er&ntTh
Qate mmals
Grant Thornton
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The following are material commercial features of the restructuring plan:

.

An injection of a EUR 20 million into the Company at a price per-share of EUR 0,0675, (“Equity Contribution”, refer also to note 18).

The Company issued to the holders of unsecured debt (i.e., outstanding debt under the Israeli Series A and B Notes and the Polish Notes) (“Unsecured
Debt") 13.21% of the Company’s shares (post Equity Contribution) for payment of par value of shares. Such shares issuance was distributed among the
holders of Unsecured Debt pro rata to the relative share of each relevant creditor in the Deferred Debt (“Deferred Debt Ratio”).

Each principal payment under the debentures due in the years 2013, 2014 and 2015 pursuant to the original terms of the debentures shall be deferred by
exactly four and a half years and each principal payment due pursuant to the original terms of the debentures in subsequent years {i.e., 2016 and 2017) will
be deferred by exactly one year.

In the event that the Gompany does not succeed in prepaying an aggregate amount of at least NIS 434 million (EUR 102 million) of the principal of the
debentures, excluding linkage differentials within a period of two years before 1 December 2016, then all principal payments under the debentures deferred
in accordance with above, shall be advanced by one year (i.e., shall become due one year earlier).

All unpaid interest accrued on the Israeli debentures and polish debentures until and including December 31, 2013 will be added to the principal and paid
together with it

As of 1 January 2014, the annual interest rate of the Unsecured Debt shall be increased by 1.5%.
The Company paid to the holders of the Unsecured Debt an amount of EUR 13.8 million of 2014 interest payments.
The Company, its directors and officers and its controlling shareholder are fully released from claims.

The net cash flow received by the Company following an exit or raising new Fi (except if taken for the purpose of purchase, investment or development

of real estate asset) or refinancing of REA's after the full repayment of the asset's related debt that was realized or in respect of a loan paid in case of

debt recycling (and in case where the exit occurred in the subsidiary ~ amounts required to repay liabilities to the creditors of that subsidiary) and direct
expenses in respect of the asset (any sale and tax costs, as incurred) , will be used for repayment of the accumulated interest till that date in all of the
series (in case of an exit which is not one of the four shopping centers only 50% of the interest) and 75% of the remaining cash (following the interest
payment) will be used for an early repayment of the close principal payments for each of the series (A, B, Polish) each in accordance with its relative share
in the deferred debt. Such prepayment will be real repayment and not in bond purchase.

The restructuring plan also includes, inter alia: (i) certain limitations on distribution of dividends, actual investments and incurring of new indebtedness
(refer to note 18); (if) negative pledge on direct and indirect holdings of the Company on real estate assets (refer also to note 28 (b)); (iii) financial
covenants and undertakings of the Company with respect to the sale and financing of certain projects and investment in new projects (refer also to note
28(b) and to note 29(k) below); (iv) compliance with financial covenants CRC and MCRG (refer to note 28(b) and (v) commitment to publish quarterly
financial statements as long as the Unsecured Debt is outstanding.

F. Update in respect of the Bangalore and Chennal projects

Bangalore

In March, 2008, EP! entered into an amended and reinstated share subscription and framework agreement (the “Amended Framework Agreement”), with a
third party (the “Partner”), and a wholly owned Indian subsidiary of EP| which was designated for this purpose (“SPV”), to acquire, through the SPV, up to 440
acres of land in Bangalore, India (the “Property™) in certain phases as set forth in the Amended Framewark Agreement.

As of December 31, 2015, the SPV holds joint development rights in approximately 54 acres of the Property for a total aggregate consideration of
approximately INR 2,843 million (EUR 40 million}. In addition, the SPV has paid to the Partner advances of approximately INR 2,536 million (EUR 35 million)
on account of future acquisitions by the SPV of a further 51.6 acres.

On December 2, 2015, EPI signed an agreement to sell 100% of its interest in the SPV to the Partner. The total consideration for the sale u
the transaction is INR 321 Crores (approximately EUR 45.4 million, the Company part is expected to be 50%
paid at transaction closing.

The transaction is subject to certain conditions precedent, and closing will take place once these conditions are met and no later than 30 Se[){i
The Investor has provided certain security in order to guarantee the aforementioned deadline.

) GrantT
6.
afa nf \IG.:
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Grant Thornton
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Chennai

In December 2007, EP1 executed agreements for the establishment of a special purpose vehicle (“Chennai Project SPV”) together with a local developer in
Chennai (“Local Pariner”). The Chennai Project SPV acquired 74.3 acres of land situated in the Sipcot Hi-Tech Park in Siruseri District in Chennai, India in
consideration of a total of INR 2,367 million (EUR 31 million) (EP! share). In addition, as of December 31, 2015, EP| paid advances in the amount of INR 564
miftion (EUR 7 million) in order to secure acquisition of an additional 8.4 acres.

EPI holds 80% of the equity and voting rights in the Chennai Project SPV, while the Local Partner holds the remaining 20%

The Chennai Project was designated at the end of 2014 as project for development. During 2015, due to changes in the Group’s activities and objectives,
Management has decided not to develop the Chennai project but rather to dispose it in its current situation. In this respect, on September 16, 2015, EPI has
obtained a backstop commitment for the purchase of Chennai, india Scheme.

EP1, which has been in discussions regarding the sale of Chennai Project SPV, has obtained a commitment that, subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions
precedent, the sale transaction will be completed by 15th of January 2016 (the “Long Stop Date”) for the consideration of approximately EUR 21.6 million (INR
1,617 millions), net of all transaction related costs. If the completion did not take place by the Long Stop Date, then EPI's stake in the Chennai Project SPV
would be increased to 100%. In line with the Sale Transaction agreement, since the local Indian partner (the “Partner”) failed to complete the transaction by
the Lang Stop Date, EPI exercised its right to get the Partner’s 20% holdings in the Indian company, Kadavanthara Builders Private Limited.

. Additional write-downs
For additional write-downs information refer to note 8.
. Kochi project advanced payment seftlement
In November 2013, the Company exercised the corporate guarantee in the amount of EUR 4.3 million including interest thereon up till such date
(the “Reimbursement Payment™) provided by El to the Company in the framework of the Indian JV Agreement on the ground of EI's default to finalize and
conclude the transfer of the Kochi Project Rights to the Indian JV Vehicle. Due to uncertainty concerning the recovery of the receivable, the Company has

impaired the Reimbursement payment in its 2013 financial statements.

I June 2015, the Company reached an agreement with E, based on the mentioned JV Agreement and its ancillary documents (including corporate guarantee
issued by El in favour of the Company), following which EI was obliged to repay the Reimbursement amount in few instalments until mid-2018.

As a result of the agreement reached, the Company recorded a gain of EUR 4.6 million, included as other income in the statement of profit or loss.
Group liabilities towards El in the amount of EUR 0.8 million) were offset from this balance, with partial repayment of EUR 1 million performed in late
September 2015, thus balance as of December 31, 2015 is EUR 2.8 million (including accrued interest on remaining balance).

. Sale of Cina properly in Bucharest

On March 13, 2015, one of the Company’s subsidiaries in Romania, having a 49 years leasehold rights over a plot in Bucharest, Romania (“Property” and
“Rights”, respectively), signed a pre-agreement for waiving its Rights for a certain consideration to be further agreed with the owner of the Property (a
subsidiary of EI) and approved by the relevant organs of these entities.

On December 14, 2015 the Romanian subsidiary concluded the transaction to waive its leasing rights to the Cina property in Bucharest, which was sold by
the owner. The gross cash proceeds due to Plaza’s subsidiary was EUR 2.7 million (out of a total consideration of EUR 4 million) and the net proceeds, after

related taxes and transaction costs, was circa EUR 2.2 million. The Company recorded a gain of EUR 2.6 million in its income statement.

In line with the Company’s stated restructuring plan, 75% of the net cash proceeds from the transaction will be distributed to the Company’s bondholders by
the end of March 2016 as an early principal repayment.

. Advance payment settlement in Keregaon park shopping center in Pune, India

FOR IDENTIFICATION
In respect of one of the advances provided in 2013 and 2014 to the sold SPV in Pune (refer to note 29(a)) in the amount of INR 200 million ( Euwﬁm%
the Gompany reached a settlement in February 2015 with the potential buyer to settle the liability, in view of the cancelfation of the signed pre; agreements
to refund the potential buyer with INR 150 (EUR 1.9 million) of advances received. The Company recorded a gain of INR 50 million (EU&? :

result of this settlement, included as part of other income in the statement of profit or loss.

initiale
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. Update on covenants

In respect of covenants update on bank facilities, refer to nate 12. In respect of the CRC, as defined in the restructuring plan, as of December 31, 2015 the CRC
was 129%, in comparison with 118% minimum ratio required.

. Treasury bend held

As of December 31, 2015, the Company holds through its wholly owned subsidiary 14.7 million NIS par value bonds in series B debentures (adjusted par value
of NIS 17.0 million (EUR 4.0 million).

. Key management personnel compensation

As a result of the termination of the services of the Group’s CEQ, the CEOQ received his retirement entitlement. Accordingly, the Group has recognised an
expense of EUR 400,000 for the year ended December 31, 2015 (2014: nil).

. Building permils obtained

In July 2015, the Company received the building permit to develop Timisoara Plaza, a circa 40,000 sgm GLA shopping and entertainment centre in Timisoara,
western Romania. A binding financing offer has also been agreed with a commercial bank for circa 65% of the project cost.

Also in July 2015, the Company received the building permit to develop Belgrade Plaza (Visnjicka), a circa 32,000 sqm GLA shopping and entertainment centre
in Belgrade, Serbia.
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NOTE 30 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parly transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between
the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

The Company currently has five directors. The annual remuneration of the directors in 2015 amounted to EUR 0.6 million (2014 — EUR 1 million) and the annual
share based payments expenses was nil in 2015 (2014- EUR 20,000). There was no change in the number of Company share options granted to key personnel in
2015. There are no other benefits granted to directors. For information about related party balances as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 refer to notes 14 and in
respect of details of the Kochi transaction, refer to note 29(h). In respect of the Cina transaction, refer to note 29¢(1).

Trading transactions

During the year, Group entities had the following frading transactions with related parties that are not members of the Group:

Far the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
€000 €000
Income

Interest on balances with £} 181 -

Costs and expenses
Recharges - El 264 194
Previous executive director' - 115
Compensation to key managesment personnel? 469 -
Lease agreement on plot in Bucharest? 45 60
Lease agreement for office in Bucharest 30 30

1 The Executive director, who is also the former controliing shargholder of the ultimate parent company, was receiving an annual safary of USD 300,000, until July 2014,
2 Due to termination of agreements with the former Chief Executive officers (refer also to note 29(my)).

3 The Company signed in 2007 a 49 year lease agreement with a subsidiary of El for monthly fees of EUR 5,000 on a plot located in Bucharest, Romania. Refer also to note 29(i) regarding
the waiver of lease rights.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company identified York Capital Management Global Advisors, LLC (*York”) and Davidson Kempner Capital Management LLC
(“DK") as the Company’s related parties.

DK holds 26.3% of the Company’s outstanding shares of the Company as of the reporting date, following the finalization of the Restructuring plan. DK has no
outstanding balance as of the reporting date with any of the Group companies. York is the main shareholder in El, holding 19.8% of the outstanding shares of E,
and also has a direct holding of 3.6% in the Company’s shares. There were no transactions with DK or York in the reporting period and there are no outstanding
balances with DK or York.

DK and York are holding, as of December 31, 2015, 22% out of the total Israeli debentures debt of the GCompany.
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NOTE 31 - OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group comprises the following main reportable geographical segments: GEE and India. None of the Group's tenants accounts for more than 10% of the
total revenue. Also, no revenue is derived in the Netherfands, where the Company is domiciled. The Group’s CEQ reviews the internal management reports of
each segment at least quarterly. In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the revenue resulted from either
the selling or operating of assets geographically located in the relevant segment. Refer to note 8 for further detail by property on carrying amounts of Trading

Properties and note 12 for detail on project secured bank loans by property.

Central & Eastern Europe India Total
Year ended December 31, 2015 €'000 €'000 €000
NOt 16,420 (41) 16,379
Sale of properties (Koregaon Park/Cina) 2,589 (8,802) (6,213)
Income from operation/selling 19,009 (8,843) 10,166
Net finance costs? (5,094) (846) (5,940}
Net expenses from operation of other CEE assets {plots, Fantasy park) (838) - (838)
Other expenses, net (527) 1,330 803
Write-downs?® (17,843) (1,540} (19,383)
Share in results of equity-accounted investees - (1,755) (1,755)
Reportable segment loss before tax (5,293) (11,654) (16,947)
Less - general and administrative (6,999)
Other income - Dutch level (refer to note 29(h)) 4,653
Unallocated finance costs (Dutch corporate level- mainly debentures finance cost) (25,802)
Loss before income taxes (45,095)
Income tax expense (1,021)
Loss for the year (46,116)
Assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2015
Total segment assets? 341.849 25,779 367,628
Unallocated assets (Mainly Cash and other financial instruments held on Dutch level) 24,383
Total assets 392,011
Segment liabilities 126,372 54 126,426
Unallocated liabilities (Mainly debentures) 182,717
Total Habilities 309,143

1 NOI - net operating income earned by shopping malls, including Gompany's part in equity accounted investes Diksna, which holds Riga Plaza (refer to note 10). NOI earned in Poland —

EUR 11.9 million,
2 CGEE ~ Including net finance cost of EUR 0.8 due to equity accounted investee Diksna,

3 Refer to note 8 for the breakdown of trading properties impairments by location.
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Central & Eastern Europe India Total
Year ended December 31, 2014 €000 €000 €000
NOI 18,903 (1,135) 17,768
Sale of properties (Bas) {4,048) - (4,048)
Income from aperation/selling 14,855 (1,135) 13,720
Net finance costs? (6,747) (3,165) (9,912}
Net expenses from operation of other CEE asssts (plots, Fantasy park) (266) - (266)
Other expenses, net (2,310) 2,287 (23)
Write-downs? (77,211) (11,965) (89,176)
Share in results of equity-accounted investees - (2,365) (2,365)
Reportable segment loss before tax (71,679) (16,343) {88,022)
Less — general and administrative (7,434)
Other income/expenses - restructuring costs and gain 1,055
Unallocated finance costs (Dutch corporate fevel- mainly debentures finance cost) (26,568)
Loss before income taxes (120,969)
Income fax expense 1,282
Loss for the year (119,687)
Assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2014
Total segment assets? 362,910 62,584 425,494
Unallocated assets (Mainly Cash and other financial instruments held on Dutch level) 40,603
Total assets 466,097
Segment liabilities 153,547 29,523 183,070
Unallocated liabilities (Mainly debentures) 163,454
Total liabilities 346,524

1 NOi - net operating income earned by shopping malls, including Company’s part in equity accounted investee Diksna, which holds Riga Plaza (refer to note 10). NOJ earned in Poland —

EUR 11.8 million
2 GEE - Including net finance cost of EUR 0.9 due to equity accounted investee Diksna.

3 Refer to note 8 for the breakdown of trading properties impairments by lecation.
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NOTE 32 - EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

A. Disposal of a shopping center in the Czech Hepublic

On March 4, 2016 the Company agreed to sell its subsidiary holding Liberec Plaza, a shopping and entertainment centre in the Czech Republic,
for EUR 9.5 million. In line with the terms of the agreement, the buyer has deposited 15% of the consideration in escrow.

The due diligence process, final closing and settlement is expected to conclude by the end of March.

The disposal follows an agreement announced by the Company in September 2015 (refer to note 29(C)) whersby a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
("PCE") won a tender to buy the loan to the holding and operating company for Liberec Plaza for EUR 8.5 million.

Upon completion of the Liberec Plaza disposal, PCE will receive EUR 8.5 million on account of the bank foan it previously purchased. Out of the remaining
proceeds, at least 75% will be distributed to the Company’s bondholders by the end of June this year, in line with the Company’s stated restructuring plan.

B. Disposal of a plot in Romania

On March 24, 2016 the Company sold its 23,880 sqm site in Slatina, Romania, to a third party developer for EUR 0.66 million, consistent with the asset's last
reported book value.

in line with the Company’s stated restructuring plan, 75% of the cash proceeds will be distributed to the Company's bondholders by the end of June 2016 as
an early repayment.

€. Change in remuneration of Chalrman of the Board

Effective February 2016 the monthly remuneration of the Chairman of the Board of the Company was reduced from USD 20,000 to USD 18,000.

NOTE 33 - BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured on an alternative basis
on each reporting date

Derivative financial instruments Fair value
Held for trading financial assets (2014) Fair value

FOR IDENTIFICATION
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NOTE 34 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.
A. Basis of consolidation
1. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into ling with those used by the Group
in the consolidated financial stalements.

2. Interests in equity-accounted investees
The Group's interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates and joint ventures.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating policies. A joint
venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its
assets and obligations for its liabilities.

Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are recognised initially at cost, which includes transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
equity-accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

3. Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquireg’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition date. Changes in the Group’s
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

4. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-Group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising
from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

b. Foreign currency
1. Fareign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group companies at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate when the
fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical
cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation of available-for-sale equily investments (except on impairment in which case foreign
currency differences that have been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss) are recognised in other comprehensive
income. o
FOR [DENTIFICATION
2. Foreign operations oURPOSES

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated into euro a C gﬁ&e o L/
rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into euro at the exchange rates at the dates of thg : é ST Ve rleusevad
Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, and accumulated in the translation reserve, except to the exte if] e initiale

translation difference is allocated to non-controfting interest. -
uriants en Adviseurs BY.
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When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence or joint control is fost, the cumulative amount in the
translation reserve related to that forsign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its
interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interest.

When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint venture while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

if the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, then
fareign currency differences arising from such item form part of the net investment in the foreign operation. Accordingly, such differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the transiation reserve.

¢. Financial instrumenis

1. Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities — recognition and de-recognition.

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and debt securities issued on the date when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially alf of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor
retains substantially alt of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset, Any interest in such derecognised
financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability. The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a
legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the fiability simultaneously. Refer to note 27
for the fist of Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities.

2. Non-derivative financial assets - measurement

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes bank deposits deposited for periods which do not exceed three months.
Restricted bank deposits are deposit restricted due to bank facilities and derivatives entered into.

Loans and receivables
These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectable are written off in the period in which they are identified. Doubtful receivables are impaired when there is objective svidence that the Group will
not collect all amounts due. These types of assets are discussed in note 6, 7a and 7b.

Held for trading financial assets

These assets are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequsnt to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in
statement of profit or loss.

3. Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as heid-for-trading or is designated as such on initial rerfwlméf{m: YC ATION
atiributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at Tair vﬁb% SES

changes therein, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
a @ franﬂhc@@
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Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss included in 2014 selected unsecured non-convertible Debentures series A and series B
(refer to note 16).

Upon initial recognition a financial liability may be designated by the Company at fair value through profit or loss. Financial instruments are designated at fair
value through profit or loss if the Group manages such instruments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, or to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency. Upon initial
recognition atiributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, and changes therein are recognised in profit or foss.

Other non-derivative financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs, Subsequent to initial recognition, these
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: interest bearing
loans, debentures (refer to note 16), trade payables, related parties and other liabilities at amortized cost,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating the interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial liability (for example,
prepayment, call and similar options). The calculation includes alf fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

When the Group revises its estimates of payments, it adjusts the carrying amount of the financial liability to reflect actual and revised estimated cash flows.
The Group recalculates the carrying amount by computing the present value of estimated future cash flows at the financial liability's original effective interest
rate. The adjustment is recognised in profit or loss as a financial expense.

4. Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the
host contract and accounted for separately if certain criteria are met. Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value; any directly attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as they are incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

d. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incrementat costs directly attributable to issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction
from equity, net of any tax effect. Costs attributable to listing existing shares are expensed as incurred.

e. Trading properties

Properties that are being constructed or developed for sale in the ordinary course of business and empty plots acquired to be developed for such a salg are
classified as trading properties (inventory) and measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated seliing price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to complete construction and selling expenses.
If net realisable value is less than the cost, the trading property is written down to net realisable value.

In each subsequent period, a new assessment is made of net realisable value. When the circumstances that previously caused trading properties to be written
down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value hecause of changed economic circumstances, the
t of the write-down i 8 o tha new carryin ount is the lower co th i eali value.
amoun e write-down is reversed s t the new carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realisable value FOR §DENT!F§CAT'ON

The amount of any write-down of trading properties to net realisable vatue and all losses of trading properties are recognised as a Write-down of E%?go SES

properties expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of such write downs arising from an increase in £} yea isablerhgenson
value is recognised as a reduction in the expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. [L ;‘* i }

Costs comprise all costs of purchase, direct materials, direct labour costs, subcontracting costs and other direct overhead costs incurfadifgsbringing the  Initials

properties to their present condition. Grant Thornton
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the costs of the asset. A qualifying asset is
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the
period in which they incurred.

Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditure and borrowing costs are being incurred.
Capitalization of borrowing costs may continue until the asset is substantially ready for its intended use (i.e. upon issuance of certificate of occupancy).

In certain cases, where the construction phase is suspended for an unplanned period expected to exceed 25% of the total scheduled time for construction,
cessation of the capitalisation of borrowing cost will apply, until construction phase is resumed.

Non-specific borrowing costs are capitalised to such qualifying asset, by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on such asset. The capitalization rate
is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowing made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.
The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during the period does not exceed the amount of bherrowing costs incurred during that period.

. Properly and equipment
items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (refer to accounting policy
34(g)). i significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is recognised in profit or loss. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property and equipment less their estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in

profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property for current and comparative periods and equipment are as follows:

Years
Land — owned 0
Office buildings 25-50
Equipment, fixture and fittings 10-15
Other* 3-18

.

* Gonsists mainly of motor vehicles, equip . computers, peripheral equip , etc.

Depreciation methads, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate,
¢. impairment
1. Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, including interest on loan to equity accounted investee, are assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment,

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

default or delinguency by a debtor;
restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;

indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptey; s
atherse changes In the paymant ta0s of E0romens o sauers FOR IDENTIFICATION
verse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers;
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the disappearance of an active market for a security; or
observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a group of financial assets
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Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a collective level. All individually significant assets are individually
assessed for impairment. Those found not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet individually
identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping togsther assets
with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical information on the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an
adjustment if current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset's original effective interest rate, Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an aliowance account. When the Group considers that there
are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off.

If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

2. Non - financial assets and interests in equity accounted investees

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than investment property, trading property and deferred tax
assets)) and interests in equity accounted investees to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generating units (“CGU™).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value fess costs 1o sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is never reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

h. Provisions

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Construction costs

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement,

Warranties PO IDENTIFICATION
PURPOSES

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold, based on historical warranly data and a weighting.of possible

outcomes against their associated probabilities. 1@ Zf‘aﬁimgm}
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Restructuring plan

A provision for restructuring is recognised when a detailed and formal Restructuring plan was approved by all relevant bodies, and the restructuring either has
commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating losses are not provided for.

i. Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates
and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Rental income

The Group leases real estate to its customers under leases that are classified as operating leases. Rental income from trading property is recognized in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease origination fees and internal direct lease origination costs are deferred and amortized over the
related lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease.

The leases generally provide for rent escalations throughout the lease term. For these leases, the revenue is recognized on a straight fine basis so as to
produce a constant periodic rent over the term of the lease. The leases may alse provide for contingent rent based on a percentage of the lessee’s gross sales
or contingent rent indexed to further increases in the Consumer Price Index (“CPI").

Where rentals that are contingent upon reaching a certain percentage of the lessee’s gross sales, the Group recognizes rental revenue when the factor on which
the contingent lease payment is based actually occurs. Rental revenues for lease escalations indexed to future increases in the CPI are recognized only after
the changes in the index have occurred.

Revenues from selling of trading property

Revenue from selling of trading property is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenues are recognized when all the
following conditions are met:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership;
. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the property sold;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. itis probable that the economic bengfits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group {including the fact that the buyer's initial and continuing
investment is adequate to demonstrate commitment to pay);
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably; and
there are no remaining significant performance obligations.

[= > I~ i ]

Determining whether these criteria have been met for each sale transaction, requires certain degree of judgment by the Group management. The judgment is
made in determination whether, at the end of the reporting period, the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards associated with the
real estate assets sold.

Such determination is based on an analysis of the terms included in the sale agreement executed with the buyer as well as an analysis of other commercial
understandings with the buyer in respect of the real estate sold. In certain cases, the sale agreement with the buyer is signed during the construction period
and the consummation of the transaction is subject to certain conditions precedents which have to be fulfilled prior to delivery. Revenues are, therefore,
recognized when all the significant condition precedent included in the agreement have been fulfilled by the Group and/or waived by the buyer prior to the end
of the reporting period.

Generally, the Group is provided with a bank guarantee from the buyer for the total estimated proceeds in order to secure the payment by the buyer at delivery.
Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any significant risks in respect of payment of the proceeds by the buyer. e .
FOR IDENTIFICATION
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Payments made under operating leases (in respect of plots of land under usufruct) are recognized in profit or loss on a straight line basis over tr}
lease but are capitalized in relation to land used for the development of trading properties during the construction period (similar to borrowing ] (”
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k. Finance income and cost
For the composition of finance income and cost refer to note 25. For capitalisation of borrowing costs please refer to Note 8.

Interest income and expense which are not capitalized are recognized in the income statement as they accrue, using the effective interest method. For the
Group's policy regarding capitalization of borrowing costs refer to note 34(e).

i. Income fax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current fax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred fax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

* temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;

* temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements to the extent that the Graup is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

* taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Such reduction is reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improved.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

. Segment reporting
Segment results that are reported to the Group’s Board of Directors (the chief operating decision makers) include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate debt, assets (primarily the Company’s headquarters),

head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.

n. Employee benefits

1. Bonuses FOR IDENTIFICATION
B
The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses, which are based on agreements with employees or according to management déc%%?b%@ﬁsag%
on Group performance goals and on individual employee performance, The Group recognizes a liability where contractually obliged or ‘5\ pashprartice fass

created a constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can beg
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2. Share-based payment fransactions

The fair value of options granted to employees to acquire shares of the Company is recognized as an employee expense or capitalized if directly assaciated
with development of trading property, with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and spread over the period during
which the employees hecome unconditionally entitled to the options. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shars
options that vest.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been modified. An additional
expense is recognized for any modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-hased payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employees as measured at the date of modification. The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share-based payments, which may be
settled in cash, at the option of the holder, is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in liability, over the period in which the employees
become unconditionally entitled to payment. The fair value is re-measured at each reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of

the liability are recognized as an additional cost in salaries and related expenses in the income statement. As of the end of the reporting period share-based
payments which may be settled in cash are options granted to only one person and can be cash settled at the option of the halder.

. New standards not yet adoptied

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2015; however, the Group has not applied
the following new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

The following new or amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact of the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

« Amendments to IFRS 11 ~ Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations.

*  Amendments to 1AS 1.

+ Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methads of Depreciation and Amortisation.
* Amendments to 1AS 16 Property Plant and Equipment and 1AS 41 Agriculture.

* Amendments to IAS 19 - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Gontributions.
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NOTE 35 - LIST OF GROUP ENTITIES

As of December 31, 2015, the Company owns the following companies (all are 100% held subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period

presented unless otherwise indicated):

Directly wholly owned

HOM Ingatlanfejlesztesi es Vezetesi Kft.

Plaza House Ingatlanfejelsztesi Kit.

Plaza Centers Establishment B.V.

Szombathely 2002 Ingatlanhasznosito es Vagyonkezelo Kit.
Tatabanya Plaza [ngatianfejlesztesi Kit.

Indirectly or jeintly owned
Kerepesi 5 Irodaepulet ingatlanfejleszto Kit.

Management company
Office building
Inactive

Inacitve

Inacitve

David House

Holder of fand usage rights

100% held by Plaza Centers Establishment B.V.
Arena Plaza Extension project

Directly wholly owned

Kielce Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

Leszno Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

Lodz Centrum Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Wioclawek Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

02 Fitness Club Sp. z 0.0.

Plaza Centers Polish Operations B.V.
EDMC Sp.z 0.0.

Plaza Centers (Potand) Sp. z 0.0.
Bytom Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Bielsko-Biala Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Bydgoszcz Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Chorzow Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Gdansk Centrum Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Gliwice Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

Gorzow Wielkopolski Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Jelenia Gora Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Katowice Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Legnica Plaza Sp. z 0.0

Opole Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

Radom Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

Rzeszow Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
Szczecin Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

Tarnow Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

Tychy Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

Indirectly or jointly owned

Legnica Plaza Spoika z ograniczona
odpowiedzialnoscia S.K.A.

Suwalki Plaza Sp. z 0.0.

Zgorzelec Plaza Sp. z 0.0.
EDP Plaza Sp.z 0.0.

Lublin Or Sp. z 0.0.
PLAZABV.
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Owns plot of land
Owns plot of land
Owns plot of fand
Mixed-use project
Fitness

Holding company
Management company
Management company
Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Kielce Plaza project
Leszno Plaza project
Lodz (Residential) project
Lodz Plaza project

02 Fitness Club project

100% held by Plaza Centers Polish Operations B.V.

Torun Plaza project

100% held by Plaza Centers Polish Irm:sr gﬁ

Suwalki Piaza project ?@3{{3 HCATION
100% held by Plaza Centers Polish Operatiglesp&@SEs

Zgorzelec Plaza project ntTho
50% held by Plaza Centers N.V. with [ z ypartne
50% held by Plaza Centers N.V. with. |skaes; actnerd fededioss

Operating shopping center
Operating shopping center

Operating shopping center

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive 50% held by Plaza Centers N.VDate Initials
50% held by Mulan B.V. Grant Thornton

Accountants en Adviseurs BV,
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Hokus Pokus Rozrywka Sp. z 0.0.

Fantasy Park Sp. z 0.0.

Fantasy Park Suwalki Sp. z 0.0.
Fantasy Park Torun Sp. z 0.0.
Fantasy Park Zgorzelec Sp. z 0.0.
Fantasy Park Bytom Sp. z 0.0.
Fantasy Park Lodz Sp. z 0.0.
Fantasy Park Warszawa Sp. z 0.0.
Fantasy Park Investments Sp. z 0.0.

Inactive

Inactive
Inactive
Inactive
inactive
Inactive
Inactive
Inactive
Inactive

50% held by Plaza Centers N.V.
50% held by PLAZABY.
100% held by Mulan B.V.
100% held by Mulan B.V.
100% held by Mulan B.V.
100% held by Mulan B.V.
100% held by Mutan B.V.
100% held by Mulan B.Y.
100% held by Mulan B.V.
100% held by Mulan B.V.

Indirectiy or jointly awned
Diksna SIA

Fantasy Park Latvia SIA

Operating shopping center

Entertainment

Equity accounted investee 50% held by Plaza Centers N.V.
50% held by JV partner Riga Plaza project.
100% held by Muian B.V.

Directly wholly owned
Dambovita Centers Holding B.V.
Piaza Genters Management B.V.
S.C. Elite Plaza S.R.L.

S.C. North Eastern Plaza S.R.L.
S.C. North Gate Plaza S.R.L.
S.C. Eastern Gate Plaza S.R.L.
S.C. South Gate Plaza S.R.L.
S.C. Palazzo Ducale S.R.L.

S.C. Plaza Centers Management Romania S.R.L.

S.C. Blue Plaza S.R.L.
S.C. South Eastern Plaza S.R.L.

Indirectly or jointly owned
§.C. Dambovita Center S.R.L.

Plaza Bas B.V.
Adams Invest S.R.L.

Sunny invest S.R.L.

Holding company
Holding company
Shopping center project
Shopping center project
Shopping center project
Inactive

Shapping center project
Inactive

Management company
Inactive

Inactive

Mixed-use project
Holding company

Residential project

Residential project

100% held by Plaza Centers N.V.

Timisoara Plaza project
Constanta Plaza project
Gsiki Plaza (Miercurea Ciuc) project

Slatina Plaza project

75% held by Dambovita Centers Holding B.V.
Casa Radio project

50.1% held by Plaza Centers N.V.

95% held by Plaza Bas B.V.

5% held by Plaza Centers Management B.V.
Valley View project

95% held by Plaza Bas B.V.

5% held by Plaza Centers Management B.V.
Green Land project

Directly whoily owned

Plaza Centers {Estates) B.V.

Plaza Genters (Ventures) B.V.
Plaza Centers Management D.0.0.
Piaza Centers Holding B.V.

Indirectly or jointly owned
Leisure Group D.0.0.
Orchid Group D.0.0.

Accent D.0.0.

Holding company
Holding company
Management company
Inactive

Shopping center project

Shopping center project

Inactive
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Directly wholly owned
P4 Plaza S.R.0. Operating shopping center Liberec Plaza project
Plaza Centers Czech Republic S.R.0. Management company

Directly wholly owned

Shumen Plaza ECOD Shopping center project Shumen Plaza project
Plaza Centers Management Bulgaria EOOD Management company

Plaza Centers Development EQOD Inactive

Directly wholly owned
Helios Plaza S.A. Shopping center project Pireas Plaza project

Indirectly or jointly owned
Etbit Cochin Island Ltd. Inactive 40% held by Plaza Centers N.V.

Directly wholly owned

Tanoli Enterprises Lid. Finance activity

PC Ukraine Holdings Lid. Inactive

Plaza Centers Ukraine Ltd. Inactive 100% held by PC Ukraine Holdings Lid.
Nouraolet Enterprises Ltd. Inactive 100% held by PC Ukraine Holdings Ltd.

Directly wholly owned

Plaza Dambovita Complex B.V. Holding company

Plaza Centers Enterprises B.V. Finance company 100% held by Plaza Dambovita Complex B.V.
Mutan B.V. (Fantasy Park Enterprises B.V.) Holding company Holds Fantasy Park subsidiaries in CEE
Piaza Centers Administrations B.V. Inactive

Plaza Centers Connections B.V. Inactive

Plaza Centers Engagements B.V. Inactive

Plaza Centers Foundations B.V. Inactive

Plaza Centers Logistic B.V. Inactive

§.5.5. Project Management B.V. Inactive

Obuda B.V Inactive

Directly wholly owned
PC India Holdings Pubiic Company Ltd. Holding company

Indirectly or jointly owned

Permindo Ltd. Holding company 100% held by PC india Holdings Public Company Ltd.
HOM india Management Services Pvi. Ltd. Management company 99.99% held by PC India Holdings Public Company Ltd.
Spiralco Holdings Ltd. Inactive 100% held by PC India Holdings PubfEXRiigRWTIRICATION
Rebeldora Ltd. Inactive 100% held by PC India Holdings Public COHMES
Rosesmart Ltd. Inactive 100% held by PC India Holdings Public-&gmpany Ltd.
Xifius Services Ltd. Inactive 100% held by PC India Holdings Pyl tkhom oly
Dezimark Ltd. Inactive 100% held by PC India Holdingéi_ § any Lid. "‘7
Eibit Plaza India Real Estate Holdings Ltd. Holding company Equity accounted investee  [yape | l'mtials Ll
47.5% held by Plaza Centers N.V.
Grant Thornton
Accountants en Adviseurs BV,
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Polyvendo Ltd. Holding company 100% held by Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holdings Ltd.

Eibit Plaza India Management Services Pvt. Ltd. Management company 99.99% held by Polyvendo Lid.

Kadavanthra Builders Pvt. Ltd. Mixed-use project 80% held by Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holdings Ltd.
Chennai (SipCot) project .

Aayas Trade Services Pvt. Ltd. Mixed-use project 99.9% held by Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holdings Eid.
Bangalore project ,

Elbit India Architectural Services Ltd. Inactive 100% held by Elbit Plaza India Real Estate Holdings Ltd.

Indirectly or jointly owned
Eibit Plaza USA 1) LP (EPUS i) Holding company Equity accounted investee

50% held by Plaza Centers N.V.
50% held by Efbit Imaging Ltd.
100% held by Elbit Plaza USA |1 LP (EPUS 11)

EPN REIT !l Inactive

Entities disposed or dissolved in 2014 and 2015

Szeged 2002 Ingatlanhasznosito es Vagyonkezelo Kft. Inactive Liguidated

Primavera Invest S.R.L. Office project

avera Tower Plojesti iro;ect ~

Colorado Invest S.R.L. Residential project - 95% held by Plaza Bas B;V .
5% held by Plaza Centers Manage
_ PineTesproject
Malibu Invest S.R.L. Residential project - Equity account investee

25%/75% held by Plaza
_ Fountain Park project
Spring Invest S.R.L. Office project .

Bas Developement S.R.L. Residential project

Acacia Park project =

Dreamland Entertainment N.V. Inactive

Anuttam Developers Put. Ltd. Operating shopping center. 99.99% held by f’ermindo Ltd
Koregaon Park Plaza project

Sek D.0.0. Operating shopping center 100% held by Plarzg,CenterrskHol“d
~ Kragujevac Plaza project
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at December 31, 2015
After appropriation of result

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Financial fixed assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Other receivables and prepayments
Short-term deposits and cash at
bank

Total current assets

Total assets

2015 2014

Note € thousands € thousands
1 560,906 579,502
560,906 579,502
5,494 4,105
2 6,880 21,137
12,374 25,242
573,280 604,744
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ equity

Issued share capital

Share premium

Foreign currency translation reserve
Revaluation reserve

Other capital reserves

Retained losses

Provisions
Provisions participations

Liabilities
Long term liabilities

Current liabilities and accruals

Total equity and liabilities

2015 2014
Note € thousands € thousands
3 6,856 6,856
4 282,596 282,596
5 (27,418) (36,699)
6 4,030 4,030
4 14,670 14,634
8 (198,632) (152,516)
82,102 118,901
9 304,258 317,862
10 104,108 165,980
408,366 483,842
1 82,812 2,001
573,280 604,744
FOR IDENTIFICATION
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COMPANY PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended December 31, 2015

Operating income

Gross operating result

General expenses

Total operating costs

Operating result

Finance income and expenses

Result from ordinary
activities before taxation

Result associates

Corporate income tax

Result after taxation

2015 2014
€ thousands € thousands

(18.640) (7.655)
(18.640) (7.655)

4,363 5.964
4.363 5.964
(23.003) (13.619)
(40.405) (26.505)
(63.408) (40.124)
17.293 (79.563)
(46.116) (119.687)
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015

GENERAL

ACTIVITIES AND OWNERSHIP

Plaza Centers N.V. (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in The Netherlands. The Company
is a subsidiary of Elbit Ultrasound (Luxembourg) B.V. / S.ar.l., which holds 44.9% of the
Company’s shares, as of balance sheet date. The ultimate shareholder of the Company is Elbit
Imaging Limited. The Company is listed on the Main Board of the London Stock Exchange, the
Warsaw Stock Exchange and, starting November 2014, on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange. The
Company owns subsidiary companies in Central and Eastern Europe, and in India which
purchase, develop, hold and sale real estate assets.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN RESPECT OF THE VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Netherlands, applying the accounting principles of the consolidated
financial statements as set out in Article 362, Sub 8 of Part 9, Book 2, of the Netherlands Civil
Code. The valuation of assets and liabilities and the calculation of the net result conform with the
accounting principles applied in the consolidated annual accounts, except for participations which
are valued at net asset value rather than at cost. This means that Plaza Centers N.V.'s
shareholders’ equity and net result are the same as in the consolidated accounts.

The Company financial statements are denominated in thousands of euros.

We refer to the notes of the consolidated financial statements, unless indicated otherwise.
FINANCIAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The participating interests in which the Company is able to exert a significant influence on policy
are included at the amount of the Group’s share in the net asset value of the interests concerned.
The net asset value is calculated according to the same policies as have been applied to these

annual accounts. The other participating interests are stated at cost.

Provisions have been formed for negative net asset values of the interests concerned.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Note 1 - Financial fixed assets

31.12.2015 31.12.2014
€ thousands € thousands
Participations 515,358 526,908
Loans to and receivables from participations 45,276 42,852
Other 272 9,742
Balance as 31 December 560,906 579,502
Movements in participations are broken down as follows:
2015 2014
€ thousands € thousands
Balance as at January 1 526,908 537,524
Redemptions and disposal of investments (16,463) (18,497)
Reclassified 9,837 13,109
Translation reserve effect 211 553
Result for the year (5,135) (5,781)
Balance as at December 31 515,358 526,908

For a list of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates reference is made to Note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1- Financial fixed assets (cont.)

Movements in loans to and receivables from participations:

Balance as at January 1

Exchange rate differences

Charges to (Repayments from) participations
Balance as at December 31

Movements in other:

Balance as at January 1

Expensed following impairment of participation

Reclassification to provision participation
Additions due to uncharged costs

Balance as at December 31

Note 2— Short-term deposits and cash at bank

2015 2014
€ thousands € thousands
42,852 39,419
2,432 2,900
(8) 533
45,276 42,852
2015 2014
€ thousands € thousands
9,742 14,466
(799) (4,991)
(8,910) -
239 267
272 9,742

As at December 31, 2015, there are no cash restrictions on deposits and cash held (December
31, 2014 — EUR 2.4 million was restricted primarily due to financial instruments investment

activity).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Note 3- issued share capital

2015 2014
€thousands € thousands

The issued share capital can be specified as follows:
Balance as at January 1 6,856 2972
Right issuance(*) - 3,884
Balance as at December 31 6,856 6,856

(*) Right issuance - as part of the implementation of the restructuring plan, certain shareholders
participated in a right issuance process, following of which EUR 20 million were injected to
the Company, and the Company has issued a total of 282,326,830 shares to these
shareholders for a share price 0.0675 EUR per share.

The premium resulted from the share issuance in a total amount of EUR 16.2 million was
attributed to share premium. Legal, prospectus related, and other expenses associated with
the issuance of shares in a total amount of EUR 1.6 million was also attributed to share
premium.

In addition to the above, and as part of the implementation of the restructuring plan, a total of
106,047,307 shares were issued to the debentures holders, for which the bondholders have
paid the par value of the shares. As a result of the above, a total deemed premium of EUR
6.2 million was contributed to the share premium of the entity, based on the market value of
the shares granted at the closing of the day of trading December 10, 2014.

Note 4— Share premium

2015 2014

€thousands € thousands

Balance as at January 1 282,596 261,773

Right issuance(*) - 20,823

Balance as at December 31 282,596 282,596

(*) Refer to note 3above.

Note 5- Foreign currency translation reserve

2015 2014

€thousands € thousands

The table below presents the movements in the translation reserve:

Balance as at January 1 (36,699) (40,651)
Movement 9,281 3.952
Balance as at December 31 (27.418) (36,699)

The movement concern the translation reserve resulted mainly from the operation in India. The
reserve is considered a legal reserve which is not distributable (if more than nil).

Note 6— Revaluation reserve

2015 2014

€thousands € thousands

Balance as at January 1 4,030 -
Movement - 4.030
Balance as at December 31 4,030 4.030

2014 movement is due to gain recorded in respect of the restructuring of debt. The reserve is
considered a legal reserve which is not distributable (if more than nil).
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Note 7— Other capital reserves
2015 2014
€thousands € thousands

The table below presents the movements in other capital reserve:

Balance as at January 1 14,634 14,427
Movement due to share option plan 36 207
Balance as at December 31 14,670 14,634

The movement concern share-based payment as a result of the Employee Share Option Plan
which was adopted by the Company on October 26, 2006. On the same date, 26,108,602 non-
negotiable options (“Options”) over Ordinary Shares have been granted, the terms and conditions
of which (except for the exercise price) will be regulated by the Share Option Scheme. No
Options vested at that date. Options will vest annually in three equal parts. One-third of Options
granted to an Eligible Grantee (see below) will vest one year after the date of grant, another third
of granted Options will vest two years after the date of grant and the last third will vest three years
after the date of grant. Options expire, unless otherwise determined by the Board, on the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant. The total amount of options in the Share Option Plan is
33,834,586 options. For grants, exercise and forfeiture of options in 2014, refer to other
information below.

Capital reserve in respect of available for sale securities relates to debt and equity securities
purchased by the company as an investment starting the second half of 2008 and finalized in
2013.

Note 8~ Retained losses

2015 2014
€ thousands € thousands

The table below presents the movements in the retained losses:

Balance as at January 1 (152,516) (28,799)
Loss in the period (46,116) (119,687)
Transfer to revaluation reserve - (4,030)
Balance as at December 31 (198,632) (152,516)

The movement is reflecting the 2015and 2014results, as well as the movements in revaluation

reserve due to gain from restructuring debt.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Note 9- Provisions to participations

Movements in Provisions participations are broken down as follows:

2015 2014
€ thousands € thousands

Balance as at January 1 317,862 224,481
Reclassified from Participations 9,837 13,109
Reclassified from other assets (9,720) -
Impairment of participations 8,707 6,490
Result for the year (22,428) 73,782
Balance as at December 31 304,258 317,862
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Note 10— Long term liabilities

Long term liabilities (debentures issued to Israeli and Polish investors) are presented according to
the amortized cost basis, with discount recognized according to the effective interest rate method.

As presented in the consolidated report
Debentures held on treasury

Balance as at December 31 in this report

31.12.2015

€ thousands

181,589
3,670

185,259

The total amount consists of long-term liabilities (€104,108k) and short-term liabilities
(€ 81,151k). For more details on the debentures refer to note 16 of the consolidated financial

statements.
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND ACCRUALS

Note 11- Other liabilities and accruals

C/A Elbit Imaging Ltd

C/A Elbit Ultrasound B.V.

Other small charges participations
Total related parties

VAT payable

Interest to pay — banks and investors

Current portion of debentures and long term loans )
Suppliers

CDPM Hungary Kit.

Total non-related parties

Total

(1) Refer to notes 2(C) in the consolidated report.
OTHER NOTES

Note 12— Contingent liabilities and guarantees

31.12.2015 31.12.2014
€ thousands € thousands

76 57

- 387

427 841
503 1,285
183 -
126 -
81,151 -
608 475
241 241
82,309 716
82,812 2,001

For contingencies associated with the restructuring plan, refer to note 28Bof the consolidated
report. For other contingent liabilities and commitments please refer to note 28 of the

consolidated financial statements.

In respect of the Company’s corporate guarantee for the fulfilment of its subsidiaries and joint
ventures obligations under loan agreements, refer to note 12 of the consolidated report.

The Company is part of a tax group for corporate income tax, and is therefore jointly and

severally liable for the tax payable by the tax group as a whole.
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Note 13— Employees

The number of employees in the consolidated group was 83in December 2015 (2014: 120). The
average number of employees in 2014 in the consolidated group was 130.

The number of employees in the parent company only was 7in December 2015 (2014: 9). The
average number of employees in 2015 the parent company only was 9.The below table breaks

down the employees per position type:

Management
Business and finance
Legal

Engineering
Marketing
Administration

Total employees

Parent Company level employees
Management

Business and finance
Administration

Total

Note 14— Audit fees

2015 2014
11 18
18 29
4 3
6 10
13 13
31 47
83 120
5 7
1 1
1 1
7 9

The total audit fees charged by the statutory auditor amount to EUR 47,000(2014: 45,000). These

fees relate only to the audit of the statutory financial statements.

Note 15—~ Remuneration

Total non- Total
Share performance performance
Salary incentive related related
and fees plan’ remuneration remuneration
2015 €000 €000 €'000 €000
Executive directors
Non-performance related remuneration
Mr. NadavLivni 67 - 67 -
Total 67 - 67 -
Non-executive directors
Non-performance related remuneration
Mr.Sarig Shalhav 67 - 67 -
Mr.Ron Hadassi 180 - 180 -
Mr.David Dekel 67 - 67 -
Mr.Shiomi Kelsi (*) 67 - 67 -
Mr.YoavKfir (*) 67 - 67 -
Mr. Marco Wichers 67 - 67 -
Total 515 - 515 -
Total — all directors 582 - 582 -

(*) Until December 2015.
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Note 16 — Remuneration (cont.)

Total non- Total
Share performance performance
Salary incentive related related
and fees plan' remuneration remuneration
2014 €000 €000 €000 €000
Executive directors
Non-performance related remuneration
Mr. MordechayZisser (*) 114 - 114 -
Mr. NadavLivni (**) 32 - 32 -
Mr. Ran Shtarkman (%) 479 - 479 -
Total 625 - 625 -
Non-executive directors
Non-performance related remuneration
Mr. Shimon Yitzchaki (*) - 21 21 -
Mr. Marius van EibergenSanthagens (*) 50 - 50 -
Mr.Sarig Shalhav 67 - 67 -
Mr.Ron Hadassi (**) 93 - 93 -
Mr.David Dekel (**) 32 - 32 -
Mr.Shlomi Kelsi (**) 32 - 32 -
Mr.YoavKfir (**) 32 - 32 -
Mr. Marco Wichers 67 - 67 -
Total 373 21 394 -
Total — all directors 998 21 1,019 -

(*) Until July 2014 Mr. Shtarkman serves also as the CEO of the Company throughout 2014.
(**) From July 2014 Mr. Hadassi serves also as the Chairman of the Board.

SERVICE ARRANGEMENTS
The executive director has a rolling service contracts with the Company, which may be
terminated on a three month notice.

The non-executive directors have specific terms of reference. Their letters of appointment state
an initial 12-month period, terminable by either party on three months written notice. Save for
payment during respective notice periods, these agreements do not provide for payment on
termination.

BONUSES

The Company has a performance-linked bonus policy for senior executives and employees,
under which up to 3% of net annual profits are set aside for allocation by the directors to
employees on an evaluation of their individual contributions to the Company’s performance.

In addition, the Board can award ad hoc bonuses to project managers, area managers and other
employees on the successful completion and/or opening of each project. The directors also have
the authority to award discretionary bonuses to outstanding employees which are not linked to the
Company's financial results.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted its Share Option Scheme on October 26, 2006. At the same time,
26,108,602 non-negotiable options over Ordinary Shares were granted, the terms and conditions

of which (except for the exercise price) are regulated by the Share Option Scheme. Raga? i FICATION
the modification of Share Option Scheme refer to note 21 of the consolidated report.” O%SES
exercise and forfeiture of options refer to the table below. h
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Note 16 — Remuneration (cont.)

Number of Number Exercise

options exercisable as price of

granted and at December 31, options

unexercised 2015 and 2014 £

Mr. MordechayZisser 3,907,895 3,907,895 0.43

Mr. Ran Shtarkman 7,089,151 7,089,151 043

Mr. Shimon Yitzchaki 1,794,361 1,127,695 0.43
Mr. Marius van

EibergenSanthagens - - N/A

Mr. Sarig Shalhav - - N/A

Mr.Ron Hadassi - - N/A

Mr.David Dekel - - N/A

Mr.Shlomi Kelsi - - N/A

Mr.YoavKfir - - N/A

Mr. NadavLivni ~ — N/A

Mr. Marco Wichers - — N/A

Number of

options as at
December 31,

2015

Total pool 47,834,586
Granted 47,195,174
Exercised 8,420,598
Forfeited (14,502,203)
Left for future grant 15,141,615
Number of

options as at
December 31,

2014
Total pool 47,834,586
Granted 47,195,174
Exercised 8,420,598
Forfeited {15,147,203)
Left for future grant 15,786,615

Amsterdam, May 18, 2018
The Board of Directors

NadavLivni Ron Hadassi

David Dekel Marco Habib Wichers
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OTHER INFORMATION

PROVISION IN THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION CONCERNING THE APPROPRIATION OF
PROFITS

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association the result for the year is at the disposal
of the Annual General Meeting of shareholders.

APPROPRIATION OF RESULT

It is proposed that the 2015 loss of €46.1million will be added to the other reserves. The annual
accounts have been prepared on the assumption that this profit appropriation will be adopted by
the Annual General Meeting of shareholders.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Plaza Centers’ remuneration policy is designed to attract, motivate and retain the high-caliber
individuals who will enable the Company to serve the best interests of shareholders over the long
term, through delivering a high level of corporate performance. Remuneration packages are
aimed at balancing both short-term and long-term rewards, as well as performance and non-
performance related pay.

The Remuneration Committee reviews base salaries annually. Increases for all employees are
recommended by reference to cost of living, responsibilities and market rates, and are performed
at the same time of year.

The Remuneration Committee believes that any director's total remuneration should aim o
recognize his or her worth on the open market and to this end pays base salaries in line with the
market median supplemented by a performance-related element with the capacity to provide
more than 50% of total potential remuneration.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
An overview of the subsequent events of the company is disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth’

To: the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Plaza Centers N.V.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our disclaimer of opinion.

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of Plaza Centers N.V for 2015 as
set out on pages 69 to 147. The financial statements include the consolidated and company financial
statements.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated and company financial statements. Because of

the significance of the matter described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

The consolidated financial statements comprise of:
1. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015;
the following statements for 2015:

2. consolidated statements of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the year then ended; and

3. notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The company financial statements comprise of:
L. the company balance sheet on 31 December 2015;
2. the company profit and loss account for the year 2015; and

HCATION
3. notes comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other: exgg%%ggggg ::manon
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion

During 2015, the Board of Directors has become aware of certain issues with respect to the
legitimacy of transactions arising from agreements that were executed in the past in connection with
a project. In order to address this matter, internal investigations were carried out and independent
law firms were appointed to perform an independent review of the matters raised. The company has
identified a number of potential trregularities relating to a trading property named Casa Radio
project in Bucharest, Romania. The company has approached the relevant Romanian Authorities
and has submitted its findings to these Authorities. The subsequent investigation by the Romanian
Authorities is still on-going. Legal opinions from law firms do not give clear information about the
potential outcome of the investigation by the Romanian authorities or the effects on the progress of
the project or other effects of the trregularities. Therefore we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence about the outcome of this investigation.

The company has capitalized trading properties for a total amount of € 317,758,000. In this amount,
the Casa Radio project is included representing a carrying amount of € 108,600,000 in which Plaza
Centers N.V. has a share of 75%. The company is currently unable to estimate any impact on the
catrying value of the project potentially resulting from these potential irregularities. Based on the
circumstances described above, there is uncertainty about whether or not the company will be in the
position to proceed with the Casa Radio project. However, if the project will not proceed, this will
have a significant negative impact on the carrying value of this project. In contrast to what is stated
in note 8, 5f to the consolidated financial statements, we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence supporting the statement that only in extreme circumstances, termination
of the PPP (Public-Privat Partnership agreement) and annulment of the Company’s rights in the
Project by the Authorities will occur. As a result, we wete unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence supporting the value of the Casa Radio project.

As a result of this matter, we are unable to determine whether any adjustments might have been
found necessary in respect of the valuation of the Casa Radio project, and the elements making up
the profit and loss account.

We are independent of Plaza Centers N.V. in accordance with the ‘Verordening inzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO)’ and other relevant independence
regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore we have complied with the ‘Verordening gedrags- en
beroepsregels accountants (VGBAY’,

Materiality

Misstatements can atise from fraud or error and will be considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

Based on our professional judgment we determined the materiality for the financial statements as a
whole at € 4,030,000. The materiality is based on approximately 1% of total assets. We have also
taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our BINENTINEARKIA al for
the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons. PURPOSES
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We agreed with the Board of Directors that misstatements in excess of € 201,500, which are
identified during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our
view must be reported on qualitative grounds.

Scope of the Group Audit
Plaza Centers N.V. is at the head of a group of entities. The financial information of this group is
included in the consolidated financial statements of Plaza Centers N.V.

Because we have ultimate responsibility for the audit, we are also responsible for directing,
supervising and performing the group audit. In this respect we have determined the nature and
extent of the audit procedures to be carried out for group entities. Decisive were the size and/or
risk profile of the group entities or operations. On this basis, we selected group entities for which an
audit or review had to be carried out on the complete set of financial statements or specific items.

The group audit mainly focused on significant group entities. This entails components representing
a significant part of group turnover, components with significant risks relating to the valuation of
properties and components representing significant amounts with respect to loans and debentures.
We have performed audit procedures ourselves of the company financial statements of Plaza
Centers N.V. When auditing all other significant entities, we have used the work of other auditors.
For the other group entities we have performed review procedures or specific audit procedures.

Emphasis of an uncertainty with respect to the going concern assumption
We draw attention to note 2(c), 16 and 27(c) to the consolidated financial statements, which
disclose, among other matters, important information regarding the Company’s cash flow
projections for 18 months from the end of the reporting period.

Our disclaimer of opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the
preparation of the Directors’ report as set out on pages 1 to 67 in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2
of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore the Board of Directors is responsible for such internal
control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and/or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks
mentioned, the Board of Directors should prepare the financial statements using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors should disclose
events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
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Our Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on conducting the
audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Because of the
matter described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, however, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on the directors’ report and the other information

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2:393 sub 5 under e and f of the Dutch Civil Code
(concerning our obligation to report about the directors’ report and other data), we declare that:

e We have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the directors’ repott,
to the extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this
Code, and whether the information as required under Section 2:392 sub 1 at b-h has been
annexed.

e Furthermore, we report that the directors’ reportt, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with
the financial statements as required by Section 2:391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Appointment
We were appointed by the Shareholders as auditor of Plaza Centers N.V. on 28 November 2014, as
of the audit for the year 2014 and have operated as statutory auditor ever since that date.

Rotterdam, 18 May 2016

Grant Thornto n Adviseurs B.V.

drs. C. Holewijn RA
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Plaza Centers The Netherlands

Plaza-Centers N.V,

Prins Hendrikkade 48-S
1012.AC Amsterdam

The Netherlands

Phone: +31 20 344 9560
Fax: +31 20 344 9561
E-mail: info@plazacenters.nl
www.plazacenters.com

 Plaza Centers Hungary

David House

Andrassy ut 59,

1062 Budapest

Hungary

Phone; +36 1462 7100

Fax: +36 1462 7201

E-mail: info@plazacenters.com

PlazaCentorsPoland

Plaza Centers Poland
Al.-Jana Pawia Il 23
00-854 Warszawa
Poland

Phone: +48.22 231 9900
Fax: +48 22 2319901

E-mail: headoffice@plazacenters:p}

www.plazacenters.com/pl
Plaza Centers Romania

63-81 Calea Victoriei

Buitding 11, Entrance B2, District 1

010065 Bucharest

Romania

Phone: +40 21 315 4646

Fax: +40 21 314 5660

E-mail: office@plazacenters.ro

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Company’s offices

Plaza Centers Serbia

Lazarevacka street no 1/5
11000 Senjak, Belgrade
Serbia

Phone: +381 11 715 1577
Fax: +381 11 715 1587
E-mail:-office@plazacenters.rs
www.plazacenterserbia.rs

_ Plaza Centers Lalvia

71 Mukusalas

LV-1004 Riga

Latvia

Phone: +371 67 633 734

Fax: +37167 833 735

E-mail: office.latvia@chre.com
www.rigaplaza.lv

Plaza Centers India

Prestige Towers

Unit No 106A, 1st Floor
99/100 (New no 100/31)
Residency road

560 025 Bangalore

India

Phone: +91 80 4041 4444
Fax:-+91 80 4041 4408
www.plazacenters.in
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P Advisors *’

_ Investor relations

FTi Consuiting

200 Aldersgate
Aldersgate Street
London EC1A 4HD
United Kingdom
www.fticonsulting.com

UK sponsor

Spark Advisory Pariners Limited
5 St John's Lane

London ECTM 4BH

United Kingdom
www.sparkadvisorypartners.com

_Principal auditor

KPMG Hungaria Kit.
H-1134 Budapest
Vaci 0t 31,

Hungary
www.kpmg.hu

Duteh statutory auditor

Grant Thornton Accountants en Adviseurs B.V.
Gedempte Zalmhaven 4 E

Postbus 23278

3001 KG Rotterdam

The Netherlands

www.gt.nl

 Taxcounsels in the Netherlands

Loyens & Loeff N.V.

Fred. Roeskestraat 100
1076 ED Amsterdam

The Netherlands

Web: www.loyensioeff.com

PLAZA CENTERS N.V. ANNUAL REPORT 2015

 Corporate solicitors in the UK

King & Wood Mallesons
10 Queen Street Place
London

EC4R 1BE

United Kingdom

Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP
Adelaide House

London Bridge

London EC4R 9HA

United Kingdom
www.blplaw.com

Corporate legal counsels in the Netherfands

Buren N.V.

World Trade Center, Tower A Levet 10,
Strawinskylaan 1017

1077 XX Amsterdam

The Netherlands

www.burenlegal.com

 Corporate legal counsel in Poland

Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP
Warsaw Financial Genter

ul. Emiliii Platesr 53

Warsaw 00-113

Poland
www,weil.com/warsaw

 Registrar

Capita Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham
Kent BR3 4TU
United Kingdom
www.capitaassetservices.com
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